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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Members of Minerals & Minerals Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Minerals & Minerals
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2016, the
statement of profit and loss, thecash flow statement for theyear then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriateaccounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalonefinancial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March’2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure-2 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and theCash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaidstandalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31s*March’2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March’2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) Our separate report on adequacyof internal financial control system and operating
effectiveness of such controls is enclosed in Annexure-1.
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3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to
the best our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has no pending litigation.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contract including derivative contract
which may lead to any foreseeable loss.

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For G. BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
R. No.-301174E

(GAUTAM GUHA)
Partner
{M. No.-054702)

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 30, 2016
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Annexure-1

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Minerals & Minerals
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the GuidanceNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internai control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For G. BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
R. No.-301174E

T Y

(GAUTAM GUHA)
Partner
(M. No.-054702)

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 30, 2016
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ANNEXURE - 2

RE: Minerals & Minerals Ltd.

THIS IS REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 10F OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

1a. The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

1b.  The fixed assets have been physically verified during the year, at reasonable intervals by the
management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

2. The company has adequate arrangement for periodical verification of inventory and last
verification has been conducted on 31.03.2016.

3. No loans secured or unsecured have been granted by the company, to companies, firms and
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013.

4, The company has not made any loans or investments or issued any guarantee during the year.

5. In our opinion and according the information and explanations given to us the company has
not accepted any deposit from the public.

6. The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year under review.

7a. According to the books and records of the company, the company is regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, vat, cess and
any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. However, Municipal Tax amounting to
Rs. 38,780/- has been lying unpaid for more than 6 months.

7b. Income Tax amounting to Rs. 19.28 lacs (for AY: 2012-13) has not been deposited as an appeal
is lying pending with CIT{Appeal), Ranchi against demand raised by Income Tax Authority.

8. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks, financial institutions and
debenture holders.

9. The company has not raised any fund by way of initial public offer or further public offer or
term [oan.

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

11. No managerial remuneration has been paid by the company during the year.

12. The company is not a Nidhi Company.

13. There has been no non compliance with relevant provisions of Companies Act in respect of

transaction with related parties.

14. The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

15. The company has not entered into any non cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him.

16. The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act 1934. .
For G. BASU & CO.
Chartered Account
Place: Kolkata R. T\Irg -:1301(?17:‘4:!’5”ts
Date: April 30, 2016
(GAUTAM GUHA)
Partner

(M. No.-054702)



MINERALS & MINERALS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH 2016

Amount in Rs.

As at
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES NOTE NO. 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
1. Share holder's Funds
a) Share Capital 1 500,000 500,000
b} Reserves and Surplus 2 11,082,358 10,758,173
2. Non-current liabilities
a) Long Term borrowings - -
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 2,172,020 1,858,785
¢) Other long term liabilities - -
d) Long-term provisions - -
3. Current Liabilities
a) short-term borrowings - -
b) Trade payables 3 5,860,014 9,258,551
c) Other current liabilities 4 33,846,113 30,745,517
d) Short-term provisions - -
Total: 53,460,505 53,121,026
H ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
a) Fixed Assets 5
i) Tangible assets 22,991,282 15,415,773
ii) Intangible assets 9,987,721 10,562,652
iii} Capital work-in-progress 1,314,695 14,922,346
b} Non-current investments -
) Deferred Tax assets -
d) Long-term loans and advances 6 6,135,334 3,708,733
e) Other non-current assets -
2. Current assets
a} Current investment -
b) Inventories 7 - 27,642
¢) Trade receivables - -
d} Cash and cash equivalents 4,581,037 988,002
2} Short-term loans and advances 8,450,436 7,495,877
f) Other current assets -
Total: 53,460,505 53,121,025
Notes on Accounts 14

As per report attached

For G. BASU & CO,
Chartered Accountants

R. Ng -301174E

(GAUTAM GUHA)
Pariner

Place: Kolkata (M. No.-054702)

Date: 30-Apr-2016

For and on behalf of the Board

(o

D. C. Kabra - Director

%—’5 B d’ﬁ '67\\«'
I.J.Joshi-mrect-’or/




MINERALS & MINERALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st Mar-2016

Amount in Rs

Particulars Note Ne. 31-Mar-2016 31-Mar-2015
1. Revenue from Operations 10(a) 198,675,042 180,222,722
2, Other Income 10(b) 31,613
3. Total Revenue (1+2) 198,675,042 180,254,335
4. Expenses:
a). Cost of material consumed -
b}. Purchase of Stock-in-trade - 7
ch. Decrease / (-} Increase in inventories:
i). |Finished Goods - -
ii). |Work-in-Progress - -
iii).JStock-in-trade - -
d). Employees Benefits Expenses - -
e). Finance Costs 11 10,826 2,988
f). Depreciation & amortisation expense 5 1,811,332 1,314,706
3 g). Raising Expenses 142,890,570 137,667,522
' In).] |royaity 41,137,081 38,928,685
i). Other Expenses 12 11,730,358 697,172
Total Expenses (Sub totai 4) 197,580,167 178,611,073
S. Profit before exceptional & extra ordinary items {3-4) 1,054,875 1,643,262
6. Exceptional Items - -
7. Profit / {Loss) before extra ordinary items {5-6) 1,094,875 1,643,262
8. Extra Ordinary Items 5 -
9, Profit before tax (7-8) 1,094,875 1,643,262
10. Tax expenses:
a). Current tax 457,455 -
b). Tax for earlier years 5,956,078
c). Deferred tax 313,235 -
11, Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations {9-10) 324,185 -4,312,816
12 Profit / {Loss) from discontinuing operations - -
3, Tax expenses of discontinuing operations & &
14. Profit / {Loss) for the year (11 +12-13) 324,185 -4,312,816
15. Profit / {Loss) for the year (11 + 14)
16. Earnings as per equity share:
a). Basic & Diluted before extraordinary item 6.48 -86.26
b). Basic & Diluted after extraordinary item 6.48 -86.26
Notes on Accounts 14
For and gn hehalf of the Board

As per report attached

For G. BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
R. No.-301174E

{GAUTAM GUHA)
Partner

Place: Kolkata (M. No.-054702)

Date: 30-Apr-2016

D. C. Kabra - Director

AR

I. 4. Joshi - Director




MINERALS & MINERALS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2016

Amount in Rs.

For the year ended
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Rs. Rs.

Net Profit before Tax and Extraordinary items: 1,094,875 1,643,262

Adjustment for :

Depreciation 1,811,332 1,314,706

Finance Cost 10,826 2,988

Assets written off 27,642 -

Adjustment of expenses against CWIP 5,548,376 -
Operating Profit before changing in Working Capital 8,493,051 2,960,956
Trade and Other receivable -1,030,290 5,186,159
Inventories -
Trade & Other Payable -297,941 18,499,231
Short Term Loans & Advances -
Refund / (Payment) of Tax -692,331 -2,542,336
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 6,472,489 24,104,010
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Addition to Fixed Asset and Capital Advance -2,868,628 -17,545,149

Mining Right - 5,896,039
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities -2,868,628 -23,441,188
Cash Flow From Financing Activities -
Finance cost -10,826 -2,988
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities -
Net Increased / {Decreased) in Cash or Cash equivalent 3,593,035 659,834
Cash / Cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 988,002 328,168
Cash / Cash equivalent as at the closing the year 4,581,037 988,002

For G. BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
R. No.-301174E

(GAUTAM GUHA)
. Partner
Place: Kolkata (M. No.-054702)

Date: April 30, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

D. C. Kabra - Director

S PN

1. J. Joshi - Director
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2. Reserve & Surplus

Minerals & Minerals Limited

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Details

31st -Mar-2016

Details

31-Mar-2015

Other Reserve {General Reserve}:
Opening Balance

Less : Amount Where Life Exhaused Written off

Surplus / (deficit):
Opening Balance
Add: Profit/{Loss) for the year
Transfers from Reserves
Depreciation on Revaluation
Total
Less: Bonus shares
Premium on shares issued under ESOP
Bonus issue
Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Total
Less: Transfer to General Reserve

Total

Add: Addition during the year {(Transfer from Surplus)

10,758,173

10,758,173

324,185

324,185

10,758,173

324,185

15,198,667

127,679

15,070,988

-4,312,816

11,082,358

-4,312,816

15,070,988

-4,312,816

10,758,173

12




3 Trade Payables

Minerals & Minerals Limited

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-2015
Creditor for Goods & Services 5860014 9,258,551
Total 5,860,014 9,258,551

13




4  QOther Current Liabilities

Minerals & Minerals Limited

Amountin Rs.

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-2015
SECURITY DEPOSIT 247,208 247,208
ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS

Hil - Renukoot 30,395,507 26,469,818
STATUTORY LIABILITIES

Income Tax payable - 3,038,627
Centra Sales Tax 500,031 179,719
Tax Deduction at Source 172,239 208,219
Dead Rent 95,163 95,163
Project Liability 450,000 450,000
Special Officer Lohardaga{Municipality) 38,780 38,780
Inspection Charges(P.F) 100
Railway Plot Rent 275,636 -
TCS on Mining 32,426 -
District Mining Officer - Lohardaga 1,491,071 -
District Mining Officer - Gumla 130,169 -
Other Payable 17,883 17,883
TOTAL 33,846,113 30,745,517

14
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Minerals & Minerals Limited

6. Long term Loans & Advances

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

31st-Mar-2016

31st-Mar-2015

Unsecured & Considered Good

Security Deposit with Govt Authorities
Capital Advance

Advance payment of Tax
{ Net provision of Rs 457455 PY NIL)

76,223 76,223
5,003,708 2,887,717
1,055,403 744,793
6,135,334 3,708,733

16




Minerals & Minerals Limited

7. Inventories ( {Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31st-Mar-2016 31st-Mar-2015

Stores & spares - 27,642

Total - 27,642
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Minerals & Minerals Limited

8. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015

Balances with banks 4,576,619 986,118
Cash-in-Hand 4,418 1,884
Total 4,581,037 988,002
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Minerals & Minerals Limited

9, Short term Loans & Advances

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

31st-Mar-2016

31st-Mar-2015

Unsecured & considered good

Other Loans & Advances 697,923 -

Balance with Government Authority 7,504,059 7,171,692

Advance payment of tax 246,774 322,505

{Net of provision Rs. 437379/- PY: Rs. 1226010)

Fringe Benefit Tax

{ Net of Provision Rs 32560.00, P yr 32560.00} 1,680 1,680
Total 8,450,436 7,495,877
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MINERALS & MINERALS LIMITED

Amountin Rs.

g e No 0 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
a Revenue from OL:_na ration:
i). |Sale of Products (Bauxite) 198,675,042 180,222,722
b). Other Income
i). |Other Interest income - 31,613
198,675,042 180,254,335
Note No. 11 Amount in Rs.

Finance Costs

31st March 2016

31st March 2015

i).

Interest expenses

i).

Bank charges

2,988

2,988
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Note No. 12 {Other Expenses)

Note No. 13
Movement of Provisions:

MINERALS & MINERALS LIMITED

Sub Total

Sub Total

MINERALS & MINERALS LIMITED

Amount in Rs.

Amount in Rs.

Provision for tax

Provision for tax

Particulars Fy 2015-16 Fy 2014-15
Opening Balance 1,226,010 1,765,851
Addition during the year 457,455 -
Sub Total 1,683,465 1,765,851
Less: Adjustment 788,631 539,841
Closing Balance 894,834 1,226,010
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MINERALS & MINERALS LIMITED

14 (A) Notes on Accounts

a

e
14 (B)
(a}

Related Party disclosers (lone party in transaction):-
Hindalco Industries Limited { Holding Company)
The following transactions were carried out with the related party in the ordinary course of business

2015-16 2014-15
Bauxite Sales 198,675,042 180,222,722
Share Capital 500,000 500,000
Advance from Hindalco Industries Ltd, Renukoot 30,395,507 26,469,818

Company through contractual work is dealing with one product,Bauxite ore and as such there is no segment
reporting in this regards(AS-17)

Old liability for dead rent amounting to Rs.95163 is still outstanding.

Other current liabilities includes Rs.4,50,000.The amount was paid to Govt.Authority for registration and
miscellenious charges.Cheques were not presented to the Bank.Liability in this respect had been provided earlier.
There is no impairment of Assets covered under Accounting Standard 28,

Contingent liability{as per AS-29)

Counter guarantee infavour of SBI, Renukoot Rs.2274750/-(Previous year Rs.1839750/-}

{b} Claims/Demands related to royalty on vanadium and others of Bauxite mines:

i}

ii)

i)

iv)

v

(c)

Claims / Demands by the Assistant Mining Officer, Lohardaga,in the state of Jharkhand on the Company towars
Rovyalty for Rs. 81,04,105 together with interest of Rs.85,62,150 upto December 2005 on account of vanadium
extracted and sold by Hindalco Industries Limited against Bauxite supplied to them from 1991 - 92 to December
2005 not admitted by the company and against which proceedings are pending before the Certificate Officer,
Chhotanagpur Anchal Division,Ranchi and Allahabad High Court. Company has deposited Rs.42,86,122 and furnished
Bank Guarantees for Rs.42,86,122 in compliance with the orders of said Certificate officer against these
demands.The Company has filed a petition for this matter on 5th March, 2013 before Certificate Officer {Mines),
South Chotanagpur, Ranchi to refund the deposit amount and exempt to renew the Bank Gaurantee, hearing

pending.

Company received notice of demand/claim from the court of Certificate Officer ( Mines ) Chotanagpur Anchyal,
Doranda, Ranchi in the state of Jharkhand for Royalty on Vanadium along with interest for the period from
January,2006 to June,2006 amount to Rs.1,86,500 for which demand petition u/s 9 of PDR Act has been submitted,
which is still pending for final hearing.Impact of cash out flow if any on the demand could not be estimated the
pending petition with the authority.

A notice U/S 7 of P.D.R.Act received from Assistant Mining officer, Lohardaga had filed certificate case in the court
of certificate officer, South Chhotanagpur Anchal, Ranchi for realization of Rs. 124263415/-joint provisional demand
from Hindalco Industries Ltd & Company towards Royalty with interest due on vanadium mineral for the period from
01.07.06 to 31.11.10 for which ohjection petition U/S 9 of PDR Act has been filed on 29.03.11. Hearing of the case is
pending. Impact of cash out flow if any on the demand could not be estimated pending disposal of petiticn the
authority.

There is a Demand for Surface Rent amounted to Rs.1265132/- (Previous year Rs.1128361) which has been received
from DMO's Office of Lohardaga, Jharkhand which is pending for settlement with the authority. No reliable
estimated of probable cash out flow could be made pending disposal .

Others Rs 13065345/-
Capital commitments Gross Rs 5250000/-, advance Rs. 5003708/-, Net Rs. 246292/-

(d) The Minerals Minerals Limited has no Micro and Small parties registered under MSMED Act 2006.
{e) Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever considered necessary.
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Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations
Minerals & Minerals Limited is a 200% subsidiary of Hindalco Industries Limited and is engaged in the Business of

Mining and Trading of Bauxite.
Significant Accounting Policies
(a)Accounting convention
The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis and in

accordence with the generally accepted accounting principles in India,the applicable mandatory accounting
Standards as notified by the companies {Accountng Standard) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the
companies Act,1956 of India.

{b) Use Of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements require estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in
the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

{c) Fixed Assets
{1) Tangible Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any.
expenditure on making the assets ready for its intended use.

(d) Depreciation and Amortization
{I) Depreciation of Fixed Assets as at 31.12.1986 continues to be provided at the rates prevailing at that time on
strainght line method pursuant to Circular No. 1/86 dated 21.5.1986 issues by the department of Company
Affairs, New Delhi.
(1) For Fixed Assets added from 1987 onwards depreciation has been provided on straght-line method -over the
estimated useful life of the assets in a manner prescribed in Part C of Schedule |l of the Companies Act,2013.

(1) Mining rights and leasehold land are amortized over the period of lease on straight line basis.

{e) INVENTORIES:
{i} Stores & Spare parts are valued at Lower of cost or realisable Value

{ii) Sales revenue of the year is based on transfer price structured on the basis of cost of production prevailing in

the beginning of the year mutually agreed between the company and the transferee holding company.

(f) RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE :
Income & expenditure are recognised on accrual basis.

(g) TAXES ON INCOME
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period.Deferred tax
consideration of prudence,on timing difference,being the difference between taxable income and liabilities and
assets are recognised at substantially enacted tax rates,subject to the accounting income that orginate in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more .

(h) Claim against the Company not admitted as a debt is disclosed as Contingent Liability.

' For G. BASU & Clo,

Chartered 2ccountanig For and on behalf of the Board

R. No.-301174E
G T
((MAU;I::;?,SUHA) D. C. Kabra - Director
. No.-054702) : d’f é N\~
H _-‘—/-,_‘
Place: Kolkata 1. J. Joshi - Director

Date: 30-Apr-2016
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RENUKA INVESTMENTS & FINANCE LIMITED
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RENUKESHWAR INVESTMENTS & FINANCE LIMITED
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SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Jhavar Ladha & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of,
SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED, MUMBAI

Reports on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SUVAS HOLDINGS
LIMITED (‘the Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management‘s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section34(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
[43(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

501 Samadhan, Chandavarkar Road Extension, Vazira Naka,Borivali West, Mumbai 4000091
Email kemjhavar@yahoo.co.uk; Mobile +91 g820056084
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Jhavar Ladha & Associates

% Chartered Accountants

circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016, and its
Profits and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As  required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
(‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our Audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014( as amended).

¢.  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2016, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are
disqualified as on March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a directors in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls, system over financial reporting and such internal financial control
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016 based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company.

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014(as

/

501, Sainadhan, Chandavarkar Read Extension, Vazira Naka,Borivali West, Mumbai 400091
Email kemjhavar@yahoo.co,uk; Mobile +91 9820056084
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Jhavar Ladha & Associates

% Chartered Accountants

amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were material foreseeable Josses.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For JHAVAR LADHA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firin Registration No. 104223W .
i eg 04223W..

CA Kailash Jhavar (Partner)
Membership No. 070521

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2016

501 Samadhan, Chiandavarkar Road Extension, Vazira Naka,Borivali West, Mumbai 400091
Email kemjhavar@yahoo.co.uk; Mobile +91 9820056084
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- Jhavar Ladha & Associates

{% Chartered Accountants

“Annexure A” to Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements™ section of our Report of even date to the members of SUVAS
HOLDINGS LIMITED(“the Company®) on the standalone financial statements as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2016

ifi.

In respect of its Fixed Assets:

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Fixed Assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of one year, which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
fixed assets. Pursuant to the programme the fixed assets have been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Leaschold rights and its Title deeds for leasehold land on which project is being
implemented are in the name of the Company

In respect of its Inventory:

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the
Management are rcasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
the nature of its business. :

(c) On the basis of our examinations of the inventory records, in our opinion, the
Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies if any noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material
and have been properly dealt in the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to  companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership
(LLP) or other parties covered by clause (76) of Section 2 of the Aet and in the
Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans and advances to its Directors, made any investment, given any
guarantees and provided any security and therefore there is no contravention of the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Aect.

501, Samadhan, Chandavarkar Road Extension, Vazira Naka,Borivali West, Mumbai 400091
Email keighavar@yahoo.co.uk; Mobile +91 9820056084
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vi,

vii.

viii.

ix.

Jhavar Ladha & Associates

Chartered Accountants

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year to which the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 and 76
of the Act and the Rules framed there under apply.

In our opinion, the provisions of sub-section (1) Section 148 of the Act, regarding
maintenance of Cost Records are not applicable to the company during the year since the
company has not yet started any business activity which attracts the said provisions for
maintenance of cost records.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax,
Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees” State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(¢ )There is no amount due in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
[ncome-tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
Cess and other material statutory dues which were in dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayments of loans or
borrowings to any financial institutions, bank or Government or dues to Debenture
Holders as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not raised any 1PO or further Public Offer during the year. However the
Company has taken term loans for the project and the same were applied for the purpose
for which the term loans were obtained. Repayment of the same has not yet started and
therefore reporting is not required for the same

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company and no significant fraud on the Company by
its Officers and employees noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

501 Samadhan, Chandavarkar Road Extension, Vazira Naka,Borivali West, Mumbai 400091
Email kemjhavar@yahoo.co.uk; Mobile +91 90820056084
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Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV,

XVi.

Jhavar Ladha & Associates

Chartered Accountants

The Company has been paying any managerial remuneration to its Manager which is in
accordance with section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. Total remuneratien paid

during the year isRs. 6,93,737/-

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore there is no need to comply the
provisions of a Nidhi Company and rules specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out

the liability.

The Company has not entered into any related party transaction during the year with the
related parties. Whenever such transactions are entered the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards and in
accordance with the provisions of Section 188 and 177 of the Act.

The Company has not raised any funds by way of Prefrential allotment or on the basis of
Private Placement of Shares or for fully or partly paid up Convertible Debentures during
the year and therefore requirement of Section 42 of the Act are not required to be

complied.

The Company has not entered into any Non-cash Transaction with the Directors or
persons connected with them during the year.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 since it is not carrying any activity which requires its registration as
such.

For JHAVAR LADHA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
irm Registration No. 104223W

CA Kailash Jhavar (Partner)
Membership No. 70521

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2016

501, Samadhan, Chandavarkar Road Extension, Vazira Naka,Borivali West, Mumbai 400091
Email kemghavar@yahoo.co.uk; Mobile +91 9820056084
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SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders' Funds

Share Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Money received against Share Warrants

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-terns Borrowings
Deferred Tax Liabilities {(Net)
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term Provisions

Current Liabilities
Trade Payables

} Other Current Liabilities
Short-term Provisions

Total

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assels
Tangible Assels
Intangible Asscts
Capital Work-in-Progress ( Refer Note 28 )
Non-Current Investments
Long-term Loans and Advances
Other Non-Current Assets

Curreni Assets

Current Investmenis

Inventories

Trade Receivables

Cash and Bank Balances
Short-Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assels

Total

Significant accounting policies

As af

Note No. March 31, 2016
'y 70,835,300.00
g (408,902.79)
70,426,397.21

‘5 88,500,000.00
"G 1,139.00
88.501,139.00

‘7' 44.200.00
'8 8.469,214.00
9" 29,732.00
8,543,146.00

167.470,682.21

10 136,309.00
11 152,646,497.64
2 3,231,469.00
13" 6,290,000.00
162,304,275.64

"4 4,686,569.57
15 479,837.00
5,166,406,57

167,470,682.21

I2$

The accompanying notes are integral part of the Fiuancial Statements

As per our report attached of cven date

for JHAVAR LADHA & ASSOICATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104223W

CA Kai Jhavar{Partner)
M.No. F -070521

Place: Mumbai dated April 30, 2016

67

As at

March 31, 2015

70,835,300.00
(632,972.29}

70,202.327.71

17,500,000.00
1,608.00

17,501,608.00

23,300.00
24,708,502.00

24,731,802.00

112,435,737.71

249,312.00

102.052,019.67

1,347.,090.00
6,290,000.00

109,938,421.67

1,668,490.04

828,826.00

2,497,316.04

112,435,737.71

FOR SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

INWAITIOW

DIRECTORS DIty
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SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

REVENUES

Other Income
Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expenses

Finance Cost

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenses
Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax
.Exccptional items
Profit before Extraordinary items and tax
Extraordinary Items
Profit before tax
Tax Expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax
Tax Adjustment for earlier year
Profit/ (Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations
Profit/ {(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations afier Tax
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing Operations
Tax Expenses of Discontinuing Operations
Profit/ (Loss) for the period

Earnings per Share (EPS):
Basic EPS {'Rs}
Diluted EPS (Rs’)

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report attached of even date

for JHAVAR LADHA & ASSOICATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104223W

CA Kailash Jhavar(Partner)
M.No. F - 070521

Place: Mumbai dated April 30, 2016

Note No.
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¥For the year

ended

March 31, 2016

562,019.00

562,019.00

22,138.00
196,934.50

219,072.50

342,946.50

342,946.50

For the year

ended

March 31, 2015

637,925.00

637,925.00

4.404.00
£,283,189.29

1,287,593.29

{649,668.29)

(649,668.29)

342,946.50

173,664.00
(469.00)
(54,318.00)

(649,668.29)

197,100.00
(711.00)
(74,463.00)

224,069.50

(771,594.29)

224,069.50

(771,594.29)

0.03
0.03

(0.11)
(0.11)

FOR SUYAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

¢
3

DIREC

/%,L/W%V'

o POy Gernt ey

o

Q/MT%%W Pivk (107



SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

Note No.

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

C.

Net Profit before Tax
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Impairment Loss/ (Reversal) (Net)
Unrealized Foreign Exchange (Gain)/ Loss (Net)
Finance Costs
Provisions/ {Provisions wrilten-back) (Net)
Loss/ {gain} on Derivative transactions (Net)
Investing Activities {Net)- Intcrest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in working Capital:
Change in Investories
Change :n Trade and other Receivables
Change in Trade and other Payables
Cash peneration from Operation
Payment of Direct Taxcs
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Operating Activitics

. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (including WIP and Capital Advances)

Sale of Fixed Asscts

Purchase/ Sale of Investments (Net)

Proceeds/ Repayment of Advances and Loans from Subsidiaries (Net)
Interest Received

Interest Received on Income Tax

Dividend Received

Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Shares

Proceeds from Long-term Borrowinps

Repayment ol Long-term Borrowings

Proceeds/ Repayment of Shori-term Borrowings (Net)
Finance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid (including Dividend Tax)

Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Financing Activities

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivvalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash cquivvalents af the end of the year 14!

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand

Balance with Banks
On Current Accounts

Significant accounting policies and Notes to Financial

Statemients "2

for JHAVAR LADHA & ASSOICATES
Chartered Accounfants
firm Registration No, 104223W -

havar(Partner)
M.No. F -070521

Place; Mumbai dated April 30, 2016
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For the year
ended

March 31, 2016

342.946.50

22,138.00

(562,015.00)

(196,934.50)

334,485.00

(16,218,388.00)

(16,080,837.50)
(75,110.00)

(16,155,947.50)

(45,417,726.97)

561,219.00
800.00

{44,855,707.97)

71,000,000.00

(6,970,265.00)

64,029,735.00

3,018,079.53

1,668,490,04
4,686,569.57

1,431.00

4,685,138.57

4,686,569.57

For the year
ended

Mareh 31, 2015

(649.668.29)

4,404.00

(637,925.00)

(1,283,189.29)

(504,974.00)

24,693,791.00

22,905,627.71
(115,122.00)

22,790,505.71

(47,033,700.67)

036,485.,00
1,440.00

(46,395,775.67)

£,000,000.00
17.500,000.00

{455,629.00)

25,044,371.00

1,439,101.04

229,389.00
1,668,490.04

43,346.00

1,625,144.04

1,668,490.04

FOR SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

0,

DIRECTORS
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SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2016

Corporaie Infermation

Suvas Holding Company Limited is a Company formed and registered under the Companies Act, 1956. The company's identilication
nimber is U40500MH2001ULC128785. Company is a subsidiary company of Hindalco Industries Lid. Which iolds 51% equity shares of
the Company. The main object of the Company is generation of hyde] power and aceordingly company is setting up a project for
generation of Hydel Power,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial stalements have been prepared and presented under the historicai cost convention and on the aeerual basis of accounting
except otherwise stated, and in accordance with gencrally accepied accounting prineiples in India (indian GAAP). These financial
statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Aecounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended and other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013,

All assets and liabititics have been classified as current / noncurrent as per the Company's normal aperating eycle and other crileria set out
in Schedule 11 of {the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and services and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / noncurrent classification of
assels and liabilities.

The accounting policies adopled in preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year.

Use of IEstimates

The preparation of financial stalements in eonformity with generally accepied accounting principles in India (Indian GAPP) requires
Management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affeet the reporied amount of assets, liabilitics, revenues and expenses and
disclosure of contingent Habilities on the date of the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the
relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of financial statements, which in management's opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actuat
results may differ from these cstimates.

Fixed Tangiblc and Intangible Asseis

Tangible Asscts

Tangtble assets are stated at their original cost (net of cenvet and mvat where applicable) including freight, duties, cusioms and other
incidental expenses relating 1o acquisition and installation less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss il any. Interest and other
finance charges paid on loans for the acquisition of tangible qualifiying assets are apportioned to the cost of fixed assets till they are ready
for use. :

Expenditure incurred during the period of construction is carried as capital work-in-progress and on completion the costs are atiocated to
the respective fixed assets.

When an asset is scrapped or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation are removed {rom the books of account and resultant
profit (including capital profit) or loss, if any , is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on written down value methiod over the useful life of the asset prescribed in Part C of Schedule
it of the Companies Act, 2013 in order 1o reflect the actual usages of the assets. Individual assets acquired for less than Rs. 5000 are
entirely depreciated in the year of acquisition. Depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis for the assets purchased/sold during the year.

Machinery spares which can be used oniy in connection with an item of Fixed Asset and whose use 18 not of regular nature are written off’
over the estimated useful life of the relevant assel,

Leasehold rights acquired and premium paid on such righis is written off over a period of remaining life of the assets under lease and
writlen off on straight line basis over the period ol useful life after the assets are put 1o use.

Intangible Assets
All intangible assets are measured at cost and amortized so as to reflect the pattern in which the assets' economic benefits are consumed.
Software capitalised is amortised over useful life of three to five years cqually commencing from the year in which, the sofiware is put to

usc.

Impairment

An assel is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net
selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful life of the assets. An impairment
loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Foss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount, (Goodwil)
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Leases
Lease paymenls under an operating lease are recopnized as expense in the statement of Profit & Loss Account as per lerms of lease
agreement o commencement of commereial activities

Investments
{a). Long term investments are carried at cost after deducting provision, if any, for diminution in - value considered (o be other than
(b). Current investments are stated at fower of cost and (air value.
Inventories
(a). Inventaries of stores and spare parts are valued at or befow cost afier providing for cost of  obsofeseence and other anticipated
losses, wherever considered necessary,
(b). Inventories of items other than those stated above are valued ‘Al cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower’. Cost is

generally determined on weighted average cost basis and wherever required, appropriaie overheads are taken into account. Net
Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary 10 make the saie.

(c). Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the Tinished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost,
Foreign Curreney Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded al the raic of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. Year end balance of foreign
currency transactions is lranstated at the year end rates. Exchange differences arising on setflement of monetary items or an reporting of
monetary iems at rales different from those at which they were initiatty recorded during the period or reporied in previous financial
statements are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits

Employce benelits of short ferm nature are recognized as expense as and when it accrues. Long term employee benelits (c.g. long-scrvice
leave) and post employment benefits (e.g. gratuity}, both funded and unfunded, are recopnized as expense based on actuarial valuation at
year end using the Projected unit eredit method. Actuarial gain and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit & Loss Account,

Revenue Recognition

Sales revenue is recognized on transfer of significant risk and rewards of the ownership of the poods 1o the buyer and stated at net of trade
discount and rebates. Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is established. Export
incentive, eerlain insurance, railway and other claims where quantum of accruals can not be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are

aecounted on acceptance basis.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. In determining the amount of borrowing costs cligible for capitalization
during a period, any income earned on the lemporary investment of those borrowings is deducted from the borrowing costs incurred.

Taxation

Provision for currenit income tax is made in accordance with the Income tax Act, 1961, Deferred tax liabilities and asscts are recognized at
substantively enacted tax rates, subject to tbe consideration of prudence, on timing difference, being the difference between taxabie income
and accounting income that originale in one period and are capable of reversal in ehe or more subsequent periods.

Researelt and Development
Expenditure ineurred during research phase is charged to revenue when no intangible asset arises from such research. Assets procured for

research and development activitics are generally capitalized.

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance that the same will be received. Revenue grants are recognized in
the Profit & Loss Account. Capital grants relating 1o specific fixed assets are reduced from the gross value of the respective fixed assets.
Other capital granis are credited to Capital Reserve.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent AssetsImpairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill
Provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event thal probably requires an out{low of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amourit of the obligation. Disclosure for contingent lability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. No provision is recognized or
disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote. Contingent Assel is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements,
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SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2016

. Share Capital:
. Authorized, Issued, Subseribed and Paid-up Share Capital

As al
31/03/2016 3H03/2015

Authorized:
9,000,000 (Previous year 9,000,000) Equity Shares of = 10/- cach. 90,000,000.00  90,000,000.00

90.000,060.00  90,000,000.00

Issueed:
7,083,530 (Previous year 70,83,530) Equity Shares of ~ 10/ each 70,835,300,00  70,835,300.00
: 70,835,300.00  70,835,300.00

Subscribed and Paid-up:
7,083,530 {Previous year 70,83,530) Equity Shares of * 10/~ each fully paid-up 70,835,300.00  70,835,300.00

70.835,300.00  70.835,300.00

(). 3,612,600 Equity Shares (Previous year 3,612,600 cquity shares) ol the Company are held by Hindalco Industries Limited, the holding company.

{ii} Terms / rights attached to cquity shares
The Company has only onc class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled 1o one vote per share,

‘B. Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstan ding:

Year ended
31032016 | 3130015 |

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the period/year 7,083,530 6,283,530
Equity Shares issued during the period - 800,000
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the period/year 7,083,530 7,083,530

. Sharcholder holding more than 5 percent shares of the Company:

31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Percentage of | Numbers of Numbers of
Name of shareholder Holding Shares held Shases held
Hindalco Indusiries Limited 51 3,612,600 3,612,600
Laxmi Organic Industrics Lid 49 3,470,930 1,470,930
. Reserves and Surplus:
Reserves and Surplus consist of the following:
As al
31/03/2016 3TA03/2615 I

General Reserve
Profit and Loss Account Surplus/{Deficit) (408,902.79) (632,972.29)
(408,902.79) (632,972.29)

For the year ended 31/03/2016 additions and deductions under each head since last balance sheet are as under;

Opening Addition Deduction CLOSING
General Reserve - . . -
Profit and Loss Account - (a) (632,972.29) 224,069.50 - (408,902.79)

(631297229 224,069.50 - (408,902.79)

For the year cnded 31/03/2015 additions and deduetions under each head since last bafance sheet are as under:
Opening Addition Deduction CLOSING

General Reserve

Profit and Loss Account - (a) 138,622.00 (771,594.29) (632,972.29)

13863300 (771.594.39) - (632,072.29)

{a). Details of allocations and appropriation for balance in statement of Profit and Loss are given below:

As at
31/03/2016 31/03/2015_ |
As per last Balance Sheet (632,972.29) 138,622.00
Add: Profit for the year 224,069.50 (771,594.29)

(408,902.79) (632,972.29)
Less: Trans[ler to General Reserve

Closing Balance (408,902.79) (632,072.29)




5.

Long Term Borrowings

Secured
Term Loan
.- From Banks

Note:-
t. Naturc of Security and Terms of Repayment of Secured Borrowings:-
a) Rupee Term Loan Seeured by Hypothecation of all the movable assets, book debis
including future assets.
b} Further secured by way of assignment/hypothecation of all the rights, interess,
benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in the Project documents
including PPA and MOU and all permits and approvals pertaining to the project.

¢} Corporate guarantees of Hindaleo industrics Ltd & Laxmi Organic industries Lid. on
several basis.

d) Further secured by personat guarantces of two promoter directors namely 1) Shri
Ravi Vasudeo Goenka and i) Shri Rajeev Vasudeo Goenka.

¢) Repayment of the Joan shall be repaid in 44 structured quarterly instaiments starting
from 30th Scpt., 2016 or earlicr if the project is compieted before 30/06/2016.
Prepayment of any foan amount is without any pre-payment eharges

1) Rate of interest is Axis Bank base rate plus 150 bps( presently 1].75%) p.a. payable
every month.

2} Instalmnets fagiling duc during the financial year 2016-17Rs.___ hasnol
been bifurcated inio shord term liabifity since the Project is yet to be completed and
generation of power is (o be started.

Deferred Tax Liability-(net)

a) Deferred Tax Liability
On Depreciation:~
As per last Balance Sheet
For the current year {transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss)

Sub Total

b} Deferred Tax Asset:
1) On Provision for Leave Salary

ii) Others

Sub Total

¢) Net Deferred Tax Liability {a+b)

Trade Payables

Trade Payables - Goods
Trade Payables - Expenses .

Other Current Liabilitics
Other current Liabilifies consist of the following:

Employees Liabilities

Payable to holding Co.for Expenses
Liability for Capital Expenditure

Interest payable on Teem Loao

Retention Amount payable to Contractors
Statutory dues

Others

As al

340322016

3140322015

§8.500,000.00 |

7.500.000.00

88,500,000.00 1

7.300,000.00

As al
31/03/2016 31/0372015
1,608.00 2,319.00
(469.00} {7111.00)
1,i39.00 1,608.00
1,139.00 1,608.00
As al
3140372016 31403/2015
44,200.00 23,300.00
44,200.00 23,300.00
As at
31/03/2016 31/03/2015
- 614.00
- 19,225,078.00
- 156,877.00
8,204,914.00 5,002,185.00
£06.327.00 248,35%.00
£57,973.00 75,389.00
8,469,214.00  24,708,502.00




9 Short-Term Provisions
Other short term provision consisi of the following:

As at
3140372016 31/03/2015
PPravision for retirement benefits B -
Provision for Tax (Net of payment) 29,732.00 -
Other Current Liabifities (Expenses payable) - -

29.732.00 -
i Tangible Asscts
Summary and net earrying amount of each elass of tanpible assels are given below:
As al
31030016 31/03/2015 |
Cost 333,256.00 277,539.00
icss: Accumulated Depreeiation (196,947.00) (28,227.00)
Less: Aceumulated hmpairment - -
Net Carrying Amoun 136,309.00 249,312.00
Net Carrying Amount
Frechold Land - - -
Leasehold Land - - -
Office Cabin §2,477.00 223 878.00
Furniture & Fixtures 12,768.00 17,229.00
Office Equipment 41,064.00 8.205.00
136.309.00 24%.312.00

Reconciliation of the Gross and Net Carryinp Amount of each class of tangible Assets for year ended 31/03/20£6 are as under:

As at Additions/
3170372015 Acquisition Adjustments Deduetions 310372016

Cost
Freehold Land - (h) - - . - -
Leasehold Land - {(c) - - N N -

Office Cabin 226,546.00 - - - 226,546.00
Furniture & Fixtures 18,100.00 - - 18,100.00
Office Equipment 32,893.00 - 55,717.00 - §8.610.00

277,539.00 - 55,717.00 - 333,256.00

Accumulated Depreciation

Freehold Land - “ . R -
Leascheld Land - . R - -
Office Cabia 2,668.00 - 141,401.00 144,069.00

Furniture & Fixtures 871.00 - 4,461.00 - 5,332.00
Office Equipment 24,688.00 - 22,858.00 - 47,546.00
28.227.00 - 168,720.00 - 196,947.00

Accumulated Impairment

Frechold Land - - - . .
Leascheld Land - - - - -
Office Cabin - - - .
Furniture & Fixtures - - - R -
Office Equipment - - - - -

Reconciliation of the Gross and Net Carrying Amount of each class of tangible Assets for the year ended 31/03/2015 are as under:

As at Additions/ Currency
31/03/2014 Acquisition Adjustments Deductions Transtation
Cost
Frechold Land - (b) - - - . -
Leaschold Land - (c) - - - - -
Office Cabin 226,546.00 - 226,546.00
Furniture & Fixtures £8,100.00 - 18,100.00
Office Equipment 31,293.00 - 1,600.00 - 32,893.00
31,293.00 - 246,246.00 - 271,539.00
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Accumualaied Depreciation
Freehold Land - R R

L.easchold Land . .
{fice Cabmn 2,668.00 - 2.668.00

Furniture & Fixtures 87100 - 871.00
Office Lguipment 20.282.00 - 4,406.00 - 24 688.00
20,282.00 - 7.945.00 - 2822700

Accumulated Jmpairment

Frechold Land R R R . .
Leasehold Land - - . - .
Office Cabin - . - - -
Furniture & Fixtures - - - - -
Qffice Equipment - ) . . . .

11 Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital Work-in-Progress consist of the following:

As al
31/03/2016 3170322015 ]

Construetion and other Work-in-Progress 128,270.646.00  91.021,715.00
Expenditure during Construction pending allocation (a) 24,375,851.64  11,030,304.67
152,646,497.64  102,052,019.67

(a). Detail of Expenditure during Construction pending allocation are given below:

As at
31/03/2016 31/03/72015 —|

[ixpenditure during the year

Employee Benefits Expenscs 711,199.00 61%,030.00
(her Expenses:
Fess to Contraclual Personnel 1,207,761.00 708,195.00
Consijtancy Fees 1.404.901.00 1.345,640.00
Interest on Term Loan 6,970,265.00 455,629.00
Loan Processing Fees : - 2,198,886.00
Lepal Fees - 299.699.00
Travelling expenses 546,140.00 23834127
Security Charges 128,814.00 -
Generator Running Cost and Expenses 622,497.00
Fabrication Charges 1,228,64037
Rent Paid 16,000.00 16,000.00
Testing Charges 79,115.00 -
Deepreciation on assets {o be capitalised 146,582.00 3,541.00
Miscellanecus Expenses 283.632.60 58,981.40

13,345,546.97 5,944,242.67

Income during the year
Other Income - -
13,345,546.97 5,944.242.67
Add: Batance brought forward from previous year 11,030,304.67 5,0806,062.00
24375,851.64  11.030,304.67
Less: Amount allocaied 1o Fixed Asscts - -

Balance pending allocation 24375,851.64  11,030,304.67

12. Leng-term Leans and Advances

Leong-Term Loans and Advances consist ol the following:

Asal
31/03/2016 314032015

Security Deposits
Secured, Considered Good - -
Unsecured, Considered Good - Sates Tax Deposil 5,000.00 5,000.00
- Capital Advances 3,226,469.00 ,342.090.00
3,231,465.00 £,347,020.00
Less: Allowance for bad and deubtlu} Joans and advances - -
3,231,469.00 t,347,090.00

13. Other Non-Current Assets

Other non-current Assets eonsist of the following:

As al
31/03/2016 31/03/2015 —I

Accrued Income Lo -
Non-current Bank Balance (Refer Note - 14) 6,290,000.00 6,290,000.00

6,290,000.00 6,250,000.00




14. Cash and Bank Balances:

16.

17.

Cash and Bank Balances consist of the following:

Balance with Banks;
Margin Moncy Accounl
Deposits with ariginal maturity of less than 3 months
On Current Accousnt
Cash on Hand

Other Bank Balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but fess than 12 months
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months #%

Less:- Amount disclosed under other non current asset (Refer Note -13)

*%  Ineludes fixed deposit with lier in favour of Govt, of Maharashira Rs. 62,90,000/— (Previous year Rs. 62,90,000/)

. Other Current Asscts

Other Current Assets consist of the foliowing:

Accrued Interest

Curreni Tax Assets (Net of Provisions)
Rent Deposit

MVAT Refund Reeeivable

Prepaid Expenses

Other Income:

Other Income consisi of the following:

Interest Income
On Inter Corporate Deposits and Fixed Deposits

On Others
Other Non-Operating Income (Nef)

Less: Other Income transferred to Capital Work-in-Progeess (b)

Employcc Benefits Expenses:
Employee Benefits Expenses consist of the following:

Salaries and Wages

Ex-(ratia

Employee Stock Option Seheme
LTA and Medical Expenses
Employee Welfare

Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress

Finance Charges

Interest on Term Loan

l.ess: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Propress

As al

331/0322016

30372015

4,685,138.57
1,431.00

1,625,144.04
43,346.00

4,686,569.57

1,668,490.04

6,290,000.00 6,290,000.00
(6,290,000,00)  (6,290,000.00)
4,686,569.57 1,668.490.04
As at
31/03720146 11032015 |
397.909.00 774,061.00
- 14,504.00
53,360.00 8,000.00
15,333.00 14,250.00
13,235.00 18.011.00
479,837.00 828,820.00

Year ended

21/03/2016 31/03/2015
561,219,00 636,485.00
800.00 1,440.00
562,019.00 637,925.00
562,019.00 637,925.00
Year ended
3170372016 31/032015 |
587,472.00 523,179.00
65,710.00 58,500.00
40,555.00 37,351.00
[7,462.00 -
711,199.00 619.030.00
781,199.00 419,030.00
Year ended
: ]
6,970,265.00 455,629.00
6,970,265.00 455,629.00
6,970,265.00 455,629.00




19 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses:

20

21.

22.

23.

[Depreciation Expenses
Amortization Expenses

iess:- Transfcrred to Capital work in Progress

Other Expenses:
Onther Expenses consist of the foliowing:

Generator Running cost and expenses
Fabrication Charges
Advertiscmend Charges

Rates and Taxcs

Auditors’ Remuncration (a)

Bank Charges

Fees to contractual personnel
Consultancy Fees

Security Charges

Capital 1ssue Expenses
Travelling Expenses

Loading and Unloading Expenscs
Testing Charges

Loan Processing Fees

Legal Fees

Rent for quarter

Miscellancous Expenses

Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress

(a). Dctails of Audilors’ Remuneration arc as follows:

Statutory Auditors:
Audit Fees
Certification and others

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconcitiation of Cash and Cash Equivalents arc given below:

Cash and Bank Balance as per Balance Sheet

Add: Current Invesiments maturing within 3 months
Less: Balances with desigancted aceounts not available for use
Less: Bank deposits with initial maturity excceding 3 months

Employee Benefits

No Employee has put in requisite services as required 1o become eligible for the benefits, and aecordingly no
proviston has been made in the accounts during the year for such liability and benefits,

Earning per Share (EPS)

Net Profit

Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of EPS:
Weighted average number of Basic Equity Shares outstanding
Weighted average number of Diluted Equity Shares outstanding

Face valuc of per share (7}

Basic EPS (Rs.)
Diluted EPS (Rs.’)
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Year ended

310372016 310032015 ]
168,720.00 7.945.00
168,720.00 7,945.00
146,582.00 3.541.00

22,£38.00 4.404.00
Year caded

31/03/2010 31/03/2015
622,497.00 -

1,228,640.37 -

- 5,000.00
2.500.00 2,500.00
22,900.00 37,000.00
86,306.50 55,350.26

1,207,761.00 708,195.00

1,404,901.00 1.345,640.00
i28,814.00 -

- £,104,530.00
546,140.00 238,341.27
276,082.60 57.081.40
79,115.00 -
- 2,198,886.00

. 299.999.00

146,000.00 16,000.00
92,778.00 80,709.03

5.714,43547 6,149,231.96

551750097  4.866,042.67
196,934.50 1.283,189.29

22,900.00 20,000.00
- 17,000.00

22.900.00 37,000.00
As al

31/63/2016 31/03/2015

4,686,569.57  1.668,490.04

4.686,569.57 1,668,490.04
Year caded

31/03/2016 3117032015 |

224,069.50 (771.594.29)
7,083,530 6,715,311
7,083,530 6,715,311
10,00 10.00

0.03 {0.11)

0.03 (0.11)



24, Related Par{y Disclosure
a. MName of the related parties where controf exists:
i Hindalco Industries Lid.

b, Others - with whom transactions have been taken placeduring the year
H Names of other related parties
Laxmi Orpanic Industries l.1d

¢.  Key Management Personnel:
i Names of other related party
Gaurav Sidhapura

Nilesh Bhosaic Manager

d.  Transactions with Hotding Company
i Issuc of Equity Shares
i1 Reimbursement of expenses paid/payable
it Corporale Guaraniee given for Seeured Loan

e. Transactions with Assoeiate Company
1 [ssue of Equity Shares
il Corporate Guarantee given for Secured Loan

Nature of relationship
Holding Company

Nafure of relationship
Associate company

Nature of relationship
Company Seeretary

{. Transaetions with Key Management Personne!l : Mr.Nitesh Bhosale (Managerial remuneration)

As at
31/03.2016 310372015

- 4,080,000
- 614
99,042,000 99,042,000
- 3,920,000
95,158,000 95,158,000
693,737 619,030

25, Information related to Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Miero, Small and Medium LEnterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME
Development Act), are given below. The information given below have been determined to the extent such cnterprises have been identified on the basis of

information available with the Company:

(a). Principal amount due
(b). Interest on Prineipal amount due
{e). Interest and Principal amount paid beyond appointment day

(d). The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond
the appoinied date during the year) butl without adding the amount of interest speeified under MSME Development

Act.

{e). The amount of interest accrued and remaiing unpaid at the end of the year.

~—

(f). The amount of further inferest remaining due and payabic even in the succeeding years, untii sueh datc when the
interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the Smail enterprise, for the purpose of disaflowance as a deductible

expenditure under seetion 23 of MSME Development Act.

26, Contingent Linbilities and Commitments {to the extent not provided)
A. Contingent Liabilities

(a). Claims against the cempany not acknowledged as debt:
{b). Guarantees
B. Commitments

(a). Estimated amount of eontraets remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

27 The Company has been incurring the expenses during construction period for implementation of 1lydel Power Project and
therefore such expenses which are directly atiributed to the power project are shown as expenses under eonstruction period

pending allocation and will be atlocated 1o various assets on compietion of the project.

28 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary.

for JHAYAR LADHA & ASSOICATFES
hartered Accountants

havar{Partner)
M.No. F -070521

Plage: Mumbai dated April 30, 2016

!

FOR SUVAS HOLDINGS LIMITEDx

B Lo

CarmTPany Secstteny
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As at
31/0372016 311032015 |
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
As al
310032016 3140372015
6,290,000 6,260,000
96,760,351 90,949,862



UTKAL ALUMINA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HINDALCO — ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hindalco — Almex Aerospace Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

4.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

T'tce Wate;-/lo

* ChartereMntants

N3g 2%
Mumbar
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Hindalco — Almex Aerospace Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Page 2 of 3

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 2016, and its loss and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9.

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and
on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A.

p Wa ter/,
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Chartered untants
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Hindalco — Almex Aerospace Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Page 3 of 3

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2016, on its
financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 27.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2016 for which there were no material
foreseeable losses. The Company does not have derivative contracts as at March 31, 2016.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2016.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E

Chartered Accountants
-l
Sumut Seth
Mumbai Partner
April 30, 2016 Membership Number: 105869
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Hindalco
— Almex Aerospace Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016.

1.

ii.

iii.

1v.

vii. (a)

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme

(©

(b)

viii.

designed to cover all the items over a period of 2 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a
portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 10 on fixed assets to the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of service tax though there has been a slight delay in a case, and is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, sales tax, income tax,
duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of sales-tax, income-tax, duty of customs, service-tax and value
added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of
Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

e Wate"/loq

* Chartered tants *
N3p 1%
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph g of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Hindalco — Almex
Aerospace Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Page 2 of 2

xi.

xii.

Xiii.

xiv.

The Company has paid managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not made any [;referential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

P

Sumit Seth

Mumbai Partner
April 30, 2016 Membership Number: 105869
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Hindalco —~ Almex Aerospace Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Page1of 2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hindalco — Almex Aerospace
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

jce Water/lo
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Hindalco — Almex Aerospace Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Page 2 of 2

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sumit Seth
Mumbai Partner
April 30, 2016 Membership Number: 105869.
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
Share Capitat
Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Long-term Provisions

Current Liabilities

Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Other Current Liabilities

Short-term Provisions

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets

Intangible Assets

Capital Work-in-Progress
Long-term Loans and Advances

Current Assets

Current Investments

Inventories

Trade Receivables

Cash and Bank Balances
Short-term Loans and Advances

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial
statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration No: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

4
Seth
Partner
Membership No. 105869

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016
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As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Note Rs. Rs.
3 885,578,720 885,578,720
4 250 534) (99,306,414)
760,328,186 786,272,306
5
6 9,297,681 7,516,951
9,297,681 7,516,951
7
21,840,825 12,619,553
8 6,983,937 8,346,796
9 1,294,910 313,000
30,119,672 21,279,349
799,745,539 815,068,606
10 587,263,211 593,276,936
11 - -
- 25,075,427
12 866,139 837,290
588,129,350 619,189,653
13 130,343,206 67,269,467
14 60,196,829 79,974,038
15 15,677,469 37,596,613
16 1,680,560 1,707,279
17 3,718,126 9,331,556
211,616,189 195,878,953
799,745,539 815,068,606

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Madhukar Manilal Bhagat

Director
DIN No. 00006245

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 20

Turalkar

16

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 20

16

-]
Prowan Kumas MadusludoAs
Director

DINNo. 00(#2¢¢

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016



HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

REVENUES

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed

Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress
Employee Benefits Expenses

Power and Fuel

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Loss before Tax
Tax Expense:

Current Tax and Deferred Tax
Loss for the Year

Loss Per Equity Share (Rs.) [Nominal value per share: Rs. 5,
March 31, 2015: Rs. 5]
- Basic and Diluted

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial
statements.

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Note Rs. Rs.
18 370,299,095 434,109,930
19 5,476,466 4,689,410
375,775,561 438,799,340
20 243,055,123 295,153,924
21 14,479,577 11,040,019
22 38,290,644 34,049,366
23 18,843,518 28,328,432
24 680,537 - 814,196
25 37,326,259 38,442,383
26 49,044,022 48,446,768
401,719,681 456,275,088
(25,944,120) (17,475,748)
(25,944,120) (17,475,748)
34 0.15 0.10

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration No: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

P
Sumit Seth

Partner
Membership No. 105869

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Madhukar Manilal Bhagat

Director
DIN No. 00006245

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016

rikant
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016

Proaven Ksamo Mosushud ol

Director
DIN No. O01%4 26

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016

cer

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016



HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs. Rs.

A - CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss Before Taxation (25,944,120) (17,475,748)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and Amortization 37,326,259 38,442,383
Interest on Income Tax Refund (69,369)
Gain on Redemption of Mutual Funds (net) (5,373,739) (4,470,340)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 7,826 35,542
Provision for Doubtful Debts 12,112
Finance Costs 680.537 814,196

32,652,995 34,752,412
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 6,708,875 17,276,664
Adjustments for changes in working capital
Inventories 19,777,209 14,894,665
Trade Receivables and Loans and Advances 29,913,057 (11,900,958)
Trade Payables, Current Liabilities and Provisions 10,172.829 (8,231,765)

59.863.095 (5 238 058)
Cash Flow Generated From Operations 66,571,970 12,038,606
Refund of Income tax including interest on refund and Tax deducted at 298,830
source
Net Cash Flow From/ (Used In) Operating Activities 66.571.970 12.337 436
B - CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (8,218,152) (8,187,654)
Redemption of Current investments 149,000,000 163,500,000
Purchase of Current Investments (206,700,000) (167,100,000)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (65,918,152) (11,787,654)

C - CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest and Financing charges (680,537) (814,196)
Net Cash Flow Used In Financing Activities (680,537) (814.196)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Eguivalents (A+B+C) (26,719) (264,414)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,707,279 1,971,693
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,680,560 1,707,279
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents __(28,719) (264,414)

Note :
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) 3
"Cash flow Statement" as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No: 301112E

Chartered Accountants

. Lo ‘,
Seth Madhukar Manilal Bhagat Paoween Kumos Madadind A
Partner Director irector

Membership No. 105869 DIN No 00006245 DIN No. © 0 1Y 34

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016

Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

1  Significant Accounting Policies:

(M

(ii)

(iif)

Accounting Convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis.
Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014, till the Standards of accounting or any addendum are prescribed by
Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting
Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall
continue to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in
all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the
Companies Act, 1956 [(Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006), as amended],
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule lil to the Companies Act, 2013.The
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non
current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 vide its notification dated 30 March 2016. The said
notification read with Rule 3(2) of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 is
applicable to accounting period commencing on or after the date of notification i.e. 1 April
2016.

Fixed Assets

(a) Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss,
if any. Cost comprises purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the assets
to its working condition for its intended use.

(b) Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation and Amortisation

(@) Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of the assets as given below. These estimated useful lives are in accordance
with those prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of
plant and machinery wherein the estimated useful lives are greater than those under
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 based on a technical evaluation.

Asset Useful Life
Plant and Machinery 25 Years
Building 30 Years
Computers 3 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Servers 6 Years
Furniture 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

(b) Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on straight line basis.
Amortisation on additions/ deletions to intangible assets is calculated pro-rata from/ up to
the date of such additions/ deletions.

(c) Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period, starting from the date of the lease
deed.
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Investments

Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Fair value is determined on the
basis of realisable market value.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
such transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the Balance Sheet. Gains and losses arising
on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on settlement/ translation of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments in respect of foreign currency
transactions on account of highly probable forecast transactions or firm commitments. Gains /
losses in respect of such instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
settlement during the year. Open forward contracts as at the Balance Sheet date are marked
to market and resulting losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Resulting
gains, if any, are ignored.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of fixed assets are

capitalised to the cost of the fixed assets up to the date on which the asset is put to use/
commissioned.

(viii) Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company contributes on a defined contribution basis to Employee’s Provident Fund
and Employee’s Pension Scheme towards post employment benefits, all of which are
administered by the respective Government authorities, and has no further obligation
beyond making its contribution, which is expensed in the year to which it pertains.

The Company contributes on a defined contribution basis to superannuation towards
post employment benefits, which is administered by Life Insurance Corporation (LIC)
administered superannuation fund and has no further obligation beyond making its
contribution, which is expensed in the year to which it pertains.

(b) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan viz. Gratuity, for all its employees. Gratuity
liability is funded with the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Liability for the defined benefit plan of Gratuity is determined on the basis of an actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary at the year end, which is calculated using
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses, which comprise experience
adjustment and the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Employee Leave Entitlement

Employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per leave policy of the Company.
Liability in respect of unutilised leave balances is provided based on actuarial valuation”
carried out by an independent actuary as at the year end and charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements require estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the Balance Sheet.
Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known / materialise.

Accounting for Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.
(a) Current Taxation

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for
the year as per ‘The Income Tax Act, 1961, of India.

(b) Deferred Taxation

e Deferred tax resulting from timing differences between book and tax profits is
accounted for under the liability method, at the current/ substantively enacted rate of
tax to the extent that the timing differences are expected to crystallise.

o Deferred tax assets arising in situations where there are brought forward losses and
unabsorbed depreciation, are recognised only when there is a virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that such assets will be realised.

inventories
(a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

(b) Cost of raw materials and stores and spares is determined on weighted average basis.
Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises raw material, direct labour, other
direct costs and related overheads, but excludes interest expense. Net realisable value
is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of the business, less the
estimated costs of completion and estimated selling expenses.

Revenue Recognition

Sales revenue is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods to the buyer and is recorded net of sales tax/ value added tax.

Impairment of Assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an
asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered
as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount
of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their
recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is
higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and its value in use. Value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at
each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have
decreased.
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

(xiv) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation but the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure as specified in Accounting Standard
29 — “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” is made.

The Company has been granted approval to set up authorised SEZ operations vide letter no.
SEEPZ SEZ/NEW SEZ /MIDC-SHENDRE/01/LOA-01/2007-08/2198 dated April 5, 2007, by
Government of India, Office of the Development Commissioner Seepz Special Economic Zone
(‘SEZ’), Ministry of Commerce and Industry, at the SEZ developed by MIDC Shendre at
Aurangabad.
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Rs. Rs.
. Share Capital

Authorised:
450,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each (March 31, 2015: 450,000,000 2,250,000,000 2,250,000,000
Equity Share of Rs 5 each)

2,250,000,000 2,250,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

177,115,744 (March 31, 2015: 177,115,744) Equity Shares of Rs 5 each, paid up 885,578,720 885,578,720
(Of the above, 172,115,744 (March 31, 2015: 172,115,744) Equity Shares of Rs

5 each, paid up, are held by the holding company, Hindalco Industries Limited)

885,578,720 885,578,720
. Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the reporting period:
As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
Rs. Number of shares Rs.
Balance as at the beginning of the year 177,115,744 885,578,720 177,115,744 885,578,720

Add: Shares issued during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

. Terms / rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.5 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the
event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, in proportion to their shareholding.

. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of equity Shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2016

Name of shareholder Number of Shares  Percentage of Number of Shares Percentage of

held Holding held Holding
Hindalco Industries Limited 172,115,744 97 18 172,115,744 97.18

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
. Reserves and Surplus

Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Balance at the beginning of the year (99,306,414) (81,830,666)
Add: Loss for the year (25,944,120) (17,475,748)
Balance at the end of the year (125,250,534) (99,306,414)
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
5. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Depreciation and Amortisation 25,868,808 25,630,294
25,868,808 25,630,294
Deferred Tax Assets:
Unabsorbed Depreciation as per Income Tax Act, 1961 of India (limited to 25,868,808 25,630,294
the extent of deferred tax liabilities)
25,868,808 25,630,294
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
6. Long-Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits:
Provision for Leave Entittement (Refer Note 38) 4,782,640 3,595,000
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 38) 4,515,041 3,921,951
9,297,681 7,516,951
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
7. Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note - -
31)
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small 21,840,825 12,619,653
enterprises
21,840,825 12,619,553
8. Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customers 264,224 239,623
Liabilities towards Purchase of Fixed Assets 428,511 2,409,556
Statutory dues including Provident Fund, Tax Deducted at Source and Indirect 3,906,826 3,831,474
Taxes
Employee Related Liabilities 2,384,376 1,866,143
6,983,937 8,346,796
9. Short-term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefitls:
Provision for Leave Entitlement (Refer Note 38) 389,000 313,000
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 38) 905,910 -
1,294,910 313,000
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
12. Long-term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 200,000 200,000
Loans and advances to Employees 55,563 116,854
Other Advances
Advance Tax.(Tax Deducted at Source) 46,853 46,853
Prepaid Expenses 224,690 134,550
Others 339,033 339,033
866,139 837,290
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

Current Investments

At cost or market value, whichever is less:

Mutual Funds {Unquoted):

Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - DIRECT- Growth (543,290 Units; March 31, 2015.
303,870 Units)

Inventories

Raw Materials (Includes in transit Rs.Nil; March 31, 2015 Rs. 3,283,056)
Stores and Spares

Work-in-Progress (Aluminium Billets)

Finished Goods (Aluminium Billets)

Trade Receivables

Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months (from the date they are due for
payment)

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Outstanding for a period less than six months (from the date they are due for
payment)

Unsecured, Considered Good

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Balance with Banks:
Current Accounts
Cash on Hand

Short-term Loans and Advances

Unsecured, Considered Good
Loans and Advances to Employees
Loans and Advances for Trade
Unapplied Advance with Asset Management Company for purchase of Mutual
funds
Other Advances
Service Tax Receivable
Value Added Tax Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Others
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As at
March 31, 2016
Rs.

130,343,206

130,343,206

16,953,425
19,963,263
23,280,141

60,196,829

2,113,800

15,677,469
17,791,269

2,113,800
15,677,469

1,672,953
7,607
1,680,560

64,864
2,573,342

281,377
39,165
759,378

3.718.126

As at
March 31, 2015
Rs.

67,269,467

67,269,467

27,450,323
14,763,997
36,256,191

1,503,527
79,974,038

2,101,689

37,696,613
39,698,302

2,101,689
37,596,613

1,667,914
39,365
1,707,279

74,426
4,967,831
2,000,000

1,070,186
161,973
797,790
259,350

9,331,556

Chartereligaetntant



18

19.

20.

21.

HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

B

134

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
. Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products
Finished Goods (Aluminium Billets) 365,516,398 429,608,879
Other Operating Revenues
Scrap Sales 4,782,697 4,501,051
370,299,095 434,109,930
Other Income
Gain on Settlement of Derivatives (Net) 66,918 149,701
Gain on Redemption of Mutual Funds (Net) 5,373,739 4,470,340
Interest on Advance Refunded for Labour Law Matter 35,809 -
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 69,369
5,476,466 4,689,410
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
Aluminium Metal 207,886,304 252,302,880
Copper 13,273,396 17,664,283
MN Master Alloy 11,146,892 14,154,253
Other Materials 10,748,531 11,032,508
243,055,123 295,153,924
Where of:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 |
Amount (Rs.) Percentage (%) Amount (Rs.) Percentage (%)
Indigenous 209,884,939 86.36 259,262,029, 87.84
Imported 33,153,644 13.64 35,891,895 12.16
Total 243,038,583 295,153,924
Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress
Opening Stocks
Finished Goods 1,503,527 2,284,961
Work-in-Progress 36,256,191 46,514,776
37,759,718 48,799,737
Less: Closing Stocks
Finished Goods - 1,603,527
Work-in-Progress 23,280,141 36,256,191
23,280,141 37,759,718
14,479,577 11,040,019

-
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
. Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries, Wages, Allowances and Other Benefits 33,701,693 28,896,575
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 38) 2,327,544 2,049,746
Gratuity (Refer Note 38) 1,499,000 2,257,000
Staff and Labour Welfare 762,407 846,045
38,290,644 34,049,366
. Power and Fuel
Electricity Charges 6,714,700 6,297,135
Fuel Charges 12,128,818 22,031,297
18,843,518 28,328,432
. Finance Costs
Interest Expenses 563,572 664,730
Bank Charges 126,965 149,466
680,537 814,196
. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 37,326,259 38,442,383
37,326,259 38,442,383
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
26. Other Expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spares 4,714,857 4,274,514
Rates and Taxes 611,307 611,387
Communication 282,235 287,338
Travelling and Conveyance 4,633,586 4,204,491
Printing and Stationery 200,422 284,636
Legal and Professional 4,643,431 3,508,419
Auditors’ Remuneration (Refer Note 28) 1,068,000 882,350
Freight 209,479 1,100,353
Marketing Support Fee 11,936,288 11,266,510
Insurance 1,559,759 2,009,301
Repairs to Buildings 357,890 37,000
Repairs to Machinery 6,260,000 7,722,998
Material Handling Lease Expenses (Refer Note 30) 3,668,317 3,744,627
Packing Expenses 1,003,296 1,012,729
Water Charges 725,775 688,168
Provision for Doubtful Debts 12,112 -

Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 633,679 967,762
Watch and Ward Expense ' 2,578,294 2,476,474
Information Technology Maintenance 1,784,625 1,839,304
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,160,670 1,528,407
49,044,022 48,446,768
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27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.

Contingent Liability
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:

Income Tax Matters - 876,573

Labour Law Matters 339,033 339,033
Auditors' Remuneration debited to Other expenses
As Auditors:

Audit Fee 850,000 700,000

Tax Audit Fee 150,000 150,000

Qut-of-Pocket Expenses 68,000 32,350
Total 1,068,000 882,350
Managerial Remuneration
Salaries, Wages, Allowances and Other Benefits 5,678,447 5,076,970
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 535,118 496,911
Total 6,213,565 5,573,881

Note:

Provision for leave entitiement and gratuity which are based on actuarial valuation done on an overall Company basis are

not included in above.

Operating Lease Transactions

The Company has entered into leasing arrangements for material handling equipments that are renewable on a periodic
basis and cancellable in nature. Rent for operating leases included in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is Rs.

3,668,317 (March 31, 2015: Rs. 3,744,627).

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, which came into force on 2nd October, 20086,
certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Based on the information
available with the Company, none of its suppliers are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 as at March 31, 2016.
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
32. Derivative Instruments:

Foreign Currency Contracts:

The Company entered into contracts for derivative instruments, which were not intended for trading or
speculative purposes. There are no derivative instruments as on March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015.

Net Foreign Currency exposures that are not covered by derivative instruments are as follows:

e Payables USD 163,693 (Rs. 10,858,225) (March 31, 2015: USD 196,616 (Rs. 12,306,256))
e Receivable USD 304 (Rs. 20,206) (March 31,2015: USD 3,453 (Rs. 216,133)).

33. Segment Reporting
(i) Information about Primary Business Segment

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of manufacturing, processing and dealing in

aluminium billets. This, in the context of Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting, is considered to

constitute a single primary segment. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of
segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets,
total amount of charge for depreciation during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements for the

year ended March 31, 2016 and as on that date.

(i) Information about Secondary Geographical Segments:

Amount
India Outside India Total
External Revenue 357,307,791 12,991,304 370,299,095
1 109
Carrying amount of Segment Assets
1
6,113,889 6,113,889
10 597

Note: Amounts in brackets relate to the year ended March 31, 2015
(i) Note:

Segment revenue in the geographical segments considered for disclosure is as follows:
- Revenue within India includes sales to customers located within India and earnings in India.

- Revenue outside India includes sales to customers located outside India, earnings outside India

34. Loss Per Equity Share
For the year Ended For the year Ended
March 31. 2016 March 31. 2015

Loss after Tax (Rs 25,944,120 17.475,748
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding 177,115,744 177,115,744

durina the vear .
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share (Rs.) 0.15 0.10
omn an Share 5 5
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016

AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

35. a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Marketing Support Fee

b) Earnings in Foreign Currency

FOB Value of Exports Sales

36. CIF Value of Imports

Purchase of Capital Goods

Purchase of Raw Material
Purchase of Stores and Spares

139

For the year
ended
March 31, 2016
Rs.
11,936,288

For the year
ended
March 31, 2016
Rs.
12,743,917

For the year

For the year
ended
March 31, 2015
Rs.

11,266,510

For the year
ended
March 31, 2015
Rs.

20,106,344

For the year

ended ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.
2,631,007 8,937,425
25,981,087 30,950,355
6,185,787 5,063,960
c e Wa ter /z
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
37. Related Party Disclosures:

i) Relationship:

Description of relationship Names of related parties
(a) Holding Company Hindalco Industries Limited
(b) Key Management Personnel Abhey Agarwal

Note:

Name of the related party and nature of the related party relationship other than where
control exists have been disclosed only if there are transactions with such parties.

ii) Particulars of transactions with Related Parties For the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2016 Amount (Rs.) 31, 2015 Amount (Rs.)

a) Hindalco Industries Limited (HIL)
i) Transactions

Reimbursement of Expenses to HIL 362,834 344 574
Interest Expenses 545,273 634,604
Purchase of Raw Material 104,938,665 150,369,637
Sale of Finished Goods 31,432,213 177,509
Reimbursement of Expenses by HIL 11,118

ii) Closing Balance
Trade Payable 2,669 13,498

b) Abhey Agarwal

i) Transactions

Remuneration 6,213,565 5,573,881

ii) Closing Balance
Other Current Liabilities 417,948 384,670
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HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

38. Employee Benefits

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

Defined Contribution Plans

a Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund

b Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s Pension Scheme, 1995
c. Superannuation fund

During the year, the Company has incurred and recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Year Ended
March 31, 2016
(Amount in Rs.)

- Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund and Employee’s Pension Scheme 1,691,172
- Superannuation fund 636,372
Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 22) 2.327.544

Defined Benefit Plan
Contribution to Gratuity Fund

a. Major Assumptions (% p.a.)
Discount Rate 7.50%
Expected Rate of Retum on Plan Assets 8.75%
Salary Escalation Rate @ 8.00%

@ The estimates for future salary increases considered takes into
account the inflalion, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors.

b. Change in Present Value of Obligation (Amount in Rs.)
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 7,547,478
Current Service Cost 658,000
Interest Cost 566,000
Benefit paid
Actuarial Loss/ (Gain) on Obligations 592,000
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 9,363,478

c. Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets {Amount in Rs.)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year 3,625,527
Expected Retum on Plan Assets 317,000

Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain on Plan Assets
Contribulions

Benefits paid
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 3,942,527
d. Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (Amount in Rs.)
and the Fair Value of Assets
Present Value of Funded Obligation 9,363,478
Fair Value of Plan Assets 3,942 527
Funded Status 3,942,527
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation 5,420,951
Unfunded Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (Refer 5,420,951
Note 6 and 9)
Disclosed under Long-term Provisions (Refer Note 6) 4,515,041
Disclosed under Short-term Provisions (Refer Note 9) 905,910
e. Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Amount in Rs.)
Current Service Cost 658,000
Interest Cost 566,000
Expected Retumn on Plan Assets (317,000)

Acluarial Losses Recognised in the year
Tolal expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 22)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(Amount in Rs.) (Amountin Rs.) (Amountin Rs.) (Amountin Rs.)
Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet
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Year Ended
March 31, 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

1,465,892
583,854
2,049,746

(% p.a)
7.50%
8.75%
7.50%

{(Amount in Rs.)
4,998,478
452,000
450,000

1,647,000
7,547,478

{(Amount in Rs.)
3,333,527
292,000

3,625,527
(Amount in Rs.}

7,547,478
3,625,527
3,625,527
3,921,951
3,921,951

3,921,951

(Amount in Rs.)
452,000
450,000
(292,000)

7

Year Ended
March 31, 2012
(Amount in Rs.)

Present Value of Obligation as at year end (9,363,478} (7,547,478) (4,998,478) (4,427,628) (3,614,430)

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year end 3,942,527 3,625,527 3,333,527 2,917,648 2,329,462

Unfunded Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (Refer 5,420,951 3,921,951 1,664,951 1,509,980 1,284,968

Note 6 and 9)

Disclosed under Long-term Provisions (Refer Note 6) 4,515,041 3,921,951

Disclosed under Short-term Provisions (Refer Note 9) 905,910
g. Experience Adjustments

On Plan Liabilities (153,000) (323,000) (98,000) (196,000) (269,000)

On Plan Assels {5,000) 68,000 (2,000)

Total Experience Adjustment (153,000) (323,000) (103,000) (128,000) (271,000)
h. Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on change in assumption (439,000) (1,324,000) 329,000

Expected contribution to the Funds in the next year 905,910 500,000

Plan Assets are invested in Insurer Managed Fund 1c@ Wa te"/l 0,

1
artered Accountan
* *
FRngzp 2%
Mumbal



HINDALCO-ALMEX AEROSPACE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

Note 38 (Contd.)

il Other Employee Benefit
The liability for leave entitlement and compensated absences as at year end is Rs.5,171,640 (March 31, 2015: Rs. 3,908,000)
(Refer Note 6 and 9)

39. The previous year figures have also been reclassified to conform to current year's classification wherever applicable.

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

.-rm-—a'i-fﬁ.,’—) b{\. & \qum_»f

Stimit Seth Madhukar Manilal Bhagat Powtrry Kumad, Makuhwshe
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 105869 DIN No. 00006245 DIN No. 9019y 2¢(
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016 Dated: April 30, 2016 Dated: April 30, 2016
o
A~
U

4 Shrikant Turalkar Suchit Naidu
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2016 Dated: April 30, 2016
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DAHEJ HARBOUR AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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EAST COAST BAUXITE MINING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
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TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED

- Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

161, SARAT BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA-700 026, (INDIA)
© : +91(0)33-2419 6000, 98362 33222 + E-mail : kolkata@singhico.com * Website : www singhico.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

W

MUMBAI NEW DELHI BANGALORE

CHENNAI AHMEDABAD
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Chartered Accountants ceeens.contd.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March 2016 and its loss and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following matters:-

The Supreme Court vide its judgment dated 25" August 2014 read with its Order dated 24th
September 2014 had de-allocated 204 coal block including the coal block allotted to the
Company and has issued necessary direction to Central Government with regard to these coal
blocks. Since the Company has been incorporated by the co promoters to share the coal block
allotted to them jointly and in view of the Supreme Court Judgement as mentioned above
relating to de-allocation of coal block allotted to the promoters, the going concern concept has
been vitiated and accordingly provision have been made in the statement of profit and loss so
as to bring down the assets and liabilities to their recoverable / payable value based on the
estimate made by the Management. Refer Note No. 1A & 18 to the financial statement.

Our report s not madified on this matter.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a.we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b.in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d.in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e.as explained under the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, the going concern concept has
been vitiated and necessary provisions have been made in the statement of Profit & Loss based
on the estimate made by the management;

f. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March 2016
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March
2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g.with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure 'B’, and
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Chartered Accountants veeens.cCOntd.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as on 31% March 2016;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SINGHI &CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 302049E

byt

(N. K. Surana)
Partner
Membership No. 053816

Place: Myywheu
Date : 94w vu..our 205,
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Annexure ‘A’ referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Tubed Coal Mines Ltd. (the Company)

L. All the fixed assets of the Company have been classified under the head current assets since the
going concern concept has vitiated, accordingly paragraph 3 (I) of the Order is not applicable.

II, The Company has not yet commenced its commercial operation and accordingly does not have
any inventory. Hence, paragraph 3(II) of the order is not applicable.

III. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(III) of the Order is not applicable.

Iv. The Company does not possess any loans, investments, guarantee and security and hence,
paragraph 3 (IV) of the order is not applicable.

V.  The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public.

VI. The Company is not required to maintain Cost Records as prescribed by the Central Government
under section 148 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 2013.

VII. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, no undisputed
statutory dues as above were outstanding as at 31% March, 2016 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute as on 31% March 2016.

VIII. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to financial institutions, banks or debenture
holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(VIII) of the Order is not applicable.

IX. The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term loans during the year and accordingly the paragraph 3 (IX)
of the order is not applicable.

X.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or

on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.
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XI. The Company did not have any whole time director or manager during the financial year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (XI) of the Order is not applicable.

XII. The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (XII) of the Order is not
applicable.

XIII. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

XIV. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(XV) of the Order is not applicable.

XVI. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.302049E

e
(N. K. Surana)
Partner

Membership No.053816

Place: W) Lewhoud
Date: 9 Meary 2016,
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TUBED COAL MINES
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL').
These responsibilities .include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

W
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over finandal reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No, 302049E

NV
(N. K. SURANA)
Partner

@/‘ Membership No. 053816

Place: Murwpox
Date : G""‘\ MQ\r 1o} E
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BALANCE SHEET As At 31st March, 2016

As at As at
Note 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Audited) (Audited)
Rs. Rs.
[. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share Capital 2 452,945,000 445,900,000
Reserves and Surplus 3 (242,615,901) (218,319,435)
Share Application Money pending allotment 1,200,000 3,327,000
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 4 818,261 3,008,912
Other Current Liabilities 5 1,714 499,023
Short Term Provisions 6 129,803 1,163,247
Total 212,478,877 235,578,747
II. | ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Capital Work-in-progress 7 - -
(including pre operative expenses)
Current Assets
Recoverable Project Expenses related to deallocated coal block 8 212,174,160 226,639,107
Cash and Bank Balances 9 94,210 2,786,028
Short Term Loans and Advances 10 152,268 6,059,704
Other Current Assets |13 58,239 93,908
Total 212,478,877 235,578,747

"

Significant Accounting Policies

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our Report annexed.
For SINGHI & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 302049E

{N K Surana)

Partner

Membership No. 053816
Place: M\Uvwheas

Dint

For and on behalf of the Board

Wiu&

R. Kasliwal

Director
oap 3334

irector
. \,/5 bl&2ur0!

Rajit Desai

Ravichandran Govindan
(Chief Execitive Officer)

Date: 1M Wiay 2\,
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period Ended on 31.03.2016

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
{Audited) (Audited)
Rs. Rs.
INCOME
Other [ncome 15,745 660,496
(Interest Received on Sweep Account)
Total Income 15,745 660,496
EXPENDITURE
Employees Benefits Expense 12 7,108,771 11,100,025
Finance Costs 13 31,278 2,189
Depreciation & Amortization 14 - 1,290,112
Other Expenses 15 8,331,137 3,993,260
Total Expenditure 15,471,186 16,385,586
Profit/(Loss) before Tax and Extraordinary [tems (15,455,441) (15,725,090)
Less:Non-recoverable Project Expenses related to de- 16 3,836,160 195,548,994
allocated coal block written off
Profit/{Loss) before Tax (24,291,601) (211,274,084)
Less: Current Tax 4,865 204,094
Profit/(Loss) after taxation (24,296,466) (211,478,178)
Earnings per Share
- Basic Before Extraordinary item (0.54) (0.36)
- Basic After Extraordinary item {0.54) 4.7
- Diluted Before Extraordinary item (0.54) (0.36)
- Diluted After Extraordinary item (0.54) {4.79)

Significant Accounting Policies

The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our Report annexed.
For SINGHI & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 302049E

M=t

(N K Surana)

Partner

Membership No. 053816
Place: WMuwwhyo s

Date: OJ'h\\\u.a 2616

For and on behalf of the Board

W8

K/MAJ-'O« to a\/( QW‘ |

R. Kasliwal Rajit Desai
Director Director

DM obe '3";4"\1 (4] (AF5Y
L\p,ﬁ

Ravichanfiran Govindan
(Chief Execitive Officer)
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TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE Period Ended 31.03.2016

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
{Audited) {Audited)
Rs. Rs.
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/(Loss) from Operations (24,291,601) {211,274,084)
Depreciation - 1,290,112
[nterest Earned {15,745) (660,496)
Loss on Sale of Assets 95,000 138,537
[nterest Paid 31,278 2,189
Non Recoverable Project Expenses relating to de allocated coal block 8,836,160 195,548,994
Balance written off 5,349,470 665,220
Changes in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances 576,845 (19,099,125)
) Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables (3,721,404) (750,210)
Direct taxes paid (26,728) (207,893)
Net Cash Flow from Qperating activities {13,166,725) (34,346,756)
B. [CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Amount realised against recoverable project expenses 5,539,334 10,800
Interest Received in Cash 48,851 960,387
Capital Advances - 190,679
Cash From/(Used In) Investing activities 5,588,185 1,161,866
C. [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Shares Issued 3,718,000 6,400,000
Proceeds from Share Application money 1,200,000 3,327,000
Interest Paid (31,278) (2,189)
Cash From/(Used In) Financing activities 4,886,722 9,724,811
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,691,818) (23,460,079)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents* 2,786,028 26,246,107
\_|Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents* 94,210 2,786,028

)

* Includes cash and bank balances only

As per our Report annexed.
For SINGHI & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 302049E

(N K Surana)

Partner

Membership No. 053816
Place: MUwidoi’

Date: ﬁ'h‘\\’\&wf 20\

W

Dinl

For and on behalf of the Board

&Mwo—(

R. Kasliwal
Director

oto 3504

~

Rajit Desai
Director
ped 2hae

Ravichandran Govindan
(Chief Execitive Officer)
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NOTES REFERRED TO IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Closing Balance

As At As At
31st March 2016 | 31st March 2015
{Audited) (Audited)
Rs. Rs.
Note No. 2 : SHHARE CAPITAL
Authorised :
60,000,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 600,000,000 600,000,000
{As on 31st March 2016 & 31st March 2015, 60,000,000}
Issued:
45,294,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. 452,945,000 445,900,000
(As on 31st March, 2016- 45,294,500 & 31st Mar . 20135 : 44,590,000)
Subscribed & Paid Up:
45,294,500 Equity Shares of Rs.1(/- each. 452,945,000 445,900,000
s on 31st March, 2016- 45,294,500 & 31st Mar . 2015 : 44,590,000)
A) Reconciliation of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
Reconciliation of Share Capital (Numbers of Shares)
Opening Balance 44,590,000 29,950,000
Add: Issued during the Year 704,500 14,640,000
Closing Balance 45,294,500 44,590,000
Reconciliation of Share Capital (Amount Rs.)
Opening Balance 445,900,060 299,500,000
Add: Issued during the Year 7,045,000 146,400,000
Closing Balance 452,945,000 445,900,000
Total 452,945,000 445,900,000
B) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each share holder of]
equity share is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
ets of the company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,
C) Shares held by holding Company
Out of the shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company are as below:
Hindalco Industries Ltd.
27,176,700 shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid wp in cash, 27,176,700 26,754,000
( As on 31st March 2015 :26,754,000)
D} Details of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the company
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash.
Hindalco Industries Limited, Holding Company ( % of holding - Current and Previous Year - 60 %) 27,176,700 26,754,000
The Tata Power Company Ltd.( % of holding - Current and Previous year - 40 %) 18,117,800 17,836,000
Note No. 3 : Reserves & Surplus
(SurplusyDeficit in Statement of Profit and Loss are as under: \}g/
Balance as per last financial statements 218,319,435 6,841,257
Add: (Profit)/Loss for the Year T A 24,296,466 211,478,178
' 242,615,901 218,319,435
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Notes Referred to in Financial Statements

Liabhilities As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
{Audited) (Audited)
Rs. Rs.
Note No. 4 : Trade Payables
Salary and other emoluments 3,760 1,530,860
Liability for Expenses 814,501 1,478,052
Total of Trade Payables 818,261 3,008,912
Note No. 5 : Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Payments 1,714 499,023
Total 1,714 499,023
Note No. 6 : Short Term Provisions
Provision for Leave Salary 69,303 1,102,747
Provision for Gratuity 60,500 60,500
Total 129,803 1,163,247
Note No. 7 : Capital work in progress As at As at
(including pre operative expenditure) 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
( Audited) { Audited)
Rs. Rs.
Capital Work-in-Progress consist of the following:
Construction Work-in-Progress - 122,727,633
Expenditure during Construction pending allocation:
Amount Transfereed due to Schedule IT Implemenatation - 376,349
Project Expenses - 1,639,266
Corporate Social Resonsibility - 331,792
Bank Guarantee Commission - -
Employee Benefits Expenses - 9,511,052
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses - 1,332,968
Power and Fuel - 328,135
Administrative & Other Expenses - 3,401,989
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses - 569,938
Total - 17,491,489
Add: Balance brought forward from previous year - 132,718,356
Total - 150,209,845
Less: Transferred to Profit & Loss A/c during the year - -
Balance peading allocation - 272,937,478
Less: Non recoverable expenses transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss
(195,548,994)
Less: Transfer to receivable exp. Related to coal block - (77,388,484)

Total Capital Work-in-Progress

W
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Notes Referred to in Financial Statements

a) Balances with Banks:
In current accounts

b) Cash in hand
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Tubed Coal Mines Limited

Notes Referred to in Financial Statements

Note No. 12 : Employees Benefits Expense

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Rs. Rs.
Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Gratuity etc. 6,820,681 21,563,077
{including payments to Contractors)
Contribution to Provident Fund 265,495 686,766
Welfare Expenses 22,595 27,551
Less: Transfer to Capital work in progress - (11,177,369)
Total of Employees Benefits Expenses 7,108,771 11,100,025
Note No. 13 : Finance Costs As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Interest expense 31,278 2,189
Total of Finance Costs 31,278 2,189
Note No. 14 : Depreciation & Amortisation As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Depreciation - 1,704,938
Amonrtization - 918,142
Less: Transfer to capital work in progress - (1,332,968)
Total of Depreciation & Amortisation - 1,290,112
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Note No. 15 : Other Expenses As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Auditor remuneration and other Fees 161,675 145,000
Books & Periodicals 4,722 -
Electricity Charges 164,927 -
Filing Fees 52,365 24,744
Guest House Expenses 188,765 -
Insurance 66,289 255,726
Misc. Expenses 14,349 4,213,372
Qutsourced contract Charges 922,093 -
Office Expenses 113,760 -
Printing & Stationery 573 -
Postage & courier 161 -
Professional Fees 13,390 301,282
Rent 660,590 1,303,408
Repair & Maintainance 137,798 85,635
Sundry balances Written Off (Net) 5,349,470 665,220
Security Charges 68,678 -
Telephone Expenses 122,694 -
Site Expenses 7,085 -
Travelling Expenses 94,664 406,550
Vehicle Expenses 57,598 492,621
Web Site Charges 13,680 -
Administrative Expenses 19,551 -
Bank Charges 1,260 -
Loss on Sale of Assets 95,000 138,537
Rates & taxes - 7,670
Training Expenses - 75,958
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses - 5,000
Bio Diversity Charges - 475,000
Recruitment Expenses - 2,340
Less: Transfer to capital work in progress - (4,604,803)
Total of Other Expenses 8,331,137 3,993,260
Note No. 16 : Non- recoverable Project Expenses As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
related to Coal Block
Project Development Expenses capitalised 8,836,160 195,548,994
Total of Non Recoverable Project Expenses 8,836,160 195,548,994




TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

D.

E,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

The Supreme Court of India, vide Judgment dated 25th August 2014 read with its Order dated
24th September 2014, has cancelled allocation of 204 coal blocks including Tubed Coal Block,
earlier allotted to the Company, and has issued necessary directions to Central Government with
regard to these coal blocks. In view of the said judgment, the going concern concept has been
vitiated and accordingly, necessary provisions have been made in the financial statements to bring
down the assets and liabilities to their realizable value. (Refer to Note 16 & 18).

Further, the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

USE OF ESTIMATES

Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences
between the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are
known/materialize.

FIXED ASSETS

1. Fixed Assets comprising both tangible and intangible are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortization. Cost of Fixed Assets is arrived at after including therein expenses
for bringing the respective assets to working conditions.

ii. Certain directly attributable pre-operative expenses during construction period are included
under Capital Work in Progress. These expenses are allocated to the cost of Fixed Assets when
the same are ready for intended use.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

1. Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets has been provided over Useful life of the Assets
specified in Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. Depreciation has been provided
on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition / installation.

ii. Mining Rights and leasehold land are amortized over the period of lease on straight line basis.
iii. Intangible assets have been amortized over its useful economic life of 5 years.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (For Purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

The Company's Cash and Cash Equivalents COl’I’lpI‘lSC cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash equivalents are short term’balances; highly liquid investments that are readily

W
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convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

F. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information

G. BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred. In determining the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization during a period,
any income earned on the temporary investment of those borrowings is deducted from the
borrowing costs incurred.

H. IMPAIRMENT

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value
being higher of value in use and net selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of
cash flow expected over the balance useful life of the assets. An impairment loss is recognized as
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been
an improvement in recoverable amount and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

I EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i. Short-term employee benefits: The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange of services rendered by employees is recognized during the
period when the employee renders the services. These benefits include salaries, wages, bonus,
performance incentives and leave travel allowance. The undiscounted amount of Short term
employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the pre operative expenditure pending
capitalization or Statement of Profit and Loss, as the case may be, in which the related service
is rendered.

ii. Defined contribution plans: Contributions paid/payable during the year to Provident Fund,
Superannuation Fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme are considered as defined
contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required
to be made.

iii. Defined Benefit Plans: For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund and post
retirement benefits, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains
and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested
and otherwise is amortized on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obliggtion: as.adjusted for unrecognized past service
cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is

W
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limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the schemes.

iv. The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company.
The liability in respect of leave entitlement is provided based on the actuarial valuation carried
out at the year end.

LEASES

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as expense in the statement of Profit &
Loss Account as per terms of lease agreement.

INVESTMENTS

i. Long term investments are carried individually at cost after deducting provision, if any, for
diminution in value considered to be other than temporary in nature.

ii. Current investments are stated individually at lower of cost and fair value

RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

The Company does not have any income except interest income during the current period. Interest
Income is recognized on an accrual basis. Expenditures are recognized on accrual basis and
provision has been made for all known expenses. The company is yet to commence its
commercial operation hence all the expenses except for administrative expenses are capitalized.
Administrative expenses not attributable to project are charged to statement of profit and loss.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Expenditure incurred during research and development phase is charged to revenue when no
intangible asset arises from such research. Assets procured for research and development
activities are generally capitalized

TAXATION

Provision for current income tax is in accordance with the Income tax Act, 1961, Deferred tax
liabilities and assets are recognized at substantively enacted tax rates, subject to the consideration
of prudence, on timing difference, being the difference between taxable incomes and accounting
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value. These are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events:hot“wholly within the control of the company
or a present obligation that arises from past e{énts where it is either not probable that an outflow
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TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED

of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is
termed as a contingent liability.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government Grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance that the same will be
received. Revenue grants are recognized in the Profit & Loss Account. Capital grants relating to
specific fixed assets are reduced from the gross value of the respective fixed assets. Other capital
grants are credited to Capital Reserve.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is translated at the yearend rates.
Exchange differences arising on seftlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period or reported in
previous financial statements are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they
arise. '

EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

\'S
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TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE:

17.

19.

20.

I. CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Capital Commitment

II. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Bank Guarantee outstanding

(Amount in Rs.)
As at 31-Mar-2016

(Amount in Rs.)

As at 31-Mar-2016

(Amount in Rs.)
As at 31-Mar-2015

{Amount in Rs.)

As at 31-Mar-2015

28,40,00,000

The Supreme Court of India, vide Judgment dated 25™ August 2014 read with its Order dated 24™
September 2014, has cancelled allocation of 204 coal blocks including Tubed Coal Block and has issued
directions to Central Government with regard to these coal blocks. Pursuant to these directions, Central
Government on 21 October 2014 has promulgated the Coal Mines (Special Provisions) Ordinance, 2014.

The Ordinance, inter alia, provides for reallocation of the cancelled coal blocks by way of auction to
successful bidders and one of the prior allottees (viz.,The Tata Power Company Limited) is only entitled to
participate in the auction process. The Ordinance also provides for compensation to the prior allottees
towards the cost of land and mine infrastructure etc.
Keeping in view of such de-allocation of Coal Block and being non-eligible to participate in auction
process the financial statements have been prepared on net realizable value, as mentioned in Note No. 1{A)

above.

Auditors’ Remuneration (Amount in Rs.) {(Amount in Rs.)
As at As At
As at 31-Mar-2016 31-Mar-2015
Statutory Audit Fee
1,14,500 1,00,000
Other Services
47,175 45,000
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Year Ended Year Ended
31-March-2016 | 31-March-2015
Profit / (Loss) after Tax as per the Statement of (24,296,466) (211,478,178)
Profit & Loss (Rs.)
Weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the period
~ No. of shares for Basic EPS 4,52.94,500 4,41,05,704
- No. of Shares for Diluted EPS 45,414,500 4,41,16,642
Face value per share (Rs) 10 10
EPS (before extra-ordinary item)
- Basic (Rs.) {0.54) (0.36)
- Diluted (Rs.) (0.54) {0.36)
EPS (after Extra-ordinary item)
- Basic (Rs.) _(0.54) (4.79)
- Diluted (Rs.) e TR (0.54) (4.79)

'
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TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED

21. Related Party Disclosures:
(In accordance with Accounting Standard 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India)

A. List of Related Parties

Name Relationship

Promoters

Hindalco Industries Limited Holding Company

The Tata Power Company Limited Joint Venture Partner

B. Particulars of transactions with related party with whom transactions took place during the period:
Nature of the | Related Party For the Year For the Year
Transaction Ended Ended
31-Mar-2016 31-Mar-2015

Reimbursement | 15 taleo Industries Ltd. 314,705 654,219
of expenses
Issuance of Share | Hindalco Industries Ltd. 4,227,000 87,840,000
Capital The Tata Power Co. Ltd. 2,818,000 | 58,560,000
Advance for Hindalco Industries Ltd. 2,100,000 3,327,000
Share Application
Money received The Tata Power Co. Ltd. 2,818,000 -
Sale of Fixed Hindalco Industries Ltd. 5,634,334 .
Assets
Closing Balance-
Due to Related Hindalco Industries Ltd. 1,200,000 3,327,000
Party
Closing Balance-
Liability for Hindalco Industries Ltd. 2,432 614
Expenses
Corporate Hindalco Industries Ltd. 170,400,000 -
Guarantee
Released The Tata Power Co. Ltd. 113,600,000 -
Corporate . .
Guarantee Hindalco Industries Ltd. - 170,400,000
Received /
Outstanding The Tata Power Co. Ltd. - 113,600,000

Notes:

{a) There have been no transactions with fellow subsidiary.

22. There are no Micro and Small Enterprise to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding as on
31st March 2016. This information as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act 2006 has been determined on the-basis-of information available with the Company.

S
23. Expenditure in foreign Currency — Rs Nil (Pre iR 5@;&; \il)




TUBED COAL MINES LIMITED

24.  Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis — Rs NIL (Previous Year Rs NIl ).

25.  Operating Lease ~the Company has not entered into any non- cancellable lease to which AS 19 applies. The
Company has entered into various cancellable leasing arrangement for office, residential premises in
respect of which Rs Nil (Previous Year Rs Nil /-) has been transferred to Capital Work in Progress and Rs.
6,60,590/- (Previous Year Rs. 1,303,408/-) has been recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss.

26. The provision for Gratuity & l.eave liability has been determined on actual basis and no actuarial valuation
has been carried out for the current financial year in view of the fact that the going concern concept has

been vitiated on de-aliocation of coal block as referred to in Note No. 1(A).

27. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report annexed For and on behalf of the Board

For: SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E

st ot o™ N\

(N.K Surana) R. Kasliwal Rajit Desai Ravichidndran Govindan
Partner Director Director (Chief Executive Officer)
Membership No. 053816 Dint D339 L bl sawreg

Place: Muwnwhol

Date: § ‘HAN]o\xful;, )

W
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MAUDA ENERGY LIMITED

B. K. MATHUR & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Office No. 303, White House, SV Road, Near Metro Rait Bridge, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400 058.
Telefax: 022 6708 3720 @ Mob.: 98202 83293 e E-mail: mathurbrijesh@ hotmail.com / mathurbrijesh@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of
Mauda Energy Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mauda Energy Limited (“the
Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
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financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016,
and its Profit/Loss and its Cash Flow for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “"Annexure” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. Since the Company’s only project is on hold as per management decision any no
commercial activities in the Company, the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls are
presently not relevant time being till start of operational activities by the Company.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations givan to us:
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For and on behalf of

B K Mathur & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number: 106096W

Q el Lol

Brijésh Mathur
Proprietor
Membership number: 039565
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30.04.2016
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“Annexure” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2016:

1.

The Company don’t have any fixed assets as on the balance date Hence, the
requirement of paragraph 3(1)(a), 3(1)(b) & 3(1)(c) of the said Order is not
applicable to the Company;

As the Company is yet to start project activities and under stage of applying for
various approval for implementation of the Project and time being put the project on
hold. Hence, the requirement of paragraph 3(ii) of the said Order is not applicable to
the Company relating to the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to
() of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not granted any loans, investment, guarantees, and security and
therefore the company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

As informed to us, the Company is yet to start project activities and under stage of
applying for various approval for implementation of the Project and time being put
the project on hold. Hence, the requirement of paragraph 3(vi) of the said Order Is
not applicable to the Company relating to maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2016 for a
period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax
outstanding on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has
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not taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the government and has
not issued any debentures.

9. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11. The company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act;

12.In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

13.In our opinion, there is no transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details of related parties
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

14. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

16. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For and on behalf of

B K Mathur & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 106096W

"ff;-&h o b~ Ma_@\h_,

“Brijesh Mathur
Proprietor
Membership number: 39565
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30.04.2016

212



Mauda Energy Limited
Tih ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016

{Rupees)
Particulars Notes March 31, 2016 March 31, 2065

Equity’& Liabilities § Amount Amount
Shareholder's Funds
Share Capital 3 17,50,000 17,50,000
Reserves & Surplus 4 (17,44,338) (3,00,403)
Share Application Money pending allotment - -

5,663 14,49,597

Nen-Current Liabilitics
Long-term borrowings - -
Trade payable - =
Other long term liabilities - -
Long-term provisions - -

Current liabilities
Short-lerm borrowings - -
Trade payable - -
Other current liabilities 5 33,778 33,146
Short-term provisions - -

33,778 33,146
TOTAL 39,440 14,82,743

Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible assests - -
Intangible assests - -
Capital work-in-progress 6 - 14,05,199
Intangible assests under development - -
Fixed Assets pertaining to discontinuing operation and - -
leld for sale

Non-current investments - -
Deferred Tax assets(net) - -
Long-term loans and advances - S
Trade receivables - -
Other non-current assets - -

s 14,05,199
Current assets
Current investments 5 .
inventories - .
Trade receivables - -
Cash and bank balances 7 39,440 77,544
Short-terin loans and advances - -
39,440 77,544
TOTAL 39,440 14,82,743

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
da Energy Limited.

As per our report of even date % w
For B. K. Mathur & Associates (\W
Chartered Accoitintants . '
F.RN. 106096W M‘*QK ircCtor Director

',"-u
Bri'emr i
L ve: AU
M. No. 39565

Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2016
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2016

Particulars

Continuing operations
Income

Revenue lrom opertaions
Other Income

Total Revenue {I)

Expenses

Cost of raw material & components consumed

Purchase of traded goods

(Increase}/decrease in inventories of fimished goods, WIP & traded
goods

Employee benefit expenses

Other expenses

Exceptional items

share of (Profit)loss from mvestment i parinership firm

Total (1Y

Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amotization
(EBITDAY (-(11)

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Finance cost

Profit/{Loss) before tax

Tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total tax expenses

Profit/{1oss) far the year from continuing operations (A)

Discontinuing operations

Profit/{Loss) before tax from discontinumng operations

Tax expenses of discontlineing operations

Profit/{L.oss) after tax from discontinuing operations (B)
Profit/{Loss) for the year (A+B)

Earning per equity shares (nominal value of shares Rs.10 -
{31 March 2016: Rs.10/-)

Basic & Diluted Earnings per share
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Noles March 31, 2016

Amount

8 14,43,935

(14,43,935)

(14,43,935)

(14,43,935)

(14,43,935

(8.25)

Mauda Energy Limited
7ih ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16

Ru iees

March 31, 2015

Amount

60,371

(60,371)

(60,371)

(60,371)

60,371

{0.34)



Mauda Energy Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2016

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (14,43,935) (60,371)
Adjusiments for:
Amortisation of pre-operative expenses/CWIP write off 14,05,199 -
Amoriisation of share issue expenses and discount on shares -
Operating prefit / {loss) before working capital changes (38,736) (60,371)
Changes in working capitai:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operaling assels: =
Amonrtisation of share issue expenses and discount on shares -
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payahbles 632 (5.569)
(38,104) (65,940)
Cash flow from extraordinary items = -
Cash generated from operations {38,104} {65,940)
Net income tax {paid} / refunds - -
Net cash flow from / {used in) operating activities (A} (38,104) {65,940)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances 14,05,199 -
Amortisation of pre-operalive expenses/CWIP wrile off (14,05,199) -
Amortisation of share issue expenses and discount on shares -
Cash flow from extracrdinary items - -
Net cash flow from / {used in) investing activities (B) - -
C. Cash flow from financing activities -
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital - 1.00,000
Cash flow from extraordinary items - -
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) - 1,00,000
Net increase / {decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {38,104) 34,060
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 77,544 43,484
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash 5 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 39,440 77.544
{38,104) 34,060

See accempanying notes forming part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Mauda Energy Limited.
As per our report of even date
For B. K. Mathur & Associates
Clurtered Accountants

FRAL106096W, o (3

{Brijesh hur} Parsrer Jat
M. No. 39565

Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2016

P
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Mauda Energy Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note Particulars
1|Corporate information
Mauda Energy Limited (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956. It's a 100% subsidiary company of Hindalco Industries
Limited. The Company is engaged in the setting up 20 MW coal based power plant at Mauda, Maharashtra
for generation & wheeling of enery. However as per the Management decision, the project is on hold for
time being.
2|Significant accounting policies

2.1|Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India {Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act 2013 to the extent applicable. The financial statements have
been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year,

2.2|Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to
make estimales and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities {including
contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimales and the differences between the actual results and the estimales
are recognised in the periods in which the resulis are known / materialise,

2.3|Capital work in progress
Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.
Incidental expenses during construction period and not directly related to the project are written off in the
year.

2.4|Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)
Cash comprises cash at bank in current account.

2.5|Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) before extraordinary items and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information.

2.6|Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect
of extraordinary items, if any) shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for
each period presented.

2.7|Taxes on income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the
accounting incorne that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods. It will be recognised if, there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income
available to realise such assets.
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Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2016
Notes - 3 Share Capital

Mauda Energy Limited
6th ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

(Rupeces)
Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Amount Amount
Authorized Shares
2,00,000 (31 March 2015:2,00,000) Equily shares of Rs.10/- cach 20,00,000 20.,00.000
20,00,000 20,00,000
Issued, Subscribed & fullv Paid-up shaves
1,75.000 (31 March 2015:1,75,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 17,50,000 17.50.000
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital 17,50,000 17,50,000
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting peried
Equity shares March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
QOrdinary Equity shares
At the beginning of the penod 17,50,000 16,50,000
Issued during the period - 1,00,000
Cutstanding during the period 17,50,000 17,50,008

Terms/right attached to equity shares

The cempany has only one class ol equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share.

Each holder is entitled to one vote per share The company declares & pays dividend in indian rupees only subject 1o approval of the sharcholders in

the Annual General meeting

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity 1s entilted to receive remaining assets of (he company.

Shares held by holding/uliimate holding company and/or their subsidiary/associates

Out of equity shares issued by the company,shares held by i1s holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaryfassociates are as

follows as below:

Equity shares March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

ITindalco Tudustries Limited, the holding company

174940 {174940) ordinary equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each 17,49,400 17,40 400

Mr. Praveen Maheshwari {as a Nominee of Hindalco Industries Ltd)

10 (10 ordinary equity shares of Rs. 10/ each 1043 1043

Mr. Aml Mathew (as a Nominee of Hindalco Industries Lid)

10 (10) ordinary equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 100 100

Mr. Alphense R. Das (as a Nominee of Hindaleo Industries Lid)

10 (£0} ordinary equity shares of Rs, 10/- each 100 1400

Mr. Debashis Ghosh (as 2 Nominee of Hindalco Industries Lid)

10 (10) ordinary equity shares of Rs, 10/- each 100 100

Mr. A, T. Mathew (as a Nominee of Hindalco Industries Lid)

10 (10) ordinary equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 106 10

Mr. Anil Malik (as a Nominee of Hindalco Industries Lid)

[0 (10) ordinary equily shares of R5.10/- each 100 100
Total 17.50,000 17,50,000

Aggregate nmber of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five

years immediately pregeeding the reporting date:
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Mauda Energy Limited
6th ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Equity shares

March 31, 2016

Mareh 31, 2015

Equity shares allotted as (ully paid bonus shares by capitahization of securities premium

Equity shares allotted as fully paid pursuent to contract for consideration other than cash

Eguity shares bought back by the company

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Holding Company including shares by its nominees - Number 1.75.000 1,75.000
- % of holding in the class 160 100
calls unpaid March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
by directors and oflicers - -
by others - -
Forleited shares . .
Notes (o financial statement for the year ended 31 March 20416
Notes-4 Reserves & Surplus
Particulars March 31, 2016 Muarch 31, 2015
Amounl Amount
Surplus/{deficit} in the siatement ¢f Profit and Loss
Balance as per last financial statement (3,00,403) (2,40,032)
Profit for the ycar (14,43,935) (60,371)
Less: Appropriations - .
Net surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss {17,44,338) {3,00,403)
Notes (o financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2016
Notes-5 Other current liabilitics
(Rupees)
Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Amount Amnount
Other liabilities
Hindalco Industries Lid - -
B K Mathur & Associates 33,778 33,146
Mehta & Mehta - B
Globe Stationery & Zerox - -
Total 33,778 33,046
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Notes-6 Capital_work-in-progress
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{Rupees)
Puarticulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Amount Amount

Fee for detailed project report 6,00,000 6,00,000
Payment for Environment Clearance 5,25,000 5,25,000
payment for soil survey work 240,199 2,40,199
Fee 1o pay and accounts officer- Mimstry of Coal 40,000 40,000
Pre-operative Expenses - -
Preliminary Expenses to the extend not writien off’ - =
Less:
CWIP write off (14,053,199

Total - 14,05,199
Notes- 7 Current Account - Cash & Bank balance
Balance with Bank - in Current account 39,440 T7.544
Cheque in Hand
Cash On Hand -

Total 39,440 77,544
Notes (o financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2016
Notes-8 Other Expenses

[Rupees)
Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31,2015

Payiment to Auditors - Audit Fees, elc 33,778 33,146
ROC L - Filing, Fees 409
Professional Fees to Mehta & Mehia for various services 3.371
Professional Fees to Vivek Awate & Co for signing of Form MGT 14 with MCA 843
Paid to MCA towards e-filing tees for Form MGT -14 & MGT - 7 2,458 1,227
Professional Tax for FY'16 2,500 21,373
CWIP wnite oft ** 14.05,199

Total 14,43,935 60,371
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Note 9 Additional Information to the financial statemen

ts

As at 31 March, 2016

As at 31 March, 2015

9.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
0] Contingent liabilities
(&) Claims against the Company nol acknowledged as debt {give details) - -
(b} Guarantees @ (give details) - -
(c) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable {give details) o =
(i} Commitments #
(a) Estimaled amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
Tangible assels - -
Inlangible assets - -
(b} Uncalled liakility on shares and other invesiments parily paid - .
(c) Other commitments (specify nature) -
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises
9.2 |Development Act, 2006
The Company has net received any memorandum {(as required lo be filed by the supplier with
the nolified authority under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006)
claiming their status as micro, small or medium enterprises. Consequently the amount
paid/payable to the parties during the year is nil.
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to lhe extent such parlies have
been identitied on the basis of information collected by lhe Managemenl. This has been relied
upaon by the auditors.
8.3|Related Party Disclosures:
{In accordance with Accounting Standard 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India)
i}|Related Parties
Hindaleo Induslries Limited - Holding Company
Reimbursemen of expenses 4,958 23,011
Issue of Shares . 1,00,000
9.4 Expenditure in foreign currency

No expenditure have been made in foreign currency during the year
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ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
Notes $000 5000 ~ $000 3000

Sale of product 3(a) 206,428 57,124 - -
Other revenue 3a) 1,473 1,893 1,798 2,741
Total revenue 207,901 59,017 1,798 2,74}
Cost of sales (223,989) (104,236) - -
Gross profit/ (loss) (16,088) (45,219) 1,798 2,741
Other income 3(b) 2,337 31,331 210 .
Exploration and evaluation expenditure (212) (143} - -
Administration expenses (6,788) (6,872) (255) (233)
Care and maintenance expenses 83 (286) - -
Suspension period expenses (Nifty) - (22,113) - -
Impairment of assets 16 (119,757) (197,906) - -
impairment of inter company receivables :
and investments i(e) - - (145,762) (30,054)
Other expenses Hey (999) (564) (999 (693)
(Loss)Profit from continuing operations

before income tax and finance costs (141,590} (241,772)  (144,308) (28,239)
Finance costs 3y (1,014) (999) {546) {1,696}
{Loss)/Profit before income tax from
continuing operations (142,604) 242,771y  (144,854) (29,935)
Income tax benefit/{expense) 5 B (14,860) 44,454 - (11,685)
(Loss)/Profit after income tax from (157,464) (198317)  (144,854) (41,620)
continuing operations ! ’ ! ’
Loss ai_’ter tax from discontinuing 23 (32,927) (21,395) (30,308) (163,340)
operations
Net (loss)/profit for the year (190,391} (219,712)  (175,162) (204,960)

Cenis Cents

{Loss)/Earnings per share;
Basic and diluted for (foss)profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent O (60.76) (70.10)
Basic and diluted for (loss)/profit from
continuing operations for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holdets of the
parent 6 (50.25) (63.28)

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
Notes $'000 $'000 $:000 5000

Net (loss)/profit for the year (190.391)  (219,712)  (175,162)  (204,960)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income which may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Cash flow hedges
Gain/ (loss) taken to equity - (1,298) - -
Transferred to income statement - (14,434} - -
Tax effect - 4,720 - "
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the
year, net of tax - (11,012) - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the
year, net of tax (190,391) (230,724)  (175,162)  (204,960)

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Derivative financial instruments
Other

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Trade and other receivables

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred exploration and evaluation expenditure
Deferred tax assets

Investment in controlled entities

Other

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payablecs
Interest-bearing liabilities
Provisions

Derivative financial instrumenis
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

{ssued capital
Accumulated {osses
TOTAL EQUITY

10
12
L

0
[0
13
14

13
I1

16
17

i8
12

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
Notes $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

67,642 55,226 23,927 45,619

40,851 20,962 8,138 292

19,073 55,929 . -

563 755 1.790 755

1,680 2,104 35 63

129,809 134,976 35,890 46,729

. - 1,035 39,928

- 10,830 - .

29,825 215,815 - -

2,000 15,545 . -

- 14,860 - .

. - 75,086 211,955

264 286 - -

32,089 257,336 76,121 251,883

161,898 392,312 112,011 298,612

19,405 22,505 14,078 27,902

- 1,279 - 650

5.870 3,675 . -

3,227 3,900 3,790 755

28,502 31,359 17,868 29,307

39,249 76,415 - -

39,249 76,415 - -

67,751 107,774 17,368 29,307

94,147 284,538 94,143 269,305

450,663 450,663 450,663 450,663

(356,516)  (i66,125)  (356,520)  (181,358)

94,147 284,538 94,143 269,305

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
Notes $000 $000 £000 £000

Cash flows [rom/(used in) operating
activities
Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 172,511 81,493 897 -
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive (167,413) (155,738) (4,728) (1,061}
of GST)
Payments for exploration and evaluation (212) {143) - -
Interest received 1.669 2,419 725 2,230
Finance charges (196) (505) (545) (1,696)
Receipts from close out of derivative contracts - 16,873 - -
Income Tax paid - {5,652) - (5,652)
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating
activities 25(a) 6,359 (61,253) (3,651) (6,179)
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Payments for plant and equipment {2,361) (1,960) - -
Payments for mine development (7,804) (14,204) . -
Payments for security deposits (30,811) (19,023) (7,620) -
Release of security deposits 42,214 - - -
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 165 - - -
Net proceeds from sale of Mt Gordon 28 4,652 - 4,652 .
Advances (to)/from subsidiaries - - (14,420) (88,4451)
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing
activities 6,055 (35,187) (17,388) (88,451)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
Repayment of loan (650} - {630) -
Net cash flows (used in)/ from financing {650) - (630) -
activities
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash 11,764 (96,440) {21,689) (94,630)
equivalents
Foreign exchange differences 1,281 14,261 (3} 6,178
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of
the year 54,597 136,776 45,619 134,071
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ~ 25(b) 67,642 54,597 23,927 45,619

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

CONSOLIDATED
At 1 April 2014

Net (loss)/profit for the year

Other comprchensive income — Cash
flow hedge

Total comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax

Dividends

At 31 March 2015

Net (loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income — Cash
flow hedge

Totai comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax

Dividends

At 31 March 2016

PARENT
Atl April 2014

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive incoine — Cash
flow hedge

Total comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax

Dividends

At 31 March 2015

Net profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income - Cash
flow hedge

Total comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax

Dividands

At 31 Mareh 2010

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note

Retained

Issued Profits/ Cal-sl:dFi:w Total Equit

Capital (Accumulated £ quiy
Reserve
L.osses)
5000 000 $'000 £000

450,663 53,587 11,012 515,262
(219,712) - (219,712)
- - (11,012) {11,012)
- (219,712) (11,012) (230,724)
450,663 (166,125) - 284,538
- (190,391) - (£90,391)
- (190,391} - (190,391
450,663 (356,516) _ - 94,147
450,663 23,602 - 474,265
- (204,960} - (204,960)
- (204,960) (204,960)
450,663 (181,358) - 269,305
(175,162} - (175,162)
- (175,162) - (175,162)
450,663 (356,520} - 94,143
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ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2816

()

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Corporate Information

The financial report of Aditya Birla Minerals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 29 May 2016.

Aditya Birla Minerals Limited (the parent) is a company limited by shares incorporated and
domiciled in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Stock Exchange with
effect from 12 May 2006.

The address of the registered office is Level 3, 256 Adelaide Terrace, Perth, WA, 6000.

Basis of Preparation
The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, applicable Accounting Standards and other

mandatory professional reporting requirements.

The financial report has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for trade receivables and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars (*000s) unless otherwise stated under the option available to the Company under
ASIC Class Order 98/0100. The Company is an entity to which the class order applies.

The Company has taken advantage of the relief referred to in ASIC Class Order 10/654 dated 26
July 2010 and in accordance with that Class Order, the Company has included its parent entity

tinancial statements as part of the accompanying financial report.

Except as noted below, the accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year.

For the purpose of preparation of the financial report, the Company is a for-profit entity.
Statement of Compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards and [nternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

New Accounting Standards and Iaterpretations

(i) Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

From | April 2015, the Group has adopted all new and amended Accounting Standards and
Interpretations effective as of | April 2015, including:-
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Reference Title Summary Impact on Group financial
report
AASB 2014-1 Amendments o § AASB 2014-1 Part A: This standard
Austratian sets out amendments to Australian

Part A -Annual
Improvements

2010-2012
Cycle

Accounting
Standards - Part A

Annual
Improvements to
IFRSs 20102012
Cycle

Accounting Standards arising from the
issuance by  the  International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) of
International  Financial  Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) Annual
[mprovements to [FRSs 2010-2012
Cycle and Annuai Improvements to
[FRSs 20112013 Cycle.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010~
2012 Cycle addresses the following
items:

B AASB 2 - Clarifies the definition of
'vesting  conditions' and ‘'market
condition” and introduces the definition
of 'performance condition' and 'service
condition',

B~ AASB 3 - Clarifies the classification
requirements for contingent
consideration in a business combination
by removing all references to AASD
137.

B-AASB 8 - Requires entities to
disclose factors used to identify the
entity's reportable segments when
operating  segments have  been
aggregated. An enlily is also required
to provide a reconciliation of total
reportable segments' asset to the entity's
total assets.

B-AASB 16 & AASB 138 - Clarifies
that the determination of accumulated
depreciation does not depend on the
selection of the valuation leehnique and
that it is calculated as the difference
between the gross and net carrying
arounts.

P AASB 124 - Defines a management
entity providing KMP services as a
reiated party of the reporting entity, The
amendments added an exemption from
the detailed disclosure requiremnents in
paragraph 17 of AASB 124 for KMP
services provided by a management
entfity, Payments made to a
management entity in respect of KMP
services should be separately disclosed.

No impact

Not applicable

A reconciliation of total
reportable segments’ assets
to the Group’s assets has
been given in note 22

No impact

Not applicable, the Group

has its own Board of
directors and local
management tecain o

manage business affairs.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Reference Title Summary Impaet on Group finaneial
report
AASB 2014-1 Amendmenis 1o | Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-
Australian 2013 Cycle addresses the following
Part A -Annual [ Accounting items:

Improvements | Standards - Part A
B AASBI13 - Clarifies that the portfolio | Ng impact

Annual exception in paragraph 52 of AASB 13
Improvements to applies 1o all contracts within the scope
[FRSs5 20112013 of AASB 139 or AASB 9, regardless of
Cycle whether they meet the definitions of

financial assets or financial liabilities as
defined in AASB 132,

B AASB 140 - Clarifies that judgment
is needed to determine whether an Not applicable
acquisition of investment property is
solely the acquisition of an investment
property or whether it is the acquisition
of a group of assets or a business
combination in the scope of AASB 3
that includes an investment property.
‘That judgment is based on guidance in

AASB 3.
AASB 2014-1 Amendments o | AASB 2014-Part B makes amendments | Not applicable
Australian in relation to the requirements for
Part B Accounting contributiens from employees or third
Amendments to | Standards - Part B parties that are set out in the formal
AASB 119 terms of the benefit plan and linked to
Defined Benefit service.
Plans: Employee The amendments clarify that if the
Contributions amount of the contributions is
(Amendments lo independent of the number of years of
AASB 119) service, an entity is permitted Lo

recognise such contributions as a
reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the related service is
rendered, instead of attributing the
contributions to the perieds of service,

(ii) Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretaiions that have recently been issued or amended but
are not yet effective have not been adopted for the annual reporting period ended 31 March 2016.
The Group is currently assessing the overall impact of the standards that are issued but not yet
effective. These are outlined as below:

a. AASB 9 Financial Insiruments
AASB 9 (December 2014) is a new standard which replaces AASB 139, This new version

supersedes AASB 9 issued in December 2009 (as amended) and AASB 9 (issued in December 2010)
and includes a model for classification and measurcment, a single, forward-looking *expected loss’
impairment model and a substantially-reformed approach to hedge accounting,

AASB 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. However, the Standard
is available for early adoption. The own credit changes can be early adopted in isolation without
otherwise changing the accounting for financial instruments.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Classification and meas urement

AASB 9 includes requirements for a simpler approach for classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of AASB 139. There are also some changes made in
relation to financial liabilities.

The main changes are described below.
Financial assets

a.Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified based on (1) the objective of the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets; (2} the characteristics of the contractual cash
flows.

b.Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive income. Dividends in respect
of these investments that are a return on investment can be recognised in profit or loss and there is
no impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument.

c.Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial
recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains and
losses on them, on different bases.

Financial liabilities

Changes introduced by AASB 9 in respect of financial liabilities are limited to the measurement of
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) using the fair value option.

Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilitics, the change in fair value is to be accounted
for as follows:

B The change attributable to changes in credit risk are presented in other comprehensive income
(OCI)

B The remaining change is presented in profit or loss

AASB 9 also removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk of
liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. This change in accounting means that gains or losses .
attributable to changes in the entity’s own credit risk would be recognised in OCI. These amounts
recognised in OCI are not recycled to profit or loss if the liability is ever repurchased at a discount.

Impairment

The final version of AASB 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment model that will require
more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, the new Standard requires entities to
account for expected credit losses from when financial instruments are first recognised and to
recognise full lifetime expected [osses on a more timely basis.

Hedge acconnting

Amendments to AASB 9 (December 2009 & 2010 editions and AASB 2013-9) issued in
December 2013 included the new hedge accounting requirements, including changes to hedge
effectiveness testing, trcatment of hedging costs, risk components that can be hedged and
disclosures,

Consequential amendments were also made to other standards as a result of AASB 9, introduced by
AASB 2009-11 and superseded by AASB 2010-7, AASB 2010-10 and AASB 2014-1 — Part E.

AASB 2014-7 incorporates the consequential amendments arising from the issuance of AASB 9 in
Dec 2014,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

s
.

AASB 2014-8 limits the application of the existing versions of AASB 9 (AASB 9 (December 2009)
and AASD 9 (December 2010)) from | February 2015 and applies to annual reporting periods
beginning on after | January 2015.

b. AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

AASB I5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces the existing revenue recognition
standards AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue and related Interpretations
(Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate, Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers, Interpretation 131 Revenue—
Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services and Interpretation 1042 Subscriber Acquisition
Costs in the Telecommunications Industry). AASB 15 incorporates the requirements of IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and developed jointly with the US Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).

AASB 15 specifies the accounting treatment for revenue arising from contracts with customers
(except for contracts within the scope of other accounting standards such as leases or financial
instruments).The core principle of AASB 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. An entity recognises
revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:

{a) Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

(b} Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

{c) Step 3: Determine the transaction price

{d) Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
(e) Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

AASB 2015-8 amended the AASB 15 effective date so it is now effective for annual reporting
periods commencing on or after | January 2018. Early application is permitted.

AASB 2014-5 incorporates the comsequential amendments to a number Australian Accounting
Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASB 15,

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Annual Improvements to
Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014 Cycle
The subjects of the principal amendments to the Standards are set out below:

AASE 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations:

¢ Changes in methods of disposal - where an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal group) directly
from being held for distribution to being held for sale (or visa versa), an entity shall not follow the
guidance in paragraphs 27-29 to account for this change.

AASE 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:

* Servicing contracts - clarifies how an entity should apply the guidance in paragraph 42C of AASB
7 to a servicing contract to decide whether a servicing contract is ‘continuing involvement’ for the
purposes of applying the disclosure requirements in paragraphs 42E—42H of AASB 7.

> Applicability of the amendments to AASB 7 to condensed interim financial statements - clarify
that the additional disclosure required by the amendments to AASB 7 Disclosure-Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities is not specifically required for ail interim periods.
However, the additional disclosure is required to be given in condensed interim financial statements
that are prepared in accordance with AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting when its inclusion
would be required by the requirements of AASB 134,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

AASB 119 Employee Benefits:

* Discount rate: regional market issue - clarifies that the high quality corporate bonds used to
estimate the discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations should be denominated in the
same currency as the liability. Further it clarifies that the depth of the market for high quality
corporate bonds should be assessed at the currency level,

AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting:

* Disclosure of information “elsewhere in the interim financial report’ - amends AASB 134 to clarify
the meaning of disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim financial report’ and to requirc
the inclusion of a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the location of this
information.

J. AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosure Initiative:
Amendments to AASB 101

The Standard makes amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements arising from
the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative project. The amendments are designed to further encourage
companies to apply professional judgment in determining what information to disclose in the
financial statements. For example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole
of financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of
financial disclosures. The amendments also clarify that companies should use professional
Judgment in determining where and in what order information is presented in the financial
disclosures.

¢. AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the
Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality

The Standard completes the AASB’s project to remove Australian guidance on materiality from
Australian Accounting Standards,

f. AASB 2015-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Scope and Application
Paragraphs [AASB 8, AASB 133 & AASB 1057]

This Standard inserts scope paragraphs into AASB 8 and AASB 133 in place of application
paragraph text in AASB 1057. This is to correct inadvertent removal of these paragraphs during
cditorial changes made in August 2015. There is no change to the requirements or the applicability
of AASB 8 and AASR 133,

2. AASE 16 - Leases
The key features of AASB 16 are as follows:
Lessee accounting

* Lessees are required to recognise assets and liabilities Tor all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

* A lessee measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets and lease liabilities
similarly to other financial liabilities.

¢ Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments (including inflation-linked payments), and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.

* AASB 16 contains disclosure requirements for lessees.

231



ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

(d)

Lessor accounting

* AASB 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in AASB 117.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently,

* AASB 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors that will improve
information disclosed about a lessor’s risk exposure, particularly to residual value risk.

AASB 16 supersedes:

(a) AASB [17 Leases;

(b) Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease;
(c) Interpretation 115 - Operating Leases—Incentives; and

(d) Interpretation 127 - Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019. Early
application is permitted, provided the new revenue standard, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, has been applied, or is applied at the same date as AASB 16.

2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses [AASH 112]

This Standard amends AASB 112 Income Taxes (July 2004) and AASB 112 Income Taxes
(August 2015) to clarify the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses on debt instruments measured at fair value,

2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosure Initiative:
Amendments to AASE 107

This Standard amends AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows (August 2015) to require entities
preparing financial statements in accordance with Tier 1 reporting requirements to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
[inancing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Aditya Birla Minerals
Limited (the parent entily) and its subsidiaries, referred to collectively throughout these financial
statements as the “Group”.

Subsidiaries are all those entities on which Group not only has power over and exposure or rights to
variable returns from its involvement, but also has the ability to use its power to affect the
subsidiary’s returns from its involvement.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent
company using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions,
incomc and expenses, and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been
eliminated.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group and cease to
be consolidated [rom the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for by the parent at cost less any allowance for impairment,

‘The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The
acquisition method of accounting involves recognising at acquisition date, separate from goodwill,
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the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the
acquire. The identifiable assets required and the liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition
date fair values.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met beforc revenue is
recognised:

Sale of Product

Revenue from sales of copper concentrate and copper cathode is recognised upon shipment or
discharge when there has been a passing of the significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
means the following:

e The product is in a form suitable for delivery and no further processing is required by, or on
behalf of the Group;

°  The quantity and quality (grade) of the product can be determined with reasonable accuracy;
e The selling price can be measured reliably;

° [t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

°  The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales revenue is subject to adjustment based on final assay results. In addition, the terms of the sales
contracts for copper concentrate contain provisional pricing arrangements. Adjustments to the sales
price are based on movements in metal prices up to the date of final pricing. Final settlement is
between 3 and 4 months after the date of delivery (the “quotational period”) with pricing based on
the average LME copper price for the month of seitlement. The revenue adjustment mechanism
embedded within the sales contract has the characteristics of a commodity derivative which
significantly modifies the cash flows under the contract. The Group has decided to designate the
trade receivables arising on initial recognition of the sales transaction as a financial asset at fair
value through profit and loss (see note 1(k)) and not separately account for the embedded derivative.
Accordingly the fair value of the receivable is re-estimated continuousty and changes in fair value
recognised as an adjustment to revenue in the income statement.

Interest income

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset),

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is established,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Both the functional and the presentation currency of the parent entity and its controlled entities are
Australian dollars ($).

233



ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

4]

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange
rates ruling at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date.

All differences in the financial report are taken (o the income statement.

Income Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the current period’s
taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the statement of financial position
date between the tax bases of the assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:

o cxcept where the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

@ in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of
unused tax asscts and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses can be utilised:

s except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

¢ in respect of deductible temporary difference associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax asset arc only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial
position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax asscts are reassessed at each statement of financial position date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the assct is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in the
income statement,
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off cutrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Effective from incorporation, for the purposes of income taxation, Aditya Birla Minerals Limited
and its 100% owned subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidated group. Aditya Birla Minerals
L.imited is the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of the members of the tax consolidated
group are recognised in the scparate financial statements of the members of the tax consolidated
group using the group allocation approach. Members of the Group have entered into a tax sharing
agreement which provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the
head entity default on its tax payment obligations. At the balance date, the possibility of default is
remote,

Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, cxpenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“"GST™),
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office
(“*ATO”). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense ilem as applicable. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of
GST included. '

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables
or payables in the statement of financial position. Cash flows are included in the statement of cash
flows on a gross basis, The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing
activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is classified as part of operating cash
flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO.

Derivative Finanecial Instruments and Hedging

The Group benefits from the use of derivative financial instruments to manage commodity price,
interest rates and foreign currency exposures.

Instruments used to manage natural exposures to commodity prices, exchange rates and interest rates
include put and call options, swaps and foreign exchange contracts.

Derivative financial instruments are initially rccognised in the statement of financial position at fair
value and are subsequently re-measured at their fair valucs.

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classificd as either fair value hedges when the
Group hedges the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability; or cash flow
hedges where the Group hedges the exposute to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risl associated with a recognised asset or liability or an expected transaction.

The method of recognising the resultant gain or loss is dependent on the nature of the item being
hedged.

At the inception of the transaction, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives designated as hedges to
resultant cash flows from specific quotational periods.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated against future sales qualify as cash flow
hedges and if deemed highly effective, are recognised in equity to the extent of the hedge’s
effectiveness. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is taken immediately to the income
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statement. Amounts deferred in equity are transferred to the income statement and classified as
revenue in the same periods during which the designated hedged sales are recognised.

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules in the
accounting standards. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting under the accounting standards, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at
that time remains in equity and is recognised when the commitment cr expected transaction occurs.

However, if the committed or expected transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term deposits.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding hank overdrafts.

Trade and Other Receivables

On initial recognition trade debtors are designated at fair value through profit and loss, accordingly
trade debtors are measured at fair value as at reporting date. Credit balances are reclassified to trade
and other payables.

The majority of sales revenue is invoiced and received in US dollars.

Generally 100% of the copper cathode sales inveice value is to be settled within 10 days of
presentation of delivery documents.

In the case of copper concentrate, on presentation of documents the customer settles 90% of the
provisional invoice value within 3-5 days of receipt of consignment and the remaining 10% is settled
within 3-5 days of presentation of the final invoice at the end of the quotational period.

Other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoiced amount [ess an allowance for any
uncoilectible amounts.

An allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect the debts. Financial difficulties of the debtor or default payments are considered
objective evidence of impairment. Bad debts are written off when identified. No interest is charged
on overdue accounts,

Inventories
Inventories comprise broken ore, copper in ore and under leach, concentrate and cathode which are
carried at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises direct material, labour and other expenditure together with an appropriate portion of
fixed and variable overhead expenditure based on the weighted average costs incurred during the
period in which such inventories were produced.

Inventories of consumable supplies and spare parts expected o be used in production are valued at
the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of husiness, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs neccssary to make the sale.
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(m) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
in value.

[terns of property, plant and equipment are depreciated as outlined below,
¢ mining plant & equipment: unit of production based on economically recoverable reserves,

e other plant and equipment: straight line depreciation at a rate of 10% to 50% per annum,
depending on the item of plant.

The cost of property, plant and equipment constructed by the Group includes the costs of all
materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during construction and an
allocation of overheads.,

Borrowing costs included in the cost of property, plant and equipment are those costs, which are
directly attributable to the construction, or production of qualifying assets and that would have been
avoided if the expenditure on the construction of the property, plant and equipment had not been
made.

Assets are depreciated or amortised from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally
constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and available for use.

Mining Properties in Production, Under Care & Maintenance or Under Development

Mine properties in production (including exploration, evaluation and development expenditure) are
accumulated and brought to account at cost less accumulated amortisation in respect of each
identifiable area of interest. Amortisation of capitalised costs is provided on a production output
basis, proportionai to the depletion of the mineral resource of each area of interest expected to be
ultimately economically recoverable.

A regular review is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of
continuing to carry forward costs in relation that area of interest. Should the carrying value of
expenditure not yet amortised exceed its estimated recoverable amount in any year, the excess is
written off to the income statement. .

Impairment

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash flows the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. If any indication of impairment
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash
generating unit are written down to their recoverable amount through the Income Statement.

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. [n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or group of assets being assessed.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash generating umit). A reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss immediately.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
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Any gain or loss arising on dereeognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is incfuded in the income statement in the
perigd the item is derecognised.

Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

Expioration and evaluation expenditure is charged against earnings as incurred.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is allocated separately to specific areas of interest. Each area
of interest is [imited to a size related to a known or probable mineral resource capable of supporting
a mining operation. Such expenditure comprises net direct costs and an appropriate portion of
related overhead expenditure directly related to activities in the area of interest.

Costs related to the acquisition of properties that contain mineral resources are allocated separately
to specific areas of interest. These costs are capitalised until viability of the area of interest is
determined. If no mineral ore body is discovered, capitalised acquisition costs are expensed in the
period in which it is determined that the arca of interest has no future economic value. When a
decision to proceed to development is made, all costs subsequently incurred to develop a mine prior
to the start of mining operations within the area of interest are capitalised and carried at cost. These
costs include expenditure incurred to develop new ore bodies within the area of interest, to define
further mineralisation in existing areas of interest, to expand the capacity of a mine and to maintain
production.

Rehabilitation, Restoration and Environmental Costs

Long-term environmental obligations are based on the Group’s environmental management plans, in
compliance with current environmental and regulatory requirements.

The costs include obligations relating to reclamation, waste site closure, plant closure, and other
costs associated with the restoration of the site.

Full provision is made based on the net present value of the estimated cost of restoring the
environmental disturbance (to the extent that it relates to the development of an asset) that has been
incurred as at the statement of financial position date. Increases due to additional environmental
disturbances are capitalised and amortised over the remaining lives of the mines. These increases
are accounted for on a net present value basis.

Annual increases in the provision relating to the change in the net present value of the provision are
accounted for in the income statement as finance costs.

The estimated costs of rehabilitation are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate for changes
in legislation, technology or other circumstances. Cost estimates are not reduced by the potential
proceeds from the sale of assets or from plant clean-up at closure.

Deferred Mining Costs

Certain post-commissioning mining costs, principally those that relate to the development of stopes
to access the ore and which relate to future economically recoverable ore to be mined, have been
capitalised and included in the statement of financial position as deferred mining in mine properties.

These costs are deferred or taken to the cost of production as the case may be, so that each tonne of
ore mined bears the average cost of development per tonne of ore. The remaining life ol the mine
based on latest mine plan is regularly assessed by the Directors and senior management to ensure the
carrying value of deferral is appropriate.
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Recoverable Amount of Non- Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Group makes a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset’s value in use cannot be estimated to
be close to its fair value less costs of disposal and it does not generate cash inflows that are largely
indepcndent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in whicb case, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or group of assets being assessed.

An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists the recoverable amount is cstiiated. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to ils recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit and loss unless the asset
is carried at its revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After
such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life,

Trade and Other Payables

Liabilities are recogniscd for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received,
whether or not billed to the Group. Trade accounts are normally settled in accordance with the terms
of trade.

Payables are initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently mcasured at amortised cost.

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of
transaction costs associated with the borrowing.

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any transaction costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised and as
well as through the amortisation process.

Leased Assets

The determination of whether an arrangemecnt is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the

arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arranpement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or asscts and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
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Finance leases

Leases which effectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimuim lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as
an expense in the income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or
the lease term,

The cost of improvements to or on leasehold property is capitalised, disclosed as leasehold
improvements and amortised over the unexpired period of the Icasc or the estimated useful life of the
improvement, whichever is shorter.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up
to the reporting date. These benefits include wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave,
encashable sick leave and bonus, where applicable.

Liabilities arising in respect of wages, salaries and any other employee benefits expected to be
wholly settled within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts
based on remuneration rates which are expected to be paid when the liability is settled. All other
employee benefit liabilities are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflow to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred, except where the borrowing costs
incurred are directly associated with the construction, purchase or acquisition of a qualifying asset,
in which case the borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a lepal or constructive obligation exists as a resuit of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for exampie under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relaling to any provision is presented in the income
statement net of any reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is matertal, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recogunised as a
finance cost.

Investments in Controiled Entities

Interests in controlled entities are carried by the parent entity at the lower of cost and recoverable
amount.

Issued Capital

Issued and paid up capital is recogniscd at the fair value of the consideration received by the Group.
Any ftransaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a
reduction, net of tax, of the proceeds received.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to
exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus e¢lement.

Diluted earning per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the company, adjusted
for:

e costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

e the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares
that have been recognised as expenses; and

»  other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result
from the dilution of potential ordinary shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares,
adjusted for any bonus element.

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

(i) Mine rehabilitation provision

The Group assesses its mine rehabilitation provision annually in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 1(0). Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for mine
rchabilitation as there are many transactions and other factors that will affect the ultimate liability
payable o rehabilitate the mine site. The rehabilitation provision represents management’s best
estimale of the Group's obligations using assumptions that represent the expected outcomes of the
uncerlainties. However, actual rehabilitation costs will ultimately depend upon future market prices
for the necessary rehabilitation works required that will reflect market conditions at the relevant
time.Furthermore, the timing of rehabilitation will ultimately depend on when the mines cease to
produce at economically viable rates. This, in turn, wili depend upon future copper prices, which are
inherently uncertain.
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The discount rates used in the calculation of the provisions for Nifty as at 31 Mareh 2016 is 2.12%
(2015: 2.05%), the inflation rate is 2.115% (2015; 2.48%). Life of mine for Nifty is taken as 3 years
for discounting of rehab provision.

(ii) Unilts of production method of depreciation

The Group applies the units of production method of depreciation of its mine assets based on ore
tonnes mined. These calculations require the use of estimates, future development costs and
assumptions.  Significant judgement is required in assessing the available reserves, future
development costs and the production capacity of the plants to be depreciated under this method.
Factors that are considered in determining reserves and resources and production capacity are the
company’s history of converting resources to reserves and the relevant time frames, the complexity
of metallurgy, markets and future developments. When these factors change or become known in
the future, such differences will impact pre tax profit and carrying values of assets.

(1ii) Impairiment of Property, Plant and Fquipment

The Group assesses each asset or cash generating unit (CGU) at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether any indication of impairment exists. Where an indicator of impairment exists, a
formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which is considered to be the higher of the fair
value less costs to sell and Value In Use (VIU). Refer note 26 for further details.

(iv) Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies which is dependent on the
Group’s ability to earn taxable income from its ongoing operations. This in turn is dependent on a
number of future estimates but not limited to future assumptions as to the copper price, exchange
rates, operating and capital costs. Refer to note 26 which sets out a number of sensitivities relating to
these operations. The recovery of recognised tax assets is to an extent also sensitive to these
assumptions.

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset of $Nil (2015: §14.860 million)

(ab) Comparatives
Where necessary, comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current
year’s disclosures.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal linancial instruments comprise receivables, payables, cash and derivatives.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are foreign currency risk, commodity
price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group manages its exposure to
financial risks in accordance with the Group's financial risk management policy. The objective of the
policy is to support the delivery of the Group's financial targets whilst protecting future financial
security.

To manage exposure to commodity prices, exchange rates and interest rates, the Group uses
derivative instruments, principally put and call options, swaps and forward contracts. The purpose is
to manage the commodity price, currency and interest rate risks arising from the Group's operations
and its sources of finance. The extent of derivatives used by the Group is based on limits set by the
Board. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage different types of risks to which it
is exposed. These include monitoring levels of exposure to commodity prices, interest rate and
foreign exchange risk and assessments of market forecasts for commodity prices, interest rate and
foreign exchange. Ageing analyscs and monitoring of specific credit allowances are undertaken to
manage credit risk. Liquidity risk is monitored through the development of future rolling cash flow
forecasts,

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below.

Primary responsibility for identification and control of financial risks rests with the Audit,
Compliance and Risk Committee under the authority of the Board. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of the risks identified below, including the setting of limits for trading in
derivatives, hedging cover of commodity prices, foreign currency and interest rate risk, credit
allowances, and future cash flow forecast projections.

Risk Exposures and Responses
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises from sales or purchases by an
operating enfity in currencies other than the functional currency. Approximately 100% of the
Group’s sales are denominated in United States dollar (US$), whilst most of the costs are
denominated in the entity’s functional currency. The functional currency of thc parent and its
controlied entities is determined to be Australian dollar (A$).

The Group's income statement and statement of financial position can be affected significantly by
movements in the US}/AS exchange rates. The Group seeks to mitigate the effect of its net foreign
currency exposure by using derivative instruments, principally put and call options and forward
foreign currency contracts.

it is the Group's policy to enter into derivative instruments to manage foreigh currency exposure
once likelihood of such exposure is highly probable and to negotiate the terms of the derivatives to
exactly match the terms of the underlying item to maximise effectiveness. The Group’s policy is to
cover exposure up to 90% of revenues in US$ of material already sold, up to 80% of revenues in
US$ to be sold in next 12 months and 60% of revenues in USS to be sold in 13-24 moenths. However,
the exposure for capital projects must be 100% covered.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continucd)

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At balance date, the Group had the following exposure to US$ foreign currency:

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Trade and receivables-—- related parties
Derivative foreign exchange
countracts

Derivative commodity contracts

Financial Liabilities

Payable to customer— related parties
Trade and other payables — others
Inter company balance denominated
in US dollars

Interest bearing liabilities — bank
overdraft in US dollars

Derivative commodity contracts
Derivative foreign exchange
contracts

C.onsnlidated Parent
2016 2015 2016 2015
000 $°000 3000 5000
1,112 45,600 147 45,605
479 269 1,908 269
31,353 . . .
563 - 563 -
- 735 3,227 755
- (2,006) - -
(1,429) (482} (1,629) .
. - - (45,869)
- (629} - .
(3,227) - {3,227) {755}
- (3,900) (563} .
28,851 39,556 426 3

At 31 March 2016, the Group has entered into forward exchange derivatives of approximately
US$18.500 million to manage foreign currency exposure on trade and other receivables, extending to

July 2016.

The following table sets out the gross value of US dollars sold under foreign exchange contracts, the
weighted average contracted exchange rates and the settlement periods of outstanding contracts for the

Group:

US Doliars — Forward
Mot later than one year

Weighted Consolidated Weighted Consolidated
Average Rate Average Rate
2016 2016 2015 2015
US3'000 USs$’000
0.7483 18,500 0.8393 31,500

The net fair value of the above contracts as at 31 March 2016 is a net asset of $0.563 million (2015:

net liability $3.900 million).
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following sensitivity is based on the foreign currency risk exposures in existence at the balance
date:

At 31 March 2016, had the US dollar moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables
held constant, post tax profit and other comprehensive income would have been affected as follows:

Judgements of reasonably possible Post Tax Profit Other Comprehensive
movements: Income
Higher/{Lower) Higher/(Lower)
2016 2015 2016 2015
5’000 $°000 $'000 $°000
Consolidated
AL/USS +6% (2015: +6%) {163) {1,741) - -
AL/USS -6% {2015: -6%) 184 1,963 - -
Parent

AB/USSE +6% (2015: +6%) - - - -
AB/USE -6% (2015: -6%) - - - -

Management believe the balance date risk exposures are representative of the risk exposure inherent
in the financial instruments.

Commodity price risk

The Group's exposure to copper prices is very high as approximately 100% of the revenue comes
from sale of copper concentrate and cathode. Revenue is determined with reference to copper prices
quoted on the London Metal Exchange (LME).

The Group's income statement and statement of financial position can be affected significantly by
movements in the copper prices on the LME. The Group seeks to mitigate the effect of its copper
prices exposure by using derivative instruments, principally put and call options and swaps.

To manage copper price risk the Group deals in copper swap contracts and put and cail option
confracts for the purposes of mitigating the effect of movement in copper prices. The limits of
hedging are set by the Board.

It is the Group’s policy to enter into derivative instruments to manage copper price exposure once
likeiihood of such exposure is highly probable and to negotiate the terms to maximise effectiveness.
The group has a current policy on covering copper price exposure. The policy permits covering up to
100% of the dispatched quantity, up to 80% of forward rolling 12 months of expected copper sales
quantity and up to 60% of forward rolling 13-24 months of expected copper sales quantity. However,
the cover percentage may be higher than 80% for new projects,
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policics (continued)

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

Commodity price risk (continued)

At balance date, the Group had the following items exposed to commodity price risk:

Consoiidated Parent
2016 2015 2016 2015
$000 3000 3000 000
Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables (i) 74,044 28,215 - -
Derivative commodity contracts - 755 3.227 755
Financial Liabilities
Derivative commodity contracts (3,227} - (3,227) {755)
70,817 28,970 - -
(i) This relates to the provisional amount of tonnes remaining open to price adjustments (Gross

sales). Refer note 9 for the open quantity.

At 31 March 2016, details of outstanding external commodity derivative contracts are:

Tonnes Average Tonnes Average
Price Priec
2016 2016 2015 2013
uss USs
Copper — Seil Call Options
Not later than one year - - - -
Copper — Buy Put Options
Not later than one year - - - -
Copper — Swap
6,229

Not later than one year 11,600 4,640 3,500
Between one and two years - - -

The net fair value of the above contracts as at 31 March 2016 is a net liability of $3.227 million

(2015: asset $0.755 million).
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Financial Risk Maragement Objectives and Policies (continued)

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

Commodity price risk (continued)

The following sensitivity is based on the copper price risk exposures in existenee at the balance date:
At 31 March 2016, had the LME copper prices moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all

other variables held constant, post tax profit and other comprehensive income would have been
affected as follows:

Judgements of reasonably possible Post Tax Profit Other Comprehensive
movements; Income
Higher/(Lower) Higher/(Lower)
2016 2015 2016 2015
5000 $°000 $°000 5000
Consolidated
Copper Prices +10% (2015: +10%) 37 29 - -
Copper Prices -10% (2015 -10%) 37} 29 - -
Parent

Copper Prices +10% (2015: +10%) - - - -
Copper Prices -10% (2015: -10%) - - - -

Management believe the balance date risk exposures are representative of the risk exposure inherent
in the financial instruments, The drop in sensitivity for 2016 is due to the fact that remaining tonnes,
open to price adjustments are almost fully hedged.

Inrerest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market interest rates refates primarily to the Group®s debt obligations and
deposits. At balance date, the impact of interest rate risk is not material. The level of debt is
disclosed in note 17.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and derivative instruments.

The Group’s maximum exposures to credit risk at the balance date in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets, other than derivatives, is the carrying amount of these assets as indicated
in the statement of financial position.

n relation to derivative financial instruments, credit risk arises from the potential failure of
counterparties to meet their obligations under the contract or arrangement. The Group’s maximum
credit risk exposure in relation to these is the total mark to market gain, should the counterparties not
honour their obligations.

The Group does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit cxposure. The Group trades with

recognised and credit worthy third parties only, and as such collateral is not requested nor is it the
Group's policy io securitise its trade and other receivables.
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2. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Risk Exposurcs and Responses (continued)

The majority of the Group’s sales are to its ultimate parent company, Hindalco Industries Limited.
Considering Hindalco Industries Limited’s standing and credit worthiness, the Group believes credit
risk is almost negligible. In addition, reccivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, other than receivables from Hindalco
Industries Limited and financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents and the security
deposit. Cash and cash equivalents and the security deposit are with various financial institutions
with credit ratings from BBB- to A+ (S&P) to minimise the risk of default of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafis, bank loans, finance leases and committed available credit lines.

The Group monitors on a regular basis rolling forecasts of liquidity on the basis of expected cash
flow. It is the Group’s policy to renew bank loan facilities well before the renewal dates to avoid any
inherent liquidity issucs when the facilities expire.

The table below details the liquidity risk arising from the financial liabilities held by the Group at
balance date.

Maturity Analysis

2016 2015

ycar ycars years year years years

Within 1 1t05 | Afters Total Within 1 1to5 After 5 Total

Consolidated $000 3000 5000 $°000 $000 $000 3000 37000

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other {19,405) - - (19,405) (22,505) - - (22,505}

payables

Interest-bearing
tiabilities
- Bank loans and - - - - (629) - -
overdraft
- Payables to - - - - (689) - -
related entities

Foreign exchange

contracts (gross

settled)

- inflow 24,724 - - 24,724 34,107 - -

- (outflow) (24,161) - - (24,161)  (38,007) . - (38,007

Commodity
derivatives (net
settled) (3,227) - . (3,227 - - -

_(22,069) - - (22069)  (27,723) - - (27,723)
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2,

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)

Parent

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other

payables
Interest-bearing

liabilities

- Bank loans and

overdraft

- Payables to

related entities
Foreign  exchange
contracts outside the
group (pross settled)
- inflow
- {(outflow)
Comoodity
derivatives
the  group
settled)

outside
(net

Fair value

Maturity Analysis

2016 2015
Within 1 1t05 After 5 Total Within 1 1to3 | Afters Total
year years years year years years

_ 5000 3000 £°000 000 $000 $°000 $°000 £°000
(14,033) . - (14,033)  (27.902) - (27,902)
- - - - (689 . (689)
24,724 - - 24,724 - - -
{24,161) - - (24,161) - - -
(3,227 - - (3,227 (755} - (755)
_(16,697) - - (16,697) (29,346) - (29,346)

The Group uses various methods in cstimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The methods

comprise:

@ Level | —the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets;

®  Level 2 ~ the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that
are cbservable for the asset or liability; and

@ Level 3 — the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

The fair values of all other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

Fair value {continued)

The fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value and the methods used to estimate their fair

values are as follows:

Consolidated

Financial Assets
Trade receivables ~
related parties

Derivatives:

- Foreign exchange
contracts

- Commuodity
confracts

Financial Liahilities
Payable to customer
—related parties

Derivatives:

- Foreign exchange
contracis

- Commaodity
contracts

Parent

Financial Assets
Derivatives:

- Foreign exchange
contracts

- Commodity
contracts

Financial Liahilities
Derivatives:

- Foreign exchange
contracts

- Commodity
contracts

2016 2015
Quaoted Valuation Valuation Total Quoted Yaluation Valuation Total
market fechnique technique market technique technique
price — market - nun price — market = non
(Level 1} | observable maret {Level 1} i observable market
inputs observable inputs ubservable
(Level 2) inputs {Level 2) inputs
{Level 3) {Level 3)
$000 5000 3000 $'000 5000 $'000 5000 2’000

- 31,353 - 31,353 - - - -

- 563 - 563 . . . -

- - - - - 755 - 755

- 31,916 - 31916 - 755 - 755

- - - - - {(2,066) - {2,066)

- - - - - (3,900) “ {3,900}

- (3,227 - (3,227) - - - -

- (3,227) - (322D - (5,966) - (5,966)
- 563 - 563 - - - -
- 3227 . 3,227 - 5 - 755
- 3,790 - 3,790 - 3 - 755
- (563) (563) . -
- (3,221 . (3,227) (755) (755)
- (3,790) - (3,790) (s5) oo (335)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

Fair value (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

The fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives. Foreign currency forward contracts
are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching
maturities of the contracts,

The fair values of receivables from or payables to customers are calculated using a discounted cash flow analysis
which is performed using the appiicable forward LME prices and current market interest rates.

There were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 and no movement in Level 3 during the year. For financial
instruments that are recognised at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between Levels by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whote) at the end of each reporting period.

Off-setting financial insiruments
The Group presents its financial assets and liabilities on a gross basis.

Derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements
such as International Swaps and Derivatives Associations {ISDA) master netting agreement, In certain
circumstances, for example, when a credit event such as a default occurs, all outstanding transactions under an
[SDA agreement are terminated. The termination value is assessed and only a single net amount is payable in
settlement of all transactions.

A Security Deposit amounting to $7.620 million (see note 9) is subject to a Set Off Agreement to secure the
Group’s obligations under a finance facility established with a bank {see note 17 {(b). In the case of a default
event, the bank may set off any amount the bank owes in connection with the deposit against any amounts owing
to the bank,

251



ADITYA BIRLA MINERALS LIMITED

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

(a)

(b)

(e}

{d)

()

Revenues and Expenses

Revenue

Sale of product (i)
Other revenue
Interest

Total revenue

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
206,428 57,124 - -
1,473 1,893 1,798 2,741
1473 1,893 1,798 2,741
207,901 59,017 1,798 2,741

{1} Total copper sales for the period was 36,826 tonnes {2015: 9,338 tonnes), out of which 12,217 tonnes (2015: 3,552
tonnes) of copper, provisionally sold at the reporting date, has been revalued at a weighted average price of US$ 4,852
(US$2.20/1b) (2015: US$6,064 — US$ 2.75/1b) . The net movement in trade receivables due to Fair value adjustments is a
decrease of $6.233 million (201 5: decrease of $6.611 million) which has been included in revenue [rom the sale of product,

Other income

Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on foreign exchange

Gain on close-out of derivative contracts
Other*

Total other income

163 - - -
L279 11,897 30 -
- 16,873 . -

895 2,561 EBO -
2,337 31,331 010 -

* includes an amount of $0.88 million reccived from an insurance company towards settlement of an insurance claim, In
FYL5 it included an amount of $2.525 million received from Louminco and Factor for an out of courl fuli and final
settlement of a litigation for faulty design of the backfill plant at Nifly

Other expenses
Net toss on foreign exchange
Business development expenses

Finance cosis
Facilities and guarantee fees
Finance costs payable to related entities

Unwinding of discount on rehabilitation
provision
Total finance costs

Expenses included in income statement
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Amortisation of mine properties and deferred
mining

Penalties

Government royalties

Minimum lease payments — operating lease
Net realisable value write down of concentrate
and ore inventories**

bmpairment of reccivables

Lmpairment of investments in subsidiaries

##* inciuded in the Cost of Saies

. . - 129

999 564 990 564
999 564 ) 693
160 263 14 8

35 39 532 1,688
195 302 546 696
819 697 - -
1,014 999 546 1,696
12,621 9,774 - .
20,868 9,146 - -
500 . - .
9,658 2,820 - .
1,330 4,421 - -
386 15,120 . -

. 8,893 11,894

- - 136,869 18,160
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Revenues and Expenses (Continued)

- Wages and salaries

- Defined contribution superannuation expense
- Other employee benefits expense

Totai employee benefits expense

Auditor’s Remuneration

The auditor of Aditya Birla Minerals Limited is
Emst & Young (Australia).

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst
& Young (Australic) for:
- an audit or review of the financial report of
the entity and any other entity in the
consolidated group

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
$7000 $'000 $°000 $°000
35,446 31,129 - ]
3,100 3,037 - .
1,310 2,006 - -
39,836 36,172 - .
328,500 354,500 328,500 354,500
328,500 354,500 128,500 354,500
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CONSOLIDPATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
5’000 $’000 £°000 3000
5.  Income Tax
{n)  Income tax expense/(benefit)
The major components of income tax are:
income statement
Current income tax
Current income tax charge - - - .
Adjustment in respect of income tax - 7,187 - 7,187
Deferred income tax
Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary diflerences - (53,630) - 11,685
Deferred tax asset written off 14,360 - - -
Adjustment in respect of deferred income
tax - (7,187) . (7,187)
Income tax expense/(benefit) reported in the
income statement 14,860  (53,630) - 11,685
(b  Amounts charged/{credited) directly to
equity
Deferred income tax related o items charged/
fcredited) directly to equity
Net movement on cash flow hedges - (4,720) - -
Income tax expense/{benefit) reported in the
statement of comprehensive income o - (4,720) - -
{c) A reconciliation between tax expense/(benefit)
and the product of accounting result before
income tax multiplied by the Group’s
applicable income tax rate is as follows:
Accounting (loss)/profit before income tax (175,53 1) (273,342} (175,161)  (193,275)
At the statutory income tax rate of 30% (2015:
30%) (52,659) (82,003) (52,548)  (57,983)
Add:
- non-deductible expenses 204 3,770 42,996 58,019
- loss on sale of subsidiary 2.644 - 9,614 -
- Deferred Tax Asset not recognised 42,841 24,603 - 11,649
- adjustments in respect of deferred
[ncome tax of previous years - (1,i87) - (7,187)
- adjustments in respect of Income tax - 7,187 - 7,187
- deferred tax asset written off 14,860 . - -
- adjustments in respect of deferred - - (62)
balances
Income tax (benefityExpensc 14,360 (53,630} e 11,685
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3
()

Income Tax (continued)

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

CONSOLIDATED

Opening balance

Charged to income

Adjustment in respect of deferred income tax
Deferred tax asset written off

Charged to equity

Closing balance

PARENT

Opening balance

Charged to income

Adjustment in respect of deferred income
Other movements

Transfer of tax losses (net)

Closing balance

Deferred income tax at 31 March relates to the following:

CONSOLIDATED
Deferred tax liabilities
Accrued revenue
Deferred exploration and evaluation expenditure
Diesed fuel rebate
Prepayments
Foreign exchange
Derivative contracts
ivline properties
Gross deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Accrued liabilities
Share issue costs
Accrued revenue
Foreign exchange
Derivative contracts
Employee provision
Provision for rehabilitation
Project pool
Tax losses
Trading stock
Property, plant and equipment
Gross deferred income tax assets
Less : Deferred Tax Asset not recognised

Net Deferred income tax assets recognised
Net deferred tax asset / (liabilities)

255

2016 2015
Deferred Income Tax Deferred Income Tax
$°000 5000
14,860 (50,677}
. 53,630
- 7,187
(14,860) -
- 4,720
- 14,860
- 4,725
- (11,685)
- 7,187
- (227
STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015
$000 5000
(930) .
{600} (4.451)
(28) (25)
(36) 2
- (2,081)
. (227)
(255) (46,233)
(1,849} {53,015)
500 311
204 -
- 2,557
324 .
799 -
1,874 1,472
11,512 22,555
9,536 13,143
19,000 14,227
20,339 28,487
19,131 9,726
89,219 92,478
(87,370} (24,603)
1,849 67,875
- 14,860
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C)

(®

n

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (continucd)

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015
£'000 $°000
PARENT
Deferred tax liabilities
Foreign exchange - (204)
Derivative contracts - (227
Prepayments (1) -
Gross deferred income tax Habilities (7 {431)
Deferrved tax assets
Borrowing costs - -
Share issue costs 204 -
Accrued liabilities 80 44
Other future deductible amounts - -
R&D tax offsets - -
Tax losses 15,000 14,227
Gross deferred income tax assets 19,284 14,371
Less: Deferred tax asset not recognised (19,277) (13,940)
Net deferred income tax assets recognised 7 43]

Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets -

Unrecognised Tax Assets

The Group has Australian capital tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised on the statement of
financial position of $5,665,000 (2015: $585,000) which are available indefinitely for offset against future
capital gains subject to continuing to meet relevant statutory tests.

Tax Consolidation

Effective from incorporation, for the purposes of income taxation, Aditya Birla Minerals Limited and its 100%
owned subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidated group under Australian tax law. Aditya Birla Minerals
Limited (“ABML") is the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Current tax liabilities and assets and
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits of the members of the tax consolidated group
are recognised by the Company (as head entity in the tax-consolidated group). Entities within the tax
consolidated group have entered into a tax sharing agreement with the head entity. As there is no tax funding
arrangements between the entities in the tax consolidated group, tax consolidation transactions are accounted
for as equity transactions. in the head entity, the carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries are increased
by tax consolidation contributions.

Tax consolidation contributions/(distributions)
The Group has recognised the following amounts as tax consolidation contribution adjustments —

B PARENT
2016 2015
5000 21000
Total increase / (reduction) in subsidiaries accounts of the Group - 223
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Earnings Per Share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

Profit attributable to shareholders:
- Continued operations
- Discontinued operations

Net (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted eamings per

share

Dividends Paid and Proposed
Dividends declared and paid during the year on
ordinary shares:

Nil dividend for the financial year ended 31 March

2016 (2015: Nily

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand — denominated in AUD
Cash at bank and in hand - denominated in USD
Short-term deposits — denominated in AUD
Short-term deposits — denominated in USD

Bank Overdrafis

Terms and conditions

CONSOLIDATED
2016 2015
$°000 $°000
(157,464)  (198,317)
(32,927)  (21,395)
(190,391}  (219,712)
2016 2015
1000 000
313,373 313,373
CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
66,530 1,516 23,780 14
1,112 3,942 147 3,938
- 8,101 . .
- 41,667 - 41,667
67,642 55,226 23,927 45,619
. (629) - -
67,642 54,597 23,927 45,619

Cash at bank and short-term deposits earn interest at floating rates based on bank deposit rates ranging between

2.25% 10 2.90% p.a.
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10.

Trade and Other Receivables
Current

Other debtors at amortised cost
Deposit - Margin Call Money

Less: Allowance for impairment loss

Trade debtors at fair value - related entities (a), 20(b)
Security deposit to bank (b)

Receivable from related entities

MNon-Current
Loans to controlled entities
Less : Allowance for impairment joss

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
5000 $000 5000 5000
[,599 2,356 239 269
279 - 279
- (440) - -
1,878 1,916 318 269
11,353 - - .
7,620 19,023 7,620 -
- 23 23
40,851 20,562 8,138 292
- - 21,822 215,162
- - (20,787 (175,234
- - 1,035 39,928

(a) Asat 31 March 2016, sales totalling 12,217 tonnes remained open to price adjustment (2015: 3,552 tonnes).

(b) The Security Deposit amounting to $7.620 million (2015: $19.023 million) is in accordance with the terms
of the new facilities arrangement consisting of security for Standby Letter of Credit or Guarantee Facilities
(“SBLC Facilities”). This is also subject to a Set Off Agreement to secure the Group’s obligations under a
finance facility established with a bank. In the case of a default event, the bank could set off any amount the
bank owed in connection with the deposit against any amounts owing to the bank. The deposit has a
maturity period of 6 months and earns interest at 2.25% p.a.

Terms and conditions

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments
{i) Details of the terms and conditions of credit sales are set out in note [(k).
{ii) Details of the terms and conditions of loans to controlled entities are set out in note 20(e).

Inventories

Current

Copper at net realisable value

Copper in ore at net realisable value
Consumable stocks at cost

Less: Allowance for obsolescence on
consumables and stores

Less: Impairment of consumables & stores
(see note 26)

Gas inventory

MNon-Current
Copper in ore and under leach
Less: Impairment during the year (see note 26)

484 30,051 - -
943 1,771 - -
25318 35475 - -
(798) (1,346) - -
(7,874) (11,600) - -
. [,578 - -
19,073 55,029 - -
76,441 76,441 - .
(76,441) (65,61 1) -
- 10,830 - -
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
000 $7000 5000 3°000
Other Assets
Current
Prepayments 1,680 2,104 35 __63
Non-Current
Prepayments 264 286 . -
Derivative Financial Instruments
Commodity Contracts
The contracts outstanding at the reporting dates were:
Tonnes Hedged Average Tonnes Average
Price Hedged Price
31 Mar 16 31 Mar 16 31 Mar 15 31 Mar I5
UsS$ USS

Copper — Swap
Not later than one year 11,600 4,640 3,500 6,229
Between one and two years - - - -

The net fair value of the above contracts as at 31 March 2016 is a net liability of $ 3.227 million (31 March
2015: % 0.755 million asset),

The unrealised loss on the 11,600 tonnes of copper sold has been taken to the income statement ns the
underlying sales {ransactions have been recognised.

Forward currency coniracts
The following table sets out the gross value of US dollars sold under foreign exchange contracts, the weighted
average contracted exchange rates and the settlement periods of outstanding contracts for the Group:

Weighted Consolidated Weighted Consolidated
Average Rate Average
Rate
31 Mar 16 31 Mar 16 31 Mar 15 3t Mar 15
Us 000 us $°000
US Dollars - Forward
Not fater than one year 0.7483 18,500 0.8393 31,900

The net fair value of the ahove contracts as at 31 March 2016 is a net asset of $0.563 million (3| March 2015:
Net liability of § 3.900 million).

The unrealised gain of $0.563 million on the USD 18.500 million of forward currency contracts to manage
foreign exchange exposure on trade and other receivables have been taken to the ineome statement.
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13.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipinent, at cost

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
during the year

Mine Properties

Mine properties, at cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation and Impairment
during the year

Capital Work in Progress
Capital work in progress, at cost

Total Property, Plant & Equipment

Reconciliation

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts for each
class of property, plant and equipment are set out
below:

Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of the year
Amount related to discontinued operations
Additions

Transfer from capital works in progress
Impairment during the year (see note 26)
Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of the year
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2016 2015 2016 2015

$°000 5000 $000 $7000
276,487 322,585
(250,412)  (251,256)
26,075 71,329
396,952 512,007
(393,202)  (371,102)
3,750 140,905
. 3,581
29,825 215,815
71,329 142,433
(8,270) .
716 875
4,345 3,191
(29,424) (64,252)
(12,621) (10,918)
26,075 71,329
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13.

14.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2016 2015 2016 2015

5000 $:000 $000 5000
Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)
Reconciliation (continued)
Mine Properties (in production or Under Care &
Maintenance}
Carrying amount at beginning of the year 118,529 172,518 - -
Impairment of discontinued operations (28,646) - - -
Amount related to discontinued operations (30,913) - - -
Expenditure incurred/Additions during the year 1,060 2,984 - -
Increase/decrease in rehabilitation costs (623) 6,505 - -
Transfer from capital works in progress 790 - - -
[mpairment during the year (see note 26) (44,726) (59,372) - -
Amortisation {11,721} (4,789) - -
Carrying amount at end ol the year 3,750 118,529 - -
Deferred Mining
Carrying amount at beginning of the year 22,376 36,466 - .
Expenditure incurred during the year 6,284 8,455 - -
Impairment during the year (see note 26) (19,513) (18,188) - -
Amortisation (9,147 (4,357 - -
Carrying amount at the end of the year - 22,376 - -
Total carrying amount of mine properties at the
end of the year 3,750 140,905 - -
Capital Work In Progress
Carrying amount at beginning of the year 3,581 3,607 - -
Amount related to discontinued operations (551 - - .
Additions 2,105 3,848 - .
Transfer to plant and equipment (4,345) {3,191 - -
Transfer to mine properties (790} {683) - -
Carrying amount at end of the year - 3,581 - -

Assets are cncumbered to the extent as detailed in note 17. Refer to note 26 for details on impairment of assets

Deferred Exploration and Evaluation
Expenditure
Exploration and evaluation costs carried forward

in respect of mining areas of interest
Pre-production - Exploration and evaluation

phases

Carrying amount at beginning of the year 15,545 15,545 - -
Intpairment of discontinued operations (8R9) - - -
Amount related to discontinued operations (1,266) - - -
Impairment during the yoar (see note 26) (11,390 - - -
Carrying amount at end of the year 2,000 15,545 - -

The ultimate recoupment of costs carried forward for exploration and evaluation phases is dependent on the
successful development and commercial exploitation or sale of the respective areas.
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18,

16.

17.
{a)

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2016 20i5 2016 2015

22000 $°000 $°000 $000
Investment in Controlled Entities
Mon-Current - at cost less impairment
Birla Maroochydore Pty Ltd - - 964 904
Birla Nifly Pty Ltd - - 229,151 229,151
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - - (155,029) (18,160)
Birla Mt Gordon Pty Ltd - - - .

- - 75,086 211,955

Further details of investments in controlled entities are set out in note 20(a). Refer to note 5(f) for further details

on tax consolidation adjustments.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2016 2045 2016 2015

$000 $000 3000 5000
Trade and Other Payables
Current
Trade creditors 5,925 (0,397 - "
Payables to related entities - - 12,255 26,870
Other creditors and accruals 13,480 10,042 1,823 1,032
Payable to customer - related parties - 2,066 . -

19,405 22,505 14,078 27,902

Terms and conditions

Trade and other creditors are normally settled in accordance with the terms of trade,

Payable to customers are on account of IMAMA movement in Copper prices post shipment (Also refer to note

9(a) for open quantity),

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Cuarrent
Bank overdraft -
Payables 1o related entities - (a) (i) -

629 - -
650 - 0650
- 1,279 - 650
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17.

)

{c)

i8.

Interest-Bearing Liabilities (continued)

Financing facilities

The Group had access to the following financing facilities at
balance date:

Total facilities available:

- Multiple advance, overdraft, bank guarantees, letter of credit line - (i)

Facilities utilised at balance date:

- Multiple advance, overdraft, bank guarantees, letter of credit fine - (i)

Facilities not utiiised at balance date;

- Multiple advance, overdraft, bank guarantees, letter of credit line - (i}

CONSOLIDATED

2016 2015
$°000 $°000
16,264 59,000
16,264 59,000
7,620 50,111
7,620 50,111
8,644 8,889
8,644 8,889

The financing facilities are available to the Group as combined facilities.

(0 Multiple advance, overdrafi, bank guarantees and/or letter of credit line

The multiple advance and overdraft line is to facilitate the Group's working capital requirements.

Bank guarantees to the amount of $7.620 million have been provided mainly to the following parties:
- West Australian regulatory bodies for mining leases of Birla Nifty Pty Ltd; and

- Gas and other service providers.

All the bank guarantees are sccured against the cash deposited with the bank. The guarantees provided to
regulatory bodies do not have an expiry date. The guarantees provided to other suppliers ($1.620 mitlion) have

expiry dates falling between 5-28 months from the date of this report.

Defaults and breaches

There were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans during the current and previous years.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 57000 $’000 $000
Provisions
Current
Employee entitlements 3,370 3,675 -
Provision for penalties o 500 - -
5,870 3,675 -
Mon-Current
Employee entitlements 876 1,232 .
Rehabilitation 38373 75,183 T
19,249 76,4135 -

The nature of the provisions is described in note (o), 1{u) and 1(w).

The rehabilitation provision represents the present value of rehabilitation costs relating to mine sites, which are
expected 1o be incurred over the fife of the mines, However, the timing of rehabilitation expenditure is
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19,

dependant on the life of the mines which may vary in the future. Refer note 1 {aa) (i) for details.

Movements in Provisions

Rehabilitation
$a00
Consolidated
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 75,183
Amount related to discontinued operations (see note (36,911)
28)
Additional provision recognised during the year (621}
{net)
Amount utilised during the year 97
819

Increase in value due to time passage
Carrying amount at the end of the year 38,373

Refer note | (aa){i) for key inputs used in the calculation of provision

2016 2015
5'000 S 000
Contributed Equity and Reserves
Issued and Pajd Up Capital
313,372,551 Ordinary shares
{2015: 313,372,551 Ordinary shares) 450,663 450,663
" Shares Shares
Movement in ordinary shares on issue -
At 3] March 2016 and 31 March 2015 313,372,551 313,372,551

Terms and conditions

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the company, to
participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up

on shares held.
Ordinary shares entitle their holder to cne vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company.

Effective from I July 1998, the Corporation legislation in place abolished the concept of authorised capital and par
value shares. Accordingly, the Company does not have authorised capital nor par value in respect of its issued

shares.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to seek fo maximise cash returns to shareholders

whilst having regard to ensuring a solid financial siructure for the Company and providing for value accretive
development and exploration activities and targeted growth opportunities. Management also aims to maintain a
capital structure through a combination of debt and equity that ensures the lowest cost of capital available to the

Company.

The payment of dividends by the Company in the future will be at the complete discretion of the Directors and will
depend upon the Company’s available distributable earnings, franking credit balance, operating results, available
cash flow, financial condition, outlook, taxation position and future capital requirements, as well as general
business and ftnancial conditions, the Directors’ view of the appropriate payout ratio from time to time and any
other factors the Directors may consider relevant.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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20.
(a)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserve
Cash flow hedge reserve

This reserve records the portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that is determined
to be an effective hedge,

Related Parties

Interests in Controlled Entities

Aditya Birla Minerals Limited Country of % Shares Held % Shares Held
Incorporation 2016 _ 2015
Birla Nifty Pty Ltd Australia 100% [00%%
Birla Maroochydore Pty Lid Australia 100% 100%
Birla Mt Gordon Pty Lid Australia - 0%

Ultimate Holding Company - Hindaleo Industries Limited

The Group has a secure, long-term relationship with its ultimate parent entity, Hindalco Industries Limited, a
company incorporated in India. The Group’s copper in concentrate production is sold to Hindalco Industries
Limited under contract at arm’s length terms. These contractual arrangements extend to the fife of mine of the
Nifty operations and the Mt Gordon operation (the Nifty Concentrate Sales Agreement and the Mt Gordon
Concentrate Sales Agreement). The price for the copper sold to Hindaleo is based on the average LME eopper
price for the Quotational Period (refer to note 27). Treatment and Refining Charges (Tc/Rc) are negotiated
annually with reference to the published benchmark set by major Japanese smelters and include standard
industry Price Participation (PP) levels, For the year ended 31 March 2016, Tc was averaged at US$105 (2015:
US$92) per dry metric tonne of copper concentrate and Rc was averaged at US$0.105 (2015: US$0.092) per
pound of payable capper, which is 95.70% of contained copper in copper concentrate for FY2016 (2015 :
95.67%). The percentage of payable copper is dependant upon the concentrate grade which varies each year.
There were no price participation charges in the current and previous year.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, transactions between the Group and Hindaleo Industries Limited consist
of sales and advances made as per the terms and conditions under the concentrate offtake agreement as
diselosed in note 27.

The value of transactions with Hindalco [ndustries Limited during the year and the balances outstanding at the
balance date has been set out in the table below:

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
5000 $'000 5000 $°000
Trade and other receivables/(payable) 31,353 {2,066) - -
Transactions during the vear:
- Sales of copper concentrate * 197,614 57 888 ) .

* During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group sold 36,826 tonnes of copper contained in coneentrate to Hindalco {(2015; 9,338
tonnes). Sales of copper coneentrate have been reported net of Te/Re charges and fluorine penalty of $33.789 million (2015: $6.539
million}.
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{c) Key Management Personnel
Details refating to Key Management Personnel, including remuneration paid, are included in note 21.

{d) Related Entity - Birla Resources Pty Ltd
Aditya Birla Mincrals Limited has repaid the loan of $650,000 in current year (2015: $650,000) to Birla
Resources Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of Hindalco Industries Limited. This loan was interest-bearing with no

security.

{e) Wholly Owned Group
The non-current foans to controlled entities shown in note 9 are unsecured and are repayable on demand. Interest
is charged based on BBSY for A$ or LIBOR for US$ for the portion of loans that are interest-bearing. Certain
advances from subsidiary companies bear interest at the appropriate cash deposit rates.

The Company also enters into derivative contracts with counter-parties on behalf of its subsidiaries, The
Company has entered into back to back agreements with its subsidiaries for all such transactions.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Parent has :nade allowances for impairment losses relating to amounts owed by its
controlled entities and its investments in its controlled entities to reflect the amounts it expects to recover based on the
applicable net assets of cach controlled entitiy at balance date (refer to notes 3 (), 9 and 15). An impairment assessment
is undertaken each financial year by examining the financial position of the related entities and the market in which the
related entity operates to determine whether there is objective evidence that the related entity receivable or investment is
impaired. When such objective evidence exists, the Company recognises an allowance for the impairment loss which it

has done in the current year.

21. ey Management Personnel

(a) Details of Key Management Personnel

Dircctors

Name Position Date of Appointment  Date of Resignation
Mr D Bhattacharya ~ Non-Executive Chairman 18 April 2003 -
Mr N M Patnaik CEO and Managing Director t0 February 2015 -
Mr M Prasanna Independent Non-Executive Director 20 January 2003 -

br S Bhargava
Mr M Anghie

Mr N Krishnan
MrJ C Laddha

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

21 August 2007
21 November 2007
21 November 2007
L5 October 2015

Executives
Name Position Date of Appointment Date of Resignation
Mr S L Dugar Chief Financial Officer 1 August 2012 -
Mr S Dugar Corporate Finance Manager 1 August 2006
Mr G Heota Group Chief Mining Engineer 26 July 2004 -
Mr V Phan Head of Engineering & Projects 12 Decemnber 2011 -
Mr Valentine Utete General Manager — Birla Nifty Pty Ltd [ November 20¢ [ 17 August 2015
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(b} Compensation of Key Management Personnel

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
» 5 b 5 b
Short term employee benefits 2,727,686 2,701,550 - -
Long term employee benefits 161,859 176,897 . -
Post employment benefits 203,973 195,587 - .
Total 3,093,518 3,074,034 - -

(v)  Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel (Consolidated)

Na key management personnel heid any shares or undertook any equity transactions during the current or
previous year.

{d) Transactions and Balances with Key Management Personnel and their Related Parties
Services
Mr N Krishnan, non-executive director, received eonsulting fees for professional services they provided to the
Group outside their normal Board and Committee duties. These fees were paid as per rates agreed and approved by
the Board. An amount of A$5,000 was outstanding as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: Nil).

The value of the consulting fees paid to the directors has been set out in the table below:

2016 2015
5 5
Consulting lees
Mr N Krishnan 20,000 29,450
Total 20,000 29,450

22, Segment Reporting

The Group is organised into business units based on its mining activities and its products.

. The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the CEO (the
chief operating decisions maker) in assessing performance and in determining the aliocation of resources.

ior managenient purposes, the Group has identified three reportable segments as follows:

s The Nifty Sulphide segment develops and mines sulphide ore that is processed and sold as copper
concenirate,
° The Nifty Oxide segment develops and mines oxide ore that is processed and sold as copper cathode. The

oxide operations are currently under care and maintenance,

2 Exploration and evaluation segment includes activities associated with the determination and assessment of
the existence of commercial econormnic reserves.

Mt Gordon, previously reported as a separate segment, has been classified as a discontinued operation as per note 28,

Following a review of the Group’s operations in the current period, the composition of the reportable segments has
changed and the comparative information has been restated.

All the Group’s assets and operations are located in Australia. The Group has an offiake agreement with Hindalco for life
of the mine production from all its current operations in Australia (refer note 27)
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Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and cash flows and is measured in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Group financing (including finance costs and finance revenue), corporate costs and income taxes are not allocated to
operating segments as they are not considercd a direct part of the core operations of any segment and are managed on a
Group basis,

Nifty Sulphide Nifty Oxide Exploration Total
and Evaluation
31000 5000 5000 $°000
Year ended 31 Mareh 2016
Revenue
External sales 206,428 - - 206,428
Total segment revenue 206,428 ' - -
Interest revenue - - - 1,473
Total revenue ‘ 207,901
Segment result (122,814) (13,160) (212) (136,186)
Interest revenue - - - 1,473
Other revenue “ - - 910
Corporate costs - - - (7,787
Finance costs - - - (1,014)
Loss before income fax from (142,604)
continuing operations
Income tax benefit - - - (14,860)
Net (Loss)/Prolit for the year (157,464)
from continuing operations
Depreciation and amortisation (33,489) - - (33,489
Net profit on disposal of plant 163 - - [63
and equipment
Assets impaired/ writlen off (95,490) (13,077) (11,190) (119,757
Segment operating assets * 83,181 900 2,000 86,081
Unallocated assets ** 75,817
Total assets 161,898
Capital expenditure 10,165 - - 10,165
Segment liabilities {65,913) - 3) (65,216)
Corporate liabilities {1,835)
Taotal liabilities {67,751)

*All common plant and machinery at Nifty mine site has been allocated to Nifty sulphide

**includes cash balance of $67.642 million, $7.620 million of scourity deposit to bank
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22.  Segment Reporting (continued)

Nifty Sulphide  Nifty Oxide Exploration Total
and
Evaluation
$000 $000 $°000 $000
Year ended 31 March 2015
Revenue
Extemal sales 57,124 - - 57,124
Total segment revenue 57,124 - -
Interest revenue - - - 1,893
Total revenue 59,017
Segment resujt (154,301) (81,656) {144} {236,101)
Intercst revenue - - - 1,894
Corporate costs - - - (7,815
Finance costs - - - (1,425)
Loss before income tax from (243,447)
continuing operations
Income tax benefit - - - 45,130
Net (Loss)/Profit for the year (198,317)
from continuing operations
Depreciation and amortisation (18,268) {653) . (18,921}
Net profit on disposal of plant - - - -
and equipment
Assets impaired/ written off (117,190) (80,716) - (197,906)
Segment operating assets * 204,337 12,978 13,509 230,824
Unallocated assets ** 161,488
Total assets 392,312
Capital expenditure 15,726 - . 15,726
Segment liabilities (68,733) - 1)) (68,734)
Unallocated iiabilities *#* {39,040}
Total liabilities (107,774)

*All common plant and machinery at Nifly mine site has been allocated to Nifly sulphide

**inctudes cash balance of $55.226 million, $19.023 million of security deposit to bank, deferred tax assets of $14.860 million and Mt
Gordon assets of A$72.927 million

4 includes Mt Gordon liabilities of A$37.839 million
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2016 2015 2016 2015
$000 $'000 57000 $000 |

23, Commitmenis

Cnpital Expenditure
Capital expenditure contracted for at reporting
date, but not provided for:

Payable not later than one year 940 461 - -
Payable later than one not later than five years . - . -

Payable later than five ycars - - - -
990 467 o -

The Group had contractual obligations in relation to various projects of $0.990 million {2015: $0.467 million).

Operating Leases

The Group has entered inlo contracts for the
provision of vehicle fleet and infrastructure as

follows:
Payable not later than one year 371 11472 - -
Payable later than one not later than five years 22 247 - -

Payable later than five years - - - -
393 1,419 - -

The Group has entered into operating leases on certain motor vehicles, mining equipment and portable
infrastructure.

There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into these leases.

Other Commitments

[n order to maintain current rights of tenure to exploration tenements, the Group is required to outlay lease
rentals and to meet the minimum expenditure requirements of the relevant regulatory bodies per annum.
Minimum expenditure requirements excluding lease rentals are $2,008,480 (2015: $3,015,900), These
commitments are subject to renewal of the leases, renegotiation upon expiry of the exploration lcases or when
application for a mining lease is made. These commitments are not provided for in the financial statements.

For the transportation of gas from Port Hedland to Nifty, the Group has agreed to pay minimum transportation

charges of $2,410,000 per annum (2015: $2,410,000), subject to inflationary adjustments. The gas
transportation agreement is valid until 6 December 2019.

24. Contingent Liabilities

There are no material contingent liabilities at balance date.
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25.

(#)

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of net (loss)/profit after income
tax to net cash flows from operating activities

Net {loss)/profit from ordinary activities after
income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of plant and equipment
Amortisation of mine properties and deferred
mining

Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange differences’

Provision for interest payable to suppliers
Write-down of inventorics

Impairment of Assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
{Increase)/decrease in prepayments
{Increase)/decrease in inventories
{Increase)/decrease in deferred derivative assets
Increase/(decrease) in deferred derivative liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets
Increase/{decrease) in deferred tax liabilities {net)
Increase/(decrease) in income tax payable
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in  provision for employee
entitlements

Increase/(decrease) in provision for penalties
Increase/(decrease) in provision for rehabilitation
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
$°000 $°000 $1000 $'000

(190,391 (219,712) (175,162)  (204,960)
12,621 10,918 . -
20,368 9,146 .
{163) - . -
(204) (8,485) 3 (6,178)
- (596) - .
386 £5,120 . .
149,292 219,022 172,678 193,394
(32,593) 8,576 (572 5,789
177 592 28 3
31,597 (38,496) - -
(92 8,584 - .
(673) - - .
14,860 (14,860) - 11,523
- {45,959) . (7,024)
. 1,536 . 1,535
(2,322) (1,944) (626) (261)
1,490 {6,026) . .
500 - . .
722 1,331 . -

6,359 (61,253) (3,651)  (6,179)
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2016 2015 2016 2015
3000 §’000 $'000 $'000
25. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
(continued)
{h}  Reconciliation of Cash
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
at 31 March:
Cash at bank and in hand 67,642 5,458 23,927 3,952
Short-term deposits - 49,768 - 41,667
67,642 55,226 23,927 45,619
Bank overdrafts . (629) - -
67,642 54,597 23,927 45619

(®)  Disclosure of financing facilities
Details of financing facilities are included in note 17(b).

26. Impairment of Assets
The Company reviewed the carrying valuc of its assets and cash generating units due to the following material
events that tock place during the period ended 31 March 2016 —

Nifiy Sulphide
= A reduction in Reserves by ~39kt of contained copper resulting from lower stope recovery, higher
dilution in grade based on recent experience and change in resource to reserve conversion.
»  Change in macro-economic conditions {copper price and AUD/USD exchange rate).
Nifty Oxide
@ Change in macro-economic conditions {copper price and AUD/USD exchange rate)
= The results of the metallurgical test work conducted by an independent laboratory demonstrate that the
recovery of copper from the heap leach pad is not economically viable under the prevailing copper
price.
Marrochydore
= Change in macro-economic conditions which had an impact on the latest resource valuation report from
independent expert

Considering the above events/information, the following impairment losses have been recognised in the financial
report for each CGU:

COMSOLIDATED
2016 2015
5000 5’000
Nifty — Sulphide 95,490 117,190
Nifty Oxide 13,077 80,716
Maroochydore 11,190 -
Total foss on impairment of assets 119,757 197,906

The above impairment losses have been allocated to the Group’s non-current assets as below:
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Carrying value (*000)

Impairment loss (*000)

Recoverable amount

{(“000)
Nifty Sulphide
Plant and Equipment 53,439 28,264 25,175
Mine properties 66,843 63,093 3,750
Deferred Exploration and Evaluation 259 259 -
expenditure
Inventory of spares and consumables * 20,520 3,874 16,646
Total 141,061 95,490 45,571
Nifty Oxide
Copper and ore under leach 10,830 10,830 -
Mine properties [,147 1,147 -
Plant and Equipment ** 2,000 {100 400
Total 13,977 13,077 00
Maroochydore
Deferred Exploration and 13,130 11,130 2,000
Evaluation expenditure
Plant and Equipment ** 60 60 -
Total 13,190 11,190 2,000

*Inventory of spares and consumables has been impaired to their estimated rccoverable amount with regard to the
age, nature and current purchase price of the inventory. This value is classificd as level 3 in the fair valuation
hierarchy.

**The oxide processing plant has been written down to estimated market value based on an independent valuation of
the plant as the plant is not going to be used for processing oxide ore.

The Group assessed each asset or cash generating unit (CGU) for the year ended 31 March 2016 to determine
whether any indication of impairment exists, Where an indicator of impairment exists, a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount was made, which is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs to sell (FVLCS)and
Value tn Use (VIU). The Group has used FVLCS for Nifty Sulphide, Maroochydore and Nifty Oxide. The Group
has used the following methodologies and assumptions:

Nifty Sulphide (FVLCS)

For the year ended 31 Mareh 2016, the Group has impaired the assets of Nifty Sulphide based on fair values
determined by independent experts less expected costs of disposal. This method has been adopted as it results in a
higher recoverable amount than a VIU assessment given the current copper price assumptions for the life of mine,
The commodity priee forecasts are ranging from A$6,902 to A$7,683 per MT of copper over the life of mine
derived from a range of external global commodity and currency forecasters. The nine properties have been
valued using a market approach known as the yardstick valuation method which is based on a market multiple for
copper contained in the mineral resource. Plant and Equipment have been valued using estimated market values
adjusted for present condition and location, All fair values are classified as level 3 in the fair valuation hierarchy.

Key inputs - Mine Properties

Price multiple ranging from 85 to $15 per ton of contained copper with a preferred price of $6 per ton has been
derived from market observed multiples and from transactions that were completed in 2015 and 2016 in Australia.
Total copper contained in mineral resource of 0.477 million tons and cost of disposal equivalent to ~5% of total
value.

Sensitivity
Impact on kinpairment (‘000)

Price multiple of 55 per ton of contained copper {(453)
Price multiple of $10 per ton of contained copper 1,813
Price muitiple of $15 per ton of contained copper 4,078
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27,

Nifty Oxide (FVLCS)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has impaired the assets of Nifty Oxide based on fair values
determined by independent experts less expected costs of disposal. The mine properties have been valued using a
market approach known as the yardstick valuation method which is based on a market multiple for copper
contained in the mineral resource. Plant and Equipment have been valued using estimated market values adjusted
for conditian or location. All fair values are classified as level 3 in the fair valuation hierarchy

Key inputs — Mine Properties

Price multiple ranging from $3 to $15 per ton of contained copper with preferred price of $5 per ton has been
derived from market observed multiples and from transactions that were completed in 2015 and 2016 in Australia.
Total copper contained in mineral resource of 0.061 million tons and cost of disposal equivalent to ~5% of total
value. Given the low fair value, the mine properties have been fully impaired.

Sensitivity
At the balance date, no reasonably possible changes in the copper price will result in the reversal of impairment for
Nifty Oxide.

Maroachydore (FVLCS)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has impaired the assets of Maroochydore based on fair values
determined by independent experts less expected costs of disposal. The mine propetties have been valued using a
market approach known as the yardstick valuation method which is based on a market multiple for eopper contained
in the mineral resource. Plant and Equipment have been valued using estimated market values adjusted for condition
or location. All fair values are classified as level 3 in the fair valuation hierarchy

Key inputs ~ Deferred Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

Price multiple ranging from $2 to $10 per ton of contained copper with preferred price of $3 per ton has been
derived from market observed multiples and from transactions that were completed in 2015 and 2016 in Australia.
Total copper contained in mineral resource of 0.436 million tons and cost of disposal equivalent to ~5% of total

value.

Sensitivity
Impact on impairment (*000)
Mine properties

Price multiple of $2 per ton of contained copper (462)
Price multiple of $5 per ton of eontained copper 923
Price multiple of $10 per ton of contained copper 3,232

Copper in Concentrate off-take agreement
By agreement dated 25 January 2006, Birla Nifty agreed to sell, and Hindalco agreed to purchase, all Copper in
Concentrate produced at the Nifty copper mine for the LOM (“Nifty Concentrate Sales Agreement”).

The price Hindalco must pay Birla Nifty is governed by the Nifty Concentrate Sales Agreement and yearly
memoranda of agreement (which are negotiated prior to commencement of the contract year). The price payable
is the sum of the payments for payable Copper in Concentrate minus TC/RCs. Whereas the Nifty Concentrate
Sales Agreement determines the price payable in relation to the components of the Copper in Concentrate; lhe
memoranda of agreement govern the treatment and refining charges that Hindalco is entitled to recoup.

The TC/RCs agreed in the yearly memoranda of agreement must be the same as the “annual Japanese benchmark
agreed between the major copper mines and the Japanese smelters under calendar year contracts for similar
qualities of copper concentrates” ("Annual Japanese Benchinark"). The Annual Japanese Benehmark determines
the treaiment charge (in US dollars) to be levied per dry metric tonne of Copper in Concentrate and the refining
charge (in US dollars) to be levied per pound of payable copper extracted from the Copper in Concentrate. In
addition, the Annual Japanese Benchmark prescribes the Quotational Period over which the price determinants
set out above are to be averaged.
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Delivery of the Concentrate is made on a cost insurance and freight /free over (“CIF FQ™) basis to the port of
Dahej, Gujarat, India as per “Incoterms 2000™.

Memorandum of agreement dated 22 February 2016
The memorandum of agreement governing the TC/RCs applicable to the Nifty Concentrate Sales Agreement for
the contract year [ January 2016 to 31 December 2016 inclusive, records the following terms:

TC — US3$97.35 per dmt of Copper Concentrates

RC ~ US$0.09735 per pound of payable copper.

Quotational Period - The Quotational Period for all payable copper shail be the third calendar month following the
month of vessel’s arrival at the discharge port (ie 3MAMA).

28.  Discontinued Operation
The Company sold the Mt Gordon operations to Lighthouse Minerals Holdings Pty. Limited {“Lighthouse™)
during the year by way of sale of its 100% shareholding to Lighthouse. The signing of the sale transaction
occurred on 20 September 2015 and the completion of the transaction took place on 27 October 2015 subsequent
to fulfilment of all conditions precedent. With Mt Gordon classified as adiscontinued operation, the segment is
no longer presented in the segment note,

The results of Mt Gordon for the period are presented below:

2016 2015
5000 3000
Revenue 185 313
Expenses (2,886) (5,342)
Finance Costs (651) (426)
Impairment recognised (29,5395) (21,116)
Loss before income tax from discontinued operations (32,927) (30,571)
Income Tax . - 9,176
Loss after income tax from discontinued operations (32,927) (21,395)
Earnings /(loss) per share from discontinued operations
(cents per share)
- basic and diluted (1051 {6.83)
The net cash flow incurred by the Mt Gordon business is as follows:
Net cash inflow/ {outflow) from operating activities (2,913) (9,627)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities (479 (345)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash generated (3,392) (9,972)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Mt Gordon as at the date of sale were as follows:

$000

Assets
Property Plant & Equipment 40,182
Deferred exploration & evaluation expenditure 1,266
Inventory — stores & consumables 559
Trade & other receivabic 73
Qther 10

42,090
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Liabilities
Trade Creditors & other accruals/ provision (37
Rehabilitation & other non-current provision 37,301
37,438
Net Assets 4,652
Consideration Reccived 5’000
Proceeds of Sale 5,000
Costs related to sale (348)
Net consideration 4,652

The fair value of the contingent & conditional cash payment of A 10 million is immateriat at balance sheet date

Parent Entity

2016 2015

8000 $'000

Impairment of Receivables from Mt Gordon 30,308 163,340
30,308 163,340

29. Events Subsequent to Balance Date

There are no material subsequent events after the balance date.
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Directors’ Declaration

Inaccordance with a resolution of the Directors of Aditva Birla Minerals Limited. we state that:
1. In the opinion of the Directors:

a)  the financial statements. notes. and the additional disclosures icluded in the Directors’ Report
designated as audited, of the Company and of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001. including:

(i}  giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at
31 March 2016 and of their perfarmance for the year ended on that date: and

3

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001: and

b)  there are reasonable grounds to believe Lhat the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable.

2. This declaration has been made aller receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors,

. ST
=, . R \ k‘;‘J T
WASINw T ﬁ-iux-ffj' \ A=
Debu Bhattacharyy Neela Madhab Painaik
Chairman CEO and Managing Director

Perth, 30 May 2016

277



Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Aditya Birla
Minerals Limited

As lead auditer for the audit of Aditya Birla Minerals Limited for Ehe financia! year ended 31 March 2016, |
declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Aditya Birta Minerals Limited and the entities it controlied during the
financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Ernst & Young

/M/jwé;ij

Gavin Buckingham
Partner
30 May 2016
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Aditya Birla Minerals
Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Aditya Birfa Minerals Limited, which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the income statement, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other exptanatory
information, and the directors' declaration of the company and the consolidated entity comprising the
company and the entities it controlfed at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for
such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. in Note 1, the directors
also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that
the financial statements comply with /ntfernational Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Austratian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perferming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. in making
those rish assessments, the auditor considers internat controls relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial repert in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controls, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act

2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors' report,

279



Opinion
In our opinion:

a. the financial report of Aditya Birla Minerals Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the company's and consolidated entity's financial positions as at
31 March 2016 and of their performance for the year ended on that date: and

i complying with Austratian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 1.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Repart included in pages 15 to 19 of the directors' report for the year
ended 31 March 2016. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2001,
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accerdance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Aditya Birla Minerals Limited for the year ended 31 March
2016, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Ernst & Young

/M/j%Lm

Gavin Buckingham
Partner

Perth

30 May 2016
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BIRLA NIFTY PTY LIMITED
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BIRLA MAROOCHYDORE PTY LIMITED
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BIRLA RESOURCES PTY LIMITED
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A V MINERALS (NETHERLANDS) N.V.

A VMINERALS (NETHERLANDS) N.V.

Fit far Consolidation Balonce Shect as 91 31 Mareh, 2016

At}

3L March, 2010

Asbsoluto values in INR

Asat
31 Bfarch, 2515

109,009,150,000.00
{2.126.250,090.00}

102,056,6%0,000.00
(2.181.950.000.00)

166,482,960,000.00

99.874,740,000.00

106.682.900,000.00

9%,874,7440.054,00

106,665,770,000.00
100,000.00

99,852,650,000.00
100,009.00

E06.065.870,000.00

99.852.760.000,00

16,910,360.60
120.060.60

21,870.000.0¢
110.000.00

17,030,000,00

21,920.000.00

£06.081,900,000.00

25,374,740,048,04

MNote Mo.

LOUT I ITIES

Sharelsolders' Funds

Shipre Capitsd el
Reserves and Swplus 3
Current Liabilities
Shant-term Barowings e
ASSETS
Won.Current Assews
HonCurrent Investments R
Loag teni: Loans and Advances 5
Currezt Azscly
Crsb end Bank Balances %
Shan-term Eoans and Advances T
Summnary of signifscand accounting policies kS

The accompanying notes are an inteoml pant of the Fit for Contalidstian Financlal Statements.

Thisls the Batance Sheet referred ¢o oo our repertof even date

For and on belalf ol the board of directors

M aku'!l.

Anil Mathew
Director

Place; Mumbai

Dae: ‘?,%]s‘i 1

348



BEVENUES
Qiher Incame
‘ot Revemuns

ENEENSES
Finance Cogmts
Qthet Expenses
Tota) Expanses

Profit/ {Loss) before Tay
Tax Expenses:

Current Tax/Deferred Trx
Profit/ (Loss} for the Year

AV MINERALS MNETHERLANDS) N.V.
Fit for Cansolidation Sintement of Profit and Lass for the Year Ended 31 Mareh, 2016

(Rs. Mitliong)

Year Ended Year Ended
Motz He, 34 dlarch, 2018 3I Mareh, 2015
'8 - - 3.900.000.20
- . 3.900,600.80
» 6,270,000.00 - 707,470.000.00
6,270.000.00 - 707,470,000,00
6.270000.60) - {703,570.006.00)
{£,270.000,08) - {703.570,000,00}

Swinemary ol significani sccounting poficiey UK .. -

The secampanying nptes are an inteprol part of the Fit for Contolidation Finaneisl Stalemerks. s d

This iz the Stntement of Profit mnd Loss referred o on our report of even dare,

For and on behalf ol the board of direciors

Anil Mathew %gw»m/‘,
Direetor elor

Placer Mumbai

Do 22 5§,
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A V MINERALS (NET}IEI{LANDS) N.V.
Fit for Conselidatien Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 Morels, 2016

A. CAS1 FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (Luzs) befors Tax
Adjusimens for
Finaneo Cpsts
laterest {ncorne
Unitealized Foreign Exelianpe {Gain)/ Lazs (Net}
Lose/ {Gain) an Derivetive mnsactions (Net}
Impact 67 Foreiga Exchonge Translation dus ta repayment of Share Caplint
hvesting Activitics {NeD)
Operating Profiz / {Loss) before Changes In Working Capita)
Clienges in woeking Capitl:
Changes in Azsets and Liabiljties:;
Other bang teem asseis
Clzanges in otler curent Nichilities
Net Cash Generated/(Used) « Operating Actlvities

B, CASIEFLOW FROM INVESTRIENT ACTIVITIES
Rem of Copial froin Subsidiary
Pueehase of assets, refated pany, net
Investment in Subsidiary - Hindaleo do Bragii Indiistria E Camdrein De Alumine Lida
Refund of sdvasce againgt equity in AV Mewals o
Addlelona! lendings on felated Panty %ans receivable
interest Received

Net Cash Gengrateds (Uscd} = Envesting Aetiviries

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from fsue of Shases (Not o Expenses)
Equity invesiment from Hindaleo Industries Limited
Proteeds! Repaymcnt of Shioni-tenn Domowings (Nat) Relaed Panies
Repayrenl of Long-tent Bopowings
Firance Coxi Pajd
Retum ol Copilal to Parent (Hindzlco)

MNet Cash Generated/ {Used) - Finaaelng Activities

Net Ingrease (Deerease) in Coab and Cash Equivelects

Add : Opening Caghhand Casly Equivalents

Add : Fostiga Exchiange Variaticn on Cash and Cagl) Equivelens
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes:

L. “The Fit for Centolidation Cash Flow Sigtement hos been prepared under the indirecl method as st out in A

2. Cash and cash squivalents consist of batance will banks,

Year Ended
3 Alerch, 2006

{Rs. Miliions)
Year Ended

31 March, 2005 ___

(6.270,000.00) - (703,570,000.00)
. . £3.900,000.00}
L 695.050,008.00

(6.270,000.00) . {12,420,000.00%

(6,270,0B0.003 _ (12,420,000,00)

(500,230,000.00)

15,003,750,000.00

(623,150,000.00)

- . 3,900.00¢.00
{500.2]0.005‘00) - 1:4384,500,060,00
50'0.230,000.00 - -
- . £578,240,000.00}

= - ¢13.825,330,000.00%
$00.210.000.08 | {14.403,570,000.003
(5,270,000.00) - {31,450,000.09)
21,871800,00 - 19.030,000.00
1,310,060.00 . 23,530.000.00

£6,080,006.00

21,870,000.00

ccounting Standard (AS} 3 "Cosh Flow Statement* g5

This it the Cash Flow Statement referxed to on our report of even dafe,

For and on bebnlfof tie hoerd of directozs

& 1
Anit Mathew M
Direstar Directar
Place: Mumbai
Pei: 23| 52016
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A ¥ MINERALS (NETHERLANDS) N.V.
MNotes to the Fit for Congolidation Financial Stntements os at and for the yeor ended 31 Marcl, 2016

AV Minerls (Netherlands) N.V. (A V Minerls or the Campany) was incesporated in Amsterdarm, the Nelherlnnds on £8 April, 2007 as a private
company with limited Jinbility under the provisions of the Duteh Civil Code; and wos convered into a public company on 28 Morck, 2014, The

Company i3 a whotly-owned subsfidiary of Hindalco Industries Lid. {Hindalco), A V Minerale was formed as a holding company for the direct .
investment in ils wholly-owned subsidiary, A V Metals Inc, (A V Metals). A V Manls was incofporated in Ontario, Connda under the Conadn Business
Corperations Act (CBCA) on | February, 2007 oz o holding company for the diret invesiment in its whelly-owned subsidiary, & ¥ Aluminum Inc. (A Y
Afuminum) Navelis [nc.

AV Aluminum was incorporeted in Onlario, Canada under the CRCA, AV Alumninam was initizlly farmed ond incorporated as “6703534 Canada
Limited" on 16 Jonuory, 2007, and its nzme was changed to A V Alumingm [ne. on 6 February, 2007, A ¥ Aluminum was formed as o halding company
for the ditect investment in is whally-owned operating subsidiary, Novelis Inc. and its subsidiarics (Novelis).

Navelis is 1 company incorparared in Ontario, Canada under the Crnads Busingss Corporation Act on 21 September, 2064, Novelis pradutes stuminum
sheet and Eight gauge products for usz in the packaging marker, which includas beverage and food can and foi! preducts, ag well as for use in e
autemelive, tnnsportation, clectronics, architecturn] and industriat preduct morkets. Novelis is elzo the world's largest recycler alaluminum and has
recycling aperations in many of ils plants to reeyele both posteansumst aluminum and post-incusizint olumioum. As 0t 31 March, 2016, Hovelis had
manufagiuring operotions in 11 counivs on four continents, which incude 25 operating plants, and recyeling operations in 11 of these plants.

Effective 29 Seplemher, 2010, in cennection with an internal restructuring tnsaction, pursuant to articles of nmalgomation under the CBCA, Novelis
was amalgamated with A V Aluminum, 1o foem an amalgamated corperation named Novelis Inc., afso & Canadian corporation.

As a result of Uie Amatgnmation, Hovelisnnd A V Aluminum continue Novelis' corperate existence, (e amalgamated Novelis In¢, remains liable for all
of Novelis and A V Aluminum’s obligations and confinues to own nfl of Novelis ardl A V Alominum respective property, Since A 'V Aluminum wns a

holding enmpony whose sole asset was the shares of the pre amaigamated Novelis, the business, munagemert, board of diegctoss and cotperate

gltgovcmancr procedures of Novelis In¢. foliowing the Amalgamalion are identical to thase of Navelis immediately prior to the Amaigamation, Novelis
nc., fike A V Aluminum, remains an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Hindojco.

In January, 2013, Novelis do Brasil Lida,, subsidiary of Novelis Inc.; and Novelis e, subsidiary of A V Metls Ing. {jointly as selters), exccuted the
Quota Purchase and Saje Agreement with AV Minemls (Nethedands) N.Y, (buyer), parent of A"V Mectals Inc. and subsidiary of Hindalco, to sell the
Alumina Assels {bauxite mining rights and exploration applications fpermits, ccrain real eslate properties, atlumina refinery and other assets used in or
related 1o the productiop of aluminz). For that purpose, Movelis do Brasil Lida, incorporated a limited fiability subsidiary company, Hindalco do Brasil
Industria ¢ Comercio de Afumina Lida {Hindaleo do Brosil), and translerred the Alumina Assets to Hindaleo do Bragi b)j oy of “drop down”, The
buyer acquired all the owtstanding equity shares (quotas) ol Hindalco do Brasil after tha completion ef the corporte rearganization, and minskr of
licenses and permils, necessary for starting opsratians of Hindaleo do Beasit,

Each of Hindalro, A V Mintrals, A V Mctals, and Movelis has a 31 March fiseal year end.

References herein to A V Minerals,” “we,* “our,” “the Company,” or “ug™ rafer 1o A V Mincrals {(Netherlands) N.V.

Significant Accounting Pollefes

Principle of Prepacation

{1). TheFit lor Consolidation (FFC) financial statements of A V Minerals are presented on n nen—consolidated, stand-nlone basis,

{2). While e Finencial Statements have been prepared in U.S. Doflars (USD), the same has been transtated into Indign Rupess (Rs) to facilitate
Hindalco in preparation of its consolidated fAnanclal slaternents (Refer Palicy H3.

{3}. There ars ao Fixed Assets, Inventories or Employzes in A V Minerals,

Azcounting Convention

The financinl slatements are prepared under the historical cost convendon, on accrual Lasis aud in conformity with the group acgounting pobicies of

Hindales, which are in accordance with the generally aceepted accounting principles in India and other recognised accounting principies.

Usc of Estimates

The pee paration of financial stataments require estimates and assumptions to be made thet affect the repored amounl of assets and Jfnbilities on the date
of the finaneial statements and the Teported amouni of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference betweasn the actual resulls and
estimates are néezognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.

Investnents
(1). Long term investments are carried at cost afler deducting provision, ifony, for diminution in value considerad to be ather than temporery in matare.

{2). Current investments are stated af lower of cost and fair value,
Fereign Currency Transactions

Tmnsattions in foreign curtency are recorded at the rate ol exchange prevailing on the date oftransaciion. Year end bzlance of foreign cumeney
transactions is transtted ut the yeor end rates, Exchange differe nees arising on settlement of monetary items ar on reporting of monelary flems at mtes
different rom those. oL which they were initially recosded during the pecied or reporled in previous Fnancial statements are recognized as incoms ot
expense in the period inwhich they ariss,

Taxoijen

Provision for curven income Wax is made in nccordance with toeal Jaws, Deferred tax fiabilkies and nssels are recagnized at subsiantively enacted tax

rates, subject ta the consideration of prudence, on timing differance. Delked tax assets including deferred tax ossets on carry forward losses under tax
Jaw, are recopnised to the extent it 35 probahle that taxoble future profi will be available against which such deferred \ax assels can be renfised.,

Provisions, Contingent LiabYitfes and Comlingent Arsets

Provigians are recognized when there {5 & present obligation 2s a result ofa past event that probably requires nn outflaw of resources and a refintle
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligntion, Disclosure far a contingant liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a preserr
obligarion that may, but probatly will not, require an outllow ol resources. Mo provisions nze recognized or disclosure for contingent liability is made
when there i¢ a possible abligation or & present obligation and tha tikelihaod of outllow of'resources is remote. Cantingent Assels are neither recognized
not disclosed in the financiel statements,

Fit-for Consolidaffon Adjusiments

A V Minemls, being a pon-integral foreign operation 1o Hindatew, revenue and expense items are translated at the average ratey prevaiting during the
period All assets, finbilities and equity are transfated of rates prevailing otihe end of the perind, Any exchange dilference srising on cansolidation is
recopnized in the “Foreipn Currency Translation Reserve®,
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AV MINERALS (NETHERLANDS) N.V,
Notes to the Fit for Consolidation Finaucial Statements as at and for the year cnded 31 Mareh, 2016

Share Capitak:

{ILs. Mliong)
Azt
31 Mareh, It March,
2016 2015
lssued, Subscribed and Pajd-up:
2,228,728 (previous year 31 Mnn;h, 2015:2,216,589) Ordinary Shazes of Buro 567.83 (previous year 31 March, 2015:
Euro 567.83) pac volue - Fully paid-up » shates issued ond ouslanding, 109,009.15 102 056.69
109,009.15 102,056.69

{2} 2,228,728 Cominen Stock (previgus year 31 March, 2015: 2,216,689) of the Company are held by Hindalce Industries Limited.

{&} Reconciliation of shares and amount of capital outstanding at the beginning and ot the end of the repaning yeae:

3} March, 2015 - 31 March,
2016

Numbers Rs. {Millions) Numbers
Equity shares putstending a1 the beginning of the year 2,216,689 102,056.69 2,216,089
Equiry contribution from parent company - () 12,039 30023 —
Reduction due 10 change In Mominal Value - (d} —_ — -
Adjustmesnt due to currency transfation — 6.452.23 —
Equity shares outsianding al the end afihe Year 2,228,128 109,009.15 2216680

31 March, 2084 ~ 31 March,
2015

Rs, {Miliions)
f11,432.81
(13,143.29)

3,767.17
102,056.62

() Hindalca has made equity contributions in AV Minerals of R, 500.23 million &nd received a tetaf of 12,039 Comman Steck during the year ended 31

March, 2016.

{d} On | July, 2014, pursuant 1o sharefiolder's resolution, effective 30 April, 2014, the issued copitaf of the Company was reduced by means ofa )
reduztion in the nominal value of all shares from Euro 843.76 to Euro 567.83 per share, nggregating Rs, 13,143.29 million to enable o rewrm of capitat

répayment ts Hindaleo,

Reserves nud Surplus;
Reserves and Surplus consist of he falowing:

(Ra. Miltions}
Az al
31 Mazch, 31 Marcch,
2016 2055
Fargign Cusrency Transintion Reserve (572.23) (434.20%
Surplus/(Defieit) i.e. balence in Statement of Profit and Loss (1,754.02) (1,747.75)
(2,526.25) (2,181.95)
For the period ended 31 March, 2016 additions and deductions since last balance sheet are os follows:
{Rs. Millions)
As 6t 3] March, Cutrency Asalll March,
20E5 Additicn Deduction Translation 216
Foreign Currency Tronstation Reserve (434.20) — — {138.03) (572.23)
Sumplusi{Deficit) L.e. balance in Statement of Profit and Loss (1,747.75) (6.27) — - (1,754.02}
(2,161.95) {6.27) — {133.03) (231625}
For the year ended 31 Mareh, 2015 additions and deductions since fast balance sheet ore as foliows:
(Rs. Mijlions)
At 31 Mareh, Currancy As at3] March,
014 Addition Deduction Transintion 2018

Fazeign Currency Tronstation Reserve (366.53) — — (67.67) (434.203
SurpluziDeficity i.e. balance in Statement of Profit and Loss {1,044,18) {703.57) —_ — . (1,747.35)
(141071} (703.57) — (6767} (2.181.95)
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AV MINERALS (NETHERLANDS) N.V.

Motes te ihe Fit for Consolidatian Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2056

MNon-Chrrent Investments:
Noni-Current Invesiments consist of the (ollowing:

Trade Investmants (Unquated, Valued at cost)

investments in Equity Tnstruments of subsidiary - Equity Shares in A V Metats Inc, - Sce Note 11 Related

Party Disclosures

Investments in Equity Instruments of subsidiary - Equity Shares in Hindaleo do Brasi) Indistria E Comércio

De Alumina Lida - Sze Note 11 Rejated Party Disclosures

Long-term Loans and Advances:
Long-term Loans and Advances consist of the fotlowing:

Loans, Advences and Deposiis o Related Porry
Unsecured, Cansidered Good - See Mate 1] Reloted Party Disclosures
Advance ogainst Equity in AV Metals Inc.

Cash ond Banlk Balances:
Cash and Dank Balances consist of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bolance with Banks;
Current Accounts

Short-teem Loons nnd Advances:
Short-Term Loans and Advances consist af the oltowing:

L.aans and Advances to Rclated Party
Unsecured, Considered Gaod - See Note 11 Reloted Paity Disclosures

QOther Encome:
Other lucome consist of'the following:

inlerest Income
Interest fram others - third Party

Other Expenses:
Othzr Expenses consist of the fallowing:

(Gain) Loss on foreign currency ransactions snd tranelation (Net)
Miscollancous Expenses {Professional fees and other COSLE)
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{Rs. Millions)
Asat
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015

103,854.,49 97.619.03
2.811.28 2,173.63
10666597 99.852.66
(Rs. Millions)

Asnt

3t March, 2816 31 March, 2015

0.:¢ 0.0
0.:6 0.1
(Rs. Miltians)

Asat

3! March, 2016 31 March, 2055

16,91 1187
16,91 21.87

(Rs. Miflions)
Asat
31 Marcly, 2016 31 March, 2015

iz LA
012 011

(Rs. Millions)
Year Endad
31 Masch, 2016 31 March, 2015

—_— 350
- 390

{Its. Mitlions)

Year Ended

31 dfarch, 2016 31 March, 2015
0.03 695.05
624 12.42
627 707437



AVMINERALS (NET) HERLANDS) N.V.
Notes to the Fit for Consulidation Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2046

0. Scgment Reporting:
A. Primary Segment (by Business Segnient):

(3). The Company cperates in single business sepment viz Al
arenet part of the segment because of their pature.

{b}. Inter-segmant tansfers are at market rates,
(ch. Informaticn aboutthe Primary Segment are as follows

uminium thowugh certain iteins have bean treated es “un-allocable” signifying the same

(Rs. Millions)
Agatond for the Year Ended

31 March, 2016 31 March, 2045
RESULTS

Segment Kesults

(6.24) {1242)

Un-allocable incame {net) / (Loss) (0.03) (691.15)
Net Prafit/ (Loss} (6.27) (703,57}
OTHER INFORMATION
Assels!

Sepment Assets 16491 .87

Un-atlocable Assers 106,665.99 99,852 .87
Total Assets 106,682.90 $9,874.74

B, Secondary Segmeat (by Geograpltical (emarcatlon):
(a). The secondary segment is based on peographical demarcation i.c. Indiz and Rest of the World,
(b}. The Group’s revenue from extemal customers and information about its assels and others by geogrophicai locatfon are folfaws:

(Rs. Millions)
Asat 31 March, 2016 As at 31 March, 2005
Indin Rest of World Tolal India Rest of Waorld Tola]
Segrment Assets — 6.8 146,98 — 21.87 21.87
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AV MINERALS (NETHERLANDS) M.V,
Nates to the Fit for Consolidntion Financinl Stateroents as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2016

If. Rclated Pnrty Disclosures;

A.

14,

Relaled Pnrtfes with whom trnsretions bave talien pace during the year:
{a). Subsidinrles:

A V¥ Metls Inc,

Hindaleo do Brosil Indistria E Coméreio De Alumina Lidn

{b). Porent:
Hindalca Indusiries Limited

Disclosure of transnciions In the ordinary course of busingss bativeen thie Company and Hs Redated Parties during the year and status of
putstanding balanees né year end:

Subsidinry nnd Pnrent;
{Rs. Mitlions)
As at and far the As ot and for the
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Manch, 2016 31 Mareh, 2015
Substdiary Parent Subsidiary Parent
Transactions during the year:
Equily investments fram Hindatee Industries Limiled — 500.23 — —_
Repayment efozns and advances from Hindnjco Industries Limited — — — 578.24
Return of capital to Hindaico Indusicies Limited e _ — 13,825.33
Return ofcopital from AV Metals Ine. —_ —n 15,003.75 —
Equity Investment in Hindaloo do Brasil Indistria B Comércio De
Alumina Lida 50023 - 62315 -
Outstnnding batances ns at 3Est Mnrch:
Advances apainst equity in AV Metais Inc. 0.10 — 0.10 m
Intercompany loan receivable batonce from AY Metals Enc, o1 e 0.3l —_
Investments madz by the Company in:
AV Metals Inc. (i} 103,854.49 —— 97,679.01 —
Rindalco do Brasil Indistcia E Coméscio De Aluming Leda {ify 281138 — 2,173.63 —

{)  Investments made by the Campany in AV Metaks Inc. includes exchenpe rate fluctuation of Rs. 6,175.46 mitdion as at 31 March, 2016 as
compared to 31 Mareh, 2015,

(ii} Investments made by the Company in Hindalco do Brasil Industrin B Comercio DE Alumina Lida includes exchange rate Auctuation ¢f Re.
13742 miltion as at 31 March, 2016 a5 compared to 31 March, 2015.

- The investment in Subsidinry Companies was reviewed far any Jang term diminution in the value of invesiment and no diminution was indicated,

As a¢ 31 Morch, 2016 we bave nat recopgnized any deferred 1ax assel apainst net oparating loss earry forwards, in ohsence of virtual ecctainty that such
benefits will be realized.

AV Minzrals s made equity invesimens in Hindaloo do Brasi of RS, 500,22 miflion and received a toln] 626,554,033 Common Steck during the year
entd=d 3§ Marcl, 2016,

Signafures to Motes § to 14

For and on behisif ofthe hoard pf directors

JVU

Anit Mathew
Director

Placz: Mumbai
Date: Z & ff}),&,
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AV METALS INC.

AV METALS INC.
Fit for Consolidation Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2016

(Rs. Millions)

As at Asat
Note Ne. 31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders’ Funds
Share Capital 2 £03,854.49 97.672.03
Reserves and Surplus 3 (254.31) (239.21)
103,600,18 97,439,882
Share Application Money pending allotment K 0.10 0.10
Current Liabilitics
Short-term Borrowings '5' 0.18 0.18
103,600.46 97,440.10
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Non-Current Investments 6 103,600.46 97,440,10
103,600,406 97,440.10
Sunumary of significant acecunting policies T

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Fit for Consolidation Financial Statements,

This is the Balance Sheet referred to on our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Praveen Maheshwari
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date ;
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AV METALS INC.
Fit for Consolidation Statcment of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31 March, 2016

{Rs. Millions)

Year Ended Year Ended

Note No. 31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015
REVENUES
Other Income 7 0.05 —
EXPENSLES
Other Expenses '8 0.03 0,02
Total Expenses 0.03 0.02
Profit / {Loss) before Tax 0.02 (0.02)
Tax Expenses;
Current Tax/Deferred Tax — —
Profit/ {(Loss) for the year 0.02 (0.02)

Summary of significant accounting policies s
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Fit for Consolidation Financial Statements,

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to on our report of even date.

For and on behal{ of" the board of directors

Praveen Maheshwari
Dyirector

Place: Mumbai
Date :
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AV METALS INC.

Fit for Consolidation Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 March, 2016

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) belore Tax
Gperating Profit / {Loss) before Changes in Working Capital
Changes in working Capital
Net Cash generated/ (used) - Operating Activitics

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Return of Capital from Novelis Inc.
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Return of Capital to parent (AV Minerais)
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Financing Activities

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Add : Gpening Cash and Cash Equivalents

Add : Foreign Exchange variation on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes:

Year Ended
31 March, 2016

{Rs. Millions)
Year Ended
31 March, 2015

0.02

(0.02)

0.02
(0.02)

(0.02)
0.02

15,003.75

15,003.75

(15,003.75)

{15,003.75)

1. The Fit for Consolidation Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect metliod a5 set out in Accounting Standard {AS} 3 "Cash Mlow

Statement" as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rule 2006,
2. Cash and cash cquivalenls consist of bajance with banks.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to on our report of even date.
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For and on behalf ol the board of directors

Praveen Maheshwari

Director

Place: Mumbai
Date :
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AV METALS INC.
Notes to the Fit for Consolidation Financial Staterments as at and for the Year Ended 31 March, 2016

A V Metals Inc. {A ¥ Metals or the Company) was incorporated in Ontario, Canada under tbe Canada Business Corporations Act (CBCA}) on 1
February, 2007 as a holding company for the direcs investment in its wholly-owned subsidiary, A V Aluminum Inc. (A V Aluminum). A V Metals isa
whaolly-owned subsidiary of A V Minerals {Netherlands) N.V. (A V Minerals), which was incorporated in Amsterdam, the Netherlands on 18 April,
2007 as a private company with limited liability under the provisions of the Dutch Civil Code; and was converted into a public company ot 28 March,
2014. A 'V Minerals was formed as a holding company for the direct investment in A V Metals and is a wholty-owned subsidiary of Hindalco Industries
Lad. (Hindalco).

AV Alumibim was incorperated in Ontario, Canada under the CBCA. A V Aluminum was initiatly formed and incorporated as “6703334 Canada
Limited” on 16 January, 2007, and its name was changed t¢ A V Aluminum Inc. on 6 February, 2007. A V Aluminum was formed as a holding company
for the direct investment in its wholly-owned operating subsidiary, Novelis Inc. and its subsidiaries (Novelis).

Novelis is a company incorporated in Ontario, Canada under the Canada Business Corporation Act oti 21 September, 2004, Novelis produces aluminum
sheet and light gauge products (or use in the packaging market, which includes beverage and food can and fail products, as well as for use in the
autotnotive, transportation, electronics, architectural and industrial product markets. Novelis is also the world's Jargest recycler of aluminum and has
recycling operations in many of its pfants to recycle both postconsumer atuminum and pest-industrial aluminum, As of March 31, 2016, Novelis had
manufacturing operations in 1 countries on four continents, which include 25 operating plants, and recycking operations in 11 of these planis.

Effective 29 September, 2010, in connection with an internat restructuring transaction, pussuant to arlicles of amalgamation under the CBCA, Novelis
was amalgamated with A V Ahuminum, to form an amalgamated corperation named Novelis Inc., also a Canadian corporation.

As aresult of the Amalgamation, Novelis and A ¥V Afumihum continue Novelis® corporate existence, the amalgamated Novelis Inc. remains liable for all
of Novelis and A ¥V Aluminum’s obligations and continues to own alt of Novelis and A V¥ Aluminum respective property. Since A V Aluminum was a
holding company whose sole asset was the shares of the pre amalgamated Novelis, the business, management, board of directors and corporate
governance procedures of Novelis Inc. following the Amalgamation are identical to those of Novelis immediately prior to the Amalgamation. Novefis
Inc., like A V Aluminum, remains an indirect, wholiy-owned subsidiary of Hindalco.

Each of Hindalco, A V Minerals, A ¥V Metals, and Novelis has a 31 March fiscal year end,

References herein to “A V Metals,” “we,” “our,” “the Company,” or “us” refer to A 'V Metals Inc.

Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Preparation

{a). The Fit for Consolidation (FFC) financial statements of A ¥ Metals are presented on a non-consolidated, stand-alone basis.

(b). While the Financiat Statements have been prepared in U.S. Dollars {USD), the same has been translated inta Indian Rupees (Rs) to facilitate
Hindalco in preparation of its conseolidated financial statements (Refer Policy H),

(c). There are no Fixed Assets, Inventories or Employees in A V Metals,

Accounting Convention

The financial stalements are prepared under the historicat cost convention, on accrual basis and in conformity with the group accounting policies of

Hindzlco, which are in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India and other recognised accounting principles.

Use ol Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions 1o be made that affect the reporied amount of assets and liabilities on the
date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.

Investments

(a). Long term investments are carried at cost after deducting provision, if any, for diminution in value considered to be other than temporary in nature.
{b). Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. Year end batance of [oreign currency
transactions is translated at the year end rates. Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initialty recorded during the period are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Provision for current income tax is made in accordance with focal laws. Defetred tax liabilities and assets are recognized at substantively enacted tax
rates, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing difference. Deferred tax assets including deferred tax assets on carry forward losses under tax
faw, are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable future profis will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asscts

Provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable
estitnate can be made of the amount of the obligation, Disclosure for contingent liabilitics are made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an cutllow of resources. No provision is recognized or disclosure for a contingent liability is made
when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likeliliood of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent Asset are neither recognized
nor disciosed in the financial statements.

Fit-for-Conseolidation Adjustments

AV Metals, being a non-integral foreign aperation to Hindalco, revenue and expense items are translated at the average rates prevailing during the
period. All assets, Habilities and equity are translated at rates prevailing at the end of the period. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is
recognized in the "Foreipn Currency Translation Reserve".
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AY METALS INC.
Notes to the Fit for Consolidation Financial Statements as at and {or the year ended 31 March, 2016

Share Capital:
(Rs. Mitlions)
Asat
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
1,100 (previous year 1,100} Shares of Nil par value - Fully paid-up issued and owtstanding 103,854.49 97,679.03
103,854.49 97,679.03

{a). 1,100 Common Stocks (Previous year [,100 Common Stocks) of the Company are held by AV Minerals (Netherlands) N.V.

(b). Recenciliation of shares and amount of capital owstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.

31 March, 2015 - 3] March, 2016 31 March, 2014 - 31 March, 2015

Numibers Rs. (Millions) Numbers Rs, (Miltions)
Equity shares cutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,100 97,679.03 1,100 109,077.06
Return of Capital -{ ¢} — — — {15,003,75)
Adjustment due to currency translation - 6,173.46 o 3,605.72
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,k00 103,854.49 1,100 97,679.03

(c).  Pursuant to Share holder's resolution dated 30 April, 2014, the issued capital of the Company was reduced by means of capital to AV Minerals
(Nethertands) N.V. in the amount of Rs. 15,003,75 million.

Reserves and Surplus:
Reserves and Surplus consist of the following:

(Rs. Millions)
As at

31 March, 2016 31 March, 20§35
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (97.14) {82.02)
Surplus/{Deficit) i.e. balance in Statement of Profit and Loss (157.17) (157.19)
(254.31) (235.21)

For the year ended 31 March, 2016 additions and deductions under each head since last balance sheet are as under:
(Rs. Mitlions)
As at 31 March, Currency As at 31 March,
2015 Addition Deduction Translation 2016

Foreigh Currency Translation Reserve (82,02} e — (15.12} 97,14
Surplus/(Deficit) i.e. batance in Statement of Profit and Loss (157.19 0.02 — — (15717
' (235.21) 0,02 w (15.12) (234.31)

For the year ended 31 March, 2015 additions and deductions undez each head since last balance sheet are as under;
(Rs. Millions)

As at 31 March, Currency As at 31 March,
2014 Addition Deduction Translation 2015
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (73.18) —_ — (8.84) (82.02)
Surplus/ Delicit) i.e. balance in Statement of Profit and Loss {137.17) (0.02) — — (15719}
{230.35) (0.02) — (8.84) (239.21)

Share Application Mouey pending allotment
{Rs. Miilions)

Asat
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015
Advance against equity from AV Minerals {Netherlands) N.V, - See Note 10 Related Party Disclosures 0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10
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AV METALS INC,
Notes to the Fit for Consolidation Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2016

Short-term Borrowings
{Rs. Millions)
Asat

31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015

Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand
Loans and Advances from Related Parties - AV Minerals (Netherlands) N.V. - See Note 10 Related Party

Disclosuzes 0.12 0.11
From Banks 0.06 0,07
0.18 0.18

MNon-Current Investments
Non-Current Investments consist of the foliowing:
(Rs. Miltions)
Asat

31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015

Investments in Equity [nstruments of subsidiary - 1,100 (previous year 31 March, 2015; 1,100) Equity Shares
in Novelis Inc. - See Note 10 Related Party Disclosures 103,600.46 97,440.10

103,600.46 97,440.10

Other Tncome:
Other Income consist of the following:
(Rs. Miiltons)

Year ended
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015
Liabilities no longer required written back 0.05 —
0.05 —

Other Expenses:
Other Expenses consist of the following:
(Rs. Mitlions)

Year ended
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015
Miscellaneous Expenses - Bank Fees 0.03 0.02
0.03 0.02
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AVYMETALS INC,
Notes to the Fit for Consolidation Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2016

Segnient Reporting

Primary Segment {by Business Segment):

{(a). The Company operates in single business segment viz. Aluminium though certain items have been treated as "un-allocable” signifying the same
are not part of the segment because of their nature.

(b), Inter-segment translers are at market rates.

(c). Information about the Primary Segment are as follows
(Rs. Miltions)

As at and for the Year Ended
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015

RESULTS
Sepment Results 0.02 (0.02)
Un-allocable income (net) — —
Finance Costs

Net Profit / (Loss) 0.02 (0.02)
OTHER INFORMATION
Assefs:
Segment Assets — s
Un-aliocable Assets 103,600.46 97,440.10
Total Assels 103,600.46 97,440,110
Linbilities:
Segment Liabilities — —
Un-allocable Liabilities 0.18 0.18
Totai Liabitities 0.18 0.18

Secondary Segment (by Geographical demarcation):
(a). The secondary segment is based on geographical demarcation i.c. India and Rest of the Waorld.

{b). The Group’s revenue from external cusioniers and information about its assets and others by geographical location are fotiows:
{Rs. Millions)

As at 31 March, 2016 Asat 31 March, 2015
India Rest of World Tatal Endia Rest of Worid Total

Sepment Assets — — _— —_—
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A Y METALS INC,
Notes to the Fit for Consolidation Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2016

10, Related Party Disclosures:

A. Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

H.

12.

13.

(a). Subsidiary:
Novelis Inc.

{b). Parent:
A ¥V Minerafs (Netherlands) N.V.
Hindalco Industries Limited, ultimate holding conzpany

- Disclosure of transactions in the erdinary course of business between the Company and its Related Parties during the year and status of

oulstanding balances at year end:
Subsidiary and Parent:
(Rs. Millions)

As at and lor the As at and for the
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015

Subsidiary Parent Subsidiary Parent

Transactions during the year:
Declaration and payment of return of capital to A V Minerals (Netherlands) N.V, — — — 15,003.75

Outstanding balances as at 3ist March:

Advances against equity from AV Minerals (Netherlands) NV — 0.10 — 0.10
Intercompany loan payable balance — 0,12 — 0.11
Investments made by the Company (i) 103,600.46 — 97,440.10 —_

(i) Investments made by the Company includes exchange rate {luctuation of Rs. 6,160.36 million on 31 March, 2016 as compared to 31 March,
2015.
The investment in subsidiary was reviewed for any long term diminution in the value of investment and ne diminution was indicated.

As o 31 March, 2016, we have not recognised any deferred tax asset against net eperating loss carry forwards, in absence of virtual certainty that such
beneflits will be realized,

The Company is a guarantor as primary obligor for all the obiigations of Novelis Inc. under both the Term Loan Facility and Assets Baged Loan Facility
(ABL Facility). In addition to the guarantees, AV Metals has pledged 100% of the shares of Novelis Inc. as cotiateral for the two foans (first priority to
the Term Loan Facility lenders and second priority to the ABL Facility lenders).

For and on behalt of the board of directors

Praveen Kumar Maheshwari
Director

Place: Mamnbai
Date :
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HINDALCO GUINEA SARL

AUDITORS REPORT

To
The Board of Directors of HINDALCO GUINEA SARI,,

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HINDALCO GUINEA SARL as at 31* March,
2016 and the attached Profit and Loss Accounts and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for
the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

1. We report that :

a) we have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of such books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

d) in our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and [oss accounts and cash flow staternent
dealt with by this report complies with the generally accepted accounting
standards, to the extent applicable:

FRUATE & CO,
,/’“‘—-h‘\* A

([ mamaal i)

"
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e) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation
given to us, the said Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Accounts and Cash Flow
Statement gives true and fair view in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles :

I. In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the State of Affairs of the Company as
at 31% March, 2016; and.

it. In the case of the Profit and Loss, of the Loss of the Company for the year
ended 31* March, 2016; and

iit. In the case of the Cash Flow statement, of the cash flow of the company
for the period ended 31° March, 2016.

For M/s VIVEK AWATE & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No : 117253W
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VIVEKANAND AWATE  * . Place : Navi Mumbai
(Proprietor) R
Membership No 102076 "7 . ....eq Ao oot Date : 04.05.2016
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Hindalco Guinea SARL

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

- Note No.| As at 31st March 2016 {As at 31st March 2015
Particulars
uso INR uso INR
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds
Share Capital 3 1,433.25 94,960 | 1,433.25 89,313
Reserves and Surplus 4 (978.34)| (64,820)] (676.50}| {42,155)
Sub Total 45491 30,140 756.75 47,158
Share application money pending ailotment - - - -
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings - - - -
Other Long Term Liabilities 5 - - - -
Sub Total - - -
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 6 640.02 42,405 483.32 30,118
Sub Total 640.02 42,405 483,32 30,118
Total 1,094.93 72,545 | 1,240.07 77,276
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
(i} Tangible Assets - - - -
{ii} intangible Assets - - - -
{ii} Capital work-in-progress - - - -
Sub Total - - - -
Non-Current invesiments . - - -
Long Term Loans and Advances 7 - - - -
Sub Total - - - -
Current Assets
Current Investment 8 - - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 1,009.30 66,8711 1,134.44 71,340
Short-Term Loans and Advances 10 85.63 5,673 85.63 5,336
Sub Total 1,094.93 72,545 | 1,240.07 77,276
Total 1,094.93 72,545 | 1,240.07 77,276
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For VIVEK AWATE & CO.
Chartered Accountants.
Firm Registration No : 117253W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
HINDALCO GUINEA SARL

Vivekanand Awate {Director) {Director)
Proprietor . P\\;\j‘,'::.:l:E & COM/)
Membership No. : 10207;/\/\\\?,‘\},,./- ——rg s
——k \
Place : Mumbai / C ﬁ \

4
P
Date : 04/05/2016 \‘v,:f: |
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Hindalco Guinea SARL

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2016

Particuiars

Note
No.

Year ended 31st March

2016 2015

Year ended 31st Marc

Revenue from operations
Total Revenue

Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed
Employee Benefit Expenses
Financial Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses
'T}%int/ (Loss) before tax
Tax expense:

- Current tax

- Deferred tax
Profit/{Loss} for the period

Earning per equity share face value of GNF 100,000 each
- Basic & Diluted

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

11

12

usoh INR usb

INR

16,477

16,477

(16,477)

{251.88) {16,477) {222.94)

{13,631

{2.23)

{2.52) {164.77)

{136.31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.
»,

For VIVEK AWATE & CO.

Chartered Accountants.

Firm Registration No : 117253W

Qe (IS £ Copp
Vivekanand Awate \ \
Proprietor (Jv MUTRBAT )]

AN F ;

Membership No. : 102076 \ A
: \\\M‘ ————————— " _“_<-v-»u-“
Place : Mumbai - Che_u:teﬁ'i:q.tcelﬁfﬁﬁvuwri

Date : 04/05/2016
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
HINDALCO GUINEA SARL

(Director) {Director)



Hindalco Guinea SARL

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2016

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before Tax
Adjustments for:
Currency Translation Reserve

Change in Working Capital:
Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and Other Payables

B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Equity Share Capital

Net Increase/ (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents
Opening Cash and cash equivalents
Currency Adjustments

Closing Cash and cash equivalents

Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st v
2016 2015
usD INR usp INR
{251.88) (16,477)] (222.94) {13
{49.96) {5,426) 49,96 2,
{301.84) (21,903)| (172.98) {11,
156.70 12,286 175.21 11,
156.70 12,286 175.21 11,
(145.14) (9,616) 2.23
{145.14) (9,616) 2.23
1,154.44 71,940 | 1,152.21 70,
4,548 - 1,
1,009.30 66,871 | 1,154.44 71,

As per our report of even date attached.

For VIVEK AWATE & CO.
Chartered Accountants.
Firm Registration No : 117253w

MO e el 2 N

Vivekanand Awate
Proprietor 2 fhd
Membership No. : 102076 Y\ \._ ’

.,
3 R I Y
Charteoed Aointcbiv

., " — o s bt =

Place : Mumbai
Date : 04/05/2016
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

HINDALCO GUINEA SARL

{Director)




Hindalco Guinea SARL

Note

: 1 Significant Accounting Policies and notes on accounts to the

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

1.

b)

d)

Corporate Information

Hindalco Guinea SARL is a Limited Liability company domiciled in Guinea and
incorporated under the statue of applicable law of the Republic of Guinea, The
company is intending to engage in the business of development and operation of
bauxite mines in the Republic of Guinea.

Significant Accounting Policies :

Basis of Preparation

~ The financial statements have been prepared in US dollars to comply in all material

respect with generally accepted accounting practices (GAAP)., The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on an accrual
basis of accounting. The accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the period by the company.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumiptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Fixed Assets

There are no fixed assets in the company.

Depreciation

As the company does not have any fixed assets, no depreciation has been provided

during the year.

Inventories
There is no inventory in the company.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognised the revenue only when its collection is reasonably

certain,
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Retirement Benefits
The Company is not required to provide for retirement benefits in the current
financial year as it has not started any business.

Foreign Currency Translation

All monetary assets and liabilities are converted at the closing year end exchange
rate, share capital is also converted at the closing year end exchange rate and the
expenses are converted at the average rate. Exchange rate differences are expensed
in the profit & loss accounts in the period in which they arise.

Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be require to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be of the amount
of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in
financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the
financial statements.
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Hindalco Guinea SARL

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Note No 3 :

Share Capital

Particulars As at 31st March 2016 | As at 31st March 2015
Authorised Capitai uso INR uso INR
Equity Share Capital

100 Equity Shares of GNF 100,000 each 1,433.25 94,960 1,433.25 89,313
Total 1,433.25 94,960 1,433.25 89,313
Issued,Subscribed & Paid up

Equity Share Capitaf 1,433.25 94,960 1,433.25 89,313
Total 1,433.25 94,960 1,433,25 89,313

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Year ended 31st March 2015

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2016

In Nos, usD INR In Nos, uspD INR
Equity Share
At the beginning of the periad 100.00 1,433.25 94,960 100 | 1,433.25 89,313
Add: Issued during the year - - - . -
Outstanding at the end of the year 100.00 1,433.25 94,960 100.00 | 1,433.25 87,113

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
Equity Shares

The company has only one class of shares having a par value at GNF 100,000/- per

¢. Shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries and associates

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2016 Year ended 31st March 2015
Nos. Uso INR Nos. usD INR
Equity Shares
Holding Company
Hindalco industries Ltd 100 1,433.25 94,560 100 | 1,433.25 89,313
d. Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of equity share capital
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2016 | Year ended 31st March 2015
Nos, Percentage Nos. Percentage
Equity Shares
Hindalco Industries Ltd 100 100.00 100 100.00
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Hindalco Guinea SARL

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Note No 4 ;: Reserve & Surplus
Sr.No  |Particulars As at 31st March 2016 As at 31st March 201
ush INR uso INR
1|Securities Premium reserve - - - -
2|Currency translation reserve - {6,150) 49.96
3[5urplus (Profit & Loss Account)
Balance brought forward from previous year (726.46) {42,193) {503.52) {28,5
Add: Profit / {Loss) for the period (251.88) (16,477) (222.94) (13,6
Total {378.34) (64,820} {676.50) (42,1.

Note no 5: Other Long Term Liabilities

As at 31st March 2016

As at 31st March 2015

Sr.Ne  |Particulars
UsD INR uso INR
) 3 1|tong Term Creditors - . - -
Total - - - -
Note No 6: Other Current Liahilities
Sr.No  |Particulars As at 31st March 2016 As at 31st March 2015
UsD INR Uso INR
1|Other payables (specify nature)
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 140.77 9,326.72 140.77 8,772.C
Liability for Expenses 499,25 33,077.86 342.55 | 21,346.C
Total 640.02 42,404.58 483.32 | 30,118.0
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Hindalco Guinea SARL

Notes to the Financial Statements‘as at 31st March, 2016

Note No 7 : Long Term Loans and Advances

Sr. No

Particulars

As at 31st March 2016

As at 31st March 2015

uso

INR

uso

INR

Other Loans & Advances
Preliminary Expenditure

Total

Note No 8 : Current Investment

As at 31st March 2016

As at 31st March 2015

Sr. No |Particulars
uso INR uso INR
1{fnvestment - - - .
:Z? Total - - - i

Note No 9 : Cash & Cash Equivalent

Sr. No

Particulars

As at 31st March 2016

As at 31st March 2015

usp

INR

ush

iNR

[

Cash-in-Hand
Cash Balance
Sub Total {A)

Balance With Banks
Includes:

Current Account
Sub Total {B)

1,009.30
1,009.30

66,871
66,871

1,154.44
1,154.44

71,940
71,540

Totat[A + B]

1,009.30

66,871

1,154.44

71,940

3y

N'c”fice No 10 : Short Terms Loans and Advances

As at 31st March 2015

Sr. No [Particulars As at 31st March 2016
usD INR uso INR
1i0thers
Short term Loans & Advance to Others 85.63 5,673 85.63 5,336
{Unsecured, Considered Good)
Total 85.63 5,673 85.63 5,336
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Note No 11 : Financial Cost

Hindalco Guinea SARL
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2016

Sr. No

Particulars

Year Ended 31st March 2016

Year Ended 31st March 2015

Usb

INR

USD

INR

Total

Note No 12 : Other Expenses

Year Ended 31st March 2015

Sr.No {Particulars Year Ended 31st March 2016
uso INR UsD iNR
1]Audit Fees 173.11 11,324 179.69 10,986
2|Legal Charges - - - -
3|Bank Charges 49,53 3,240 43.25 2,644
4{Foreign Exchange Loss 29.24 1,912.63 - -
Total 251.88 16,477 222,94 13,631

For VIVEK AWATE & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration No : 117253W

(PP

Vivekanand Awate
Proprietor

s
Membership No. : 102076 \

Y
‘15lace : Mumbai
Date : 04/05/2016

Charte ced  Acepunldnis

et e i
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(Director)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
HINDALCO GUINEA SARL
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UTKAL ALUMINA TECHNICAL & GENERAL SERVICES LIMITED

Plot No. 2132/4299
(Near Rashmi Tower)
i Nageswar Tangi,

O\ A.N.Lenka & Associates Bhubaneswar- 751002

Chartered Accountants Phone: (0674) 2436607

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of Utkal Alumina Technical & General Services Ltd,
Bhubaneswar

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Utkal Alumina Technical &
General Services Ltd (“‘the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March,
2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Accounting
Standard 30, Financial Instruments, Recognition and Measurement issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India to the extent it does not contradict any other Accounting
Standards referred to in Sec 133 of the Act that read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based
on our audit.
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Plot No. 2132/4299
(Near Rashmi Tower)
. Nageswar Tangi,
A.N. Lenka & Associates Bhubaneswar- 751002

Chartered Accountants Phone: (0674) 2436607

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under
including the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether
the Company has in place an adequate internal financial control systems over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March,
2016 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by “the Companies (Auditor Report) Order 2015", issued by the Central Govt. Of
India in terms of Sub Sec 11 of Section 143 of the Act, (herein after referred to as the
“Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
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Plot No. 2132/4299
(Near Rashmi Tower)
Nageswar Tangi,

K’/\‘\ | A.N.Lenka & Associates B 002

A J Chartered Accountants Phone: (0674) 2436607

give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%*March,
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

(f) Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, on the basis of the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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(A A.N.Lenka & Associates Bhubaneswar- 751002

Chartered Accountants Phone: (0674) 2436607

.  The Company does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2016 hence,
there is no impact on its financial position in its financial statements.

i. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts,
for which there were any foreseeable losses.

iii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31%
2016.

For A.N Lenka & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number:
301003E

Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar Q

. th
Date: 12" May 2016 m@ g\«w\ b

A.N. Lenka, Partner
Membership Number: 200971
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Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report
Re: Utkal Alumina Technical & General Services Ltd (the Company)
i The Company does not have any Fixed Assets as at March 31, 2016.

(i) The company does not have any inventory during the financial year 2015-16, hence
physical verification by Management during the year is not applicable.

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made
any investments as per the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to
the parties covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73,74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified.

(vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in
respect of its products.

(vij (@) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it and there are no
amount which were outstanding, at the year end.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues outstanding of
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value
added and cess on account of any dispute.

(vii)  According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings to any financial institution or bank or dues to dﬂ)emure\Mders as at the

% %'A%%\
f@"ﬁbﬁw,‘:)
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balance sheet date. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from
Government as at the balance sheet date.

(x)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given / provided any Managerial remuneration. Accordingly the provisions of the
Section 197 read with Schedule V are not applicable to the Company.

(xiiy As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, no transaction with the related parties
was done by the Company during the year. Hence Compliance with section 177, 188
and Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

For A.N. Lenka & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 326031E

\bo
1> \Og\w

A.N. Lenka, Partner
Membership Number: 200971

Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar.

Date: 12" May 2016
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UTKAL ALUMINA TECHNICAL & GENERAL SERVICES LIMITED
PLOT NO-J-6, JAYDEV VIHAR, BHUBANESWAR
Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2016

{Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
As at As at
Notes Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 5,00,000 5,00,000
Reserves and Surplus (89.061) (60.678)
4.10,939 4,39,322
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 34,086 11,236
34,086 11,236
TOTAL 4,45,025 4.50,558
ASSETS
Other Non Current Assets 7,989 13,522
Current Assets
Bank Balances 4,31,503 4,31,503
Other Current Assets 5,533 5,533
4,37,036 4,37.036
TOTAL 4,45,025 4,50,558

Schedules referred to above and notes attached there to form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date attached.

For A. N. Lenka & Associates
Chartered Accountants.

A N Lenka, Partner

Membership No.- 2009
Firm No.: 326031E

Place : Bhubaneswar

Date;[g,\ (3= pm )

LF - 7
N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

oyt

’
risety)

Director Director
DIN No.05247213 DIN No.06598270
Place: Bhubaneswar Place: Bhubaneswar

Date: jz_,las\ 2000 Date: j_}f oS ‘Zaifé
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UTKAL ALUMINA TECHNICAL & GENERAL SERVICES LIMITED

PLOT NO-J-6, JAYDEV VIHAR, BHUBANESWAR
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Mar 31, 2016

(Amount in Rs.)

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year Ended For the year Ended
Mar 31, 2016 'Mar 31, 2015

EXPENSES
Preliminery Expenses written off 9 5,533 5,533
Auditors Remuneration 10 11,450 12,472
Bank Charges 1 - 23,596
Printing & stationery 12 - 6,000
Professional fees 13 11,400 -
Total 28,383 | 47,601
Loss before Taxation 28,383 47,601
Tax Expense: - -
Current Tax - -
Loss after taxation 28,383 47,601
Loss per Share (Basic and Diluted) in Rupees (0.57) (0.95)

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For A. N. Lenka & Associates
Chartered Accountants.

A N Lenka, Partner
Membership No.- 20
Firm No.: 326031E

Place : Bhubaneswar

Date: [‘),l Ogl w( 6

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Vijay Sapra)

Director
DIN No.05247213
Place: Bhubaneswar

Date: {2] 05| wib

(Nagesh Narisety)

Director
DIN No.06598270
Place: Bhubaneswar

Date: j_),{og ‘%ij,
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UTKAL ALUMINA TECHNICAL & GENERAL SERVICES LIMITED
PLOT NO-J-6, JAYDEV VIHAR, BHUBANESWAR
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended Mar 31, 2016

(Amount in Rs.)

)
For the year Ended

Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2015
Cash Flow used in Operating Activities
Net Loss before tax (28,383) (47,601)
Operating (Loss) before working capital changes (28,383) (47,601)
Adjustment for changes in Working Capital ;
- Liabilities and provisions 22,850 1,236
- Loans and advances, other current assets - =
- Other Non Current Assets 5,633 5,533
Cash from / (used in) Operations - (40,831)
Direct Taxes Paid -
Net Cash from / (used in) Operating Activities - (40,831)
Cash Flow used in Investing Activities -
Net Cash used in Investing Activities - -
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital -
Net Cash from Financing Activities - -
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents - (40.831)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 4,31,503 4,72,335
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 4,31,503 4,31,503
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: As At As At
Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2015
Bank Balances:
- Current Accounts 4,31,503 4,31,503
4,31,503 4,31,503

Notes:

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard 3

Cash Flow Statement.

For A. N. Lenka & Associates
Chartered Acccu

A N Lenka, Partner 0';.2’ 9\9
Membership No.- 2009 $dAceo>
Firm No.: 326031E

Place : Bhubaneswar

Date: vo,)o,\j 20l b

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

(Vijay Sapra)
Director

{Nagesh Narisety)
Director
DIN No.05247213 DIN No.06598270
Place: Bhubaneswar Place: Bhubaneswar

Date: 1205|2014 Date: 1 249 5201
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UTKAL ALUMINA TECHNICAL & GENERAL SERVICES LIMITED
PLOT NO-J-6, JAYDEV VIHAR ,BHUBANESWAR
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2016 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Mar 31,
2016

1 Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Accounting Convention
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in india under the historical
cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspstcts with the accounting standards
notified under Section 211(3C) {{Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006), as amended] and the other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act").

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Revised Schedule Ill to the Act.

1.2 Fixed Assets
(a) Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, Cost comprises purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

(b) Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

1.3 Depreciation and Amortisation
(a) Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates and in the manner prescribed under Schedule Il of the companies
Act,2013 as the computed rates, based on Management's estimates of useful lives of fixed assets are lower or equal to the rates prescribed under
Schedule Il to the Act.

1.4 Investments
Long Term Investments are carried at cost after deducting provision, if any, for diminution in value considered to be other than temporary in nature.
Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair market value. Fair value has been determined on the basis of realisable market value.

1.5 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of fixed assets are apportioned to the cost of the fixed assets up to the date on
which the asset is put to use/commissioned. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

1.6 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements require estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the
date of the Balance Sheet. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known /
materialise.

Accounting for Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

(a) Current Taxation

Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year as per 'The Income Tax Act, 1961°, of India

(b) Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax resulting from timing differences between book and tax profits is accounted for under the liability method, at the current/ substantially
enacted rate of tax to the extent that the timing differences are expected to crystallise.

Deferred tax assets arising in situations where there are brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, are recognised only when there is a
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that such assets will be realised.

1.7 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation but the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

1.8 Preliminery Expenses
Preliminery expenses are written off in five years

For A.N. Lenka & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Di
Chartered Accountants.

PVECT

(Vijay Sapra) (Nagesh\Narisety)
Director Director

DIN No.05247213 DIN No.06598270
Place: Bhubaneswar Place: Bhubaneswar

/@?_? '\ﬁ /"\\' Date: 12/‘ os‘ Léjﬁa Date: 12__' QS) &J,é

Place : Bhubaneswar

Date: l'),? (Dk"‘)olb
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UTKAL ALUMINA TECHNICAL GENERAL SERVICES LIMITED
PLOT NO-J-6, JAYDEV VIHAR ,BHUBANESWAR

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2016 and Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended Mar 31, 2016

2 Related Party Disclosures
Related Party Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard 18 - Related Parties

(A) Related Parties and nature of relationship:

Holding Company Utkal Alumina International Limited

Mr.Vijay Sapra ( Director)
Key Management Personnel
Mr.Nagesh Narisety ( Director)

As there were no transactions with other parties, defined in Accounting Standard 18 - Related Parties, no
disclosure has been made of the names of such other parties.

(B) No transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties mentioned in (A) above:

For A.N. Lenka & Associates
Chartered Accountants. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

) (Vijay Sapra) (Nagesh Narisety)
A N Lenka, Partner
Membership No.- 200971 ’
Firm No.: 326031E
Director Director
Place : Bhubaneswar DIN No0.05247213 DIN No.06598270
Date: 1 7/) 3] §' 20| b Place : Bhubaneswar Place : Bhubaneswar

Date: 12{05 |2 14
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UTKAL ALUMINA TECHNICAL GENERAL SERVICES LIMITED

PLOT NO-J-6, JAYDEV VIHAR ,BHUBANESWAR

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2016 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year

10

11

12

13

ended Mar 31, 2016

Share Capital:
Authorise Share Capital
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital:

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
(Entire Share Capital held by holding company Utkal Alumina International Limited

and its nominees)

Reserves and Surplus:

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Loss for the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other Current Liabilities

Audit fees payable for the financial year 2014-15 & 2015-16

Professional fees payable - ROI filing fees for The Financial year 2014-15 & 2015-
16

Total

Other Non Current Assets
Preliminary Expenses -to the extent not written off

Total

Current Assets
Bank balance

Total
Other Current Assets

Preliminary Expenses-to the extent not written off
Total

Preliminery Expenses written off

Total

Auditor Remuneration

Audit Fees
Total

Bank Charges {Charged by Axis

Printing & stationery

Professional fees - ROI filing fees for FY 2014-15 & 2015-16

429

{(Amountin Rs.)

As at Mar 31,
2016

5,00,000
5.00.000

5.00.000
5,00,000

(60,678)
(28,383)
(89,061

22,686

11,400
34,086

7,989

7,98¢

4,31,503
4,31,503
5,633
5,633
5,633

5,633

11,450
11.450

11.400

As at Mar 31,
2015

5,00,000
5.00.000

5.00.000
5,00,000

(13,077)
(47,601)
60,678

11,236

11,236

13,522

13,522

4,31,503
4,31,503
5,633
5,533

5,533

12,472
12,472

23,596

6,000
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